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&LW\�RI�%HQG��2UHJRQ��WKH�&LW\��IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH������������
�
7KLV�UHSRUW�SUHVHQWV�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�RI�-XQH����������DQG�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�
LWV�RSHUDWLRQV� IRU� WKH� ILVFDO� \HDU� WKHQ�HQGHG��7KH� ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�
VFKHGXOHV� KDYH� EHHQ� SUHSDUHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV� JHQHUDOO\�
DFFHSWHG� LQ� WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV� RI�$PHULFD� �*$$3��DQG�PHHW� WKH� UHTXLUHPHQWV� RI� WKH�
VWDQGDUGV�DV�SUHVFULEHG�E\�WKH�6HFUHWDU\�RI�6WDWH�$XGLWV�'LYLVLRQ��:H�EHOLHYH�WKH�GDWD��
DV�SUHVHQWHG��LV�DFFXUDWH�LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV�DQG�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�D�PDQQHU�GHVLJQHG�WR�
IDLUO\�SUHVHQW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�RI�WKH�YDULRXV�IXQGV�RI�WKH�
&LW\������
��
7KH�DFFXUDF\�RI� WKH�&LW\¶V� ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG� WKH�FRPSOHWHQHVV�DQG�IDLUQHVV�RI�
WKHLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�DUH�WKH�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�RI�&LW\�PDQDJHPHQW��7KH�&LW\�PDLQWDLQV�D�V\VWHP�
RI�LQWHUQDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�FRQWUROV�GHVLJQHG�WR�SURYLGH�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�DVVHWV�DUH�
VDIHJXDUGHG�DJDLQVW� ORVV�RU�XQDXWKRUL]HG�XVH�DQG�WKDW�ILQDQFLDO�UHFRUGV�FDQ�EH�UHOLHG�
XSRQ� WR� SURGXFH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� *$$3�� 7KH� FRQFHSW� RI�
UHDVRQDEOH� DVVXUDQFH� UHFRJQL]HV� WKDW� WKH� FRVW� RI�PDLQWDLQLQJ� WKH� V\VWHP� RI� LQWHUQDO�
DFFRXQWLQJ�FRQWUROV�VKRXOG�QRW�H[FHHG�EHQHILWV�OLNHO\�WR�EH�GHULYHG���
�
0RVV�$GDPV�//3��&HUWLILHG�3XEOLF�$FFRXQWDQWV��KDV� LVVXHG�DQ�XQPRGLILHG�RU� ³FOHDQ´�
RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������7KH�
LQGHSHQGHQW�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�LV�ORFDWHG�DW�SDJH���LQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6HFWLRQ�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW����
�
*$$3�UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�SURYLGH�D�QDUUDWLYH�LQWURGXFWLRQ��DORQJ�ZLWK�DQ�RYHUYLHZ�
DQG�DQDO\VLV�WR�DFFRPSDQ\�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�D�0DQDJHPHQW¶V�
'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV��0'	$���7KLV�OHWWHU�RI� WUDQVPLWWDO� LV�GHVLJQHG�WR�FRPSOHPHQW�
WKH�0'	$�DQG�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�LW��7KH�&LW\¶V�0'	$�LV�ORFDWHG�RQ�SDJH�
��LPPHGLDWHO\�IROORZLQJ�WKH�LQGHSHQGHQW�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW����
�
&LW\�3URILOH�
�
7KH� &LW\� LV� ORFDWHG� LQ� &HQWUDO� 2UHJRQ�� MXVW� HDVW� RI� WKH� &DVFDGH� PRXQWDLQ� UDQJH� DQG�
HQFRPSDVVHV�DQ�DUHD�RI�������VTXDUH�PLOHV��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ�8UEDQ�*URZWK�%RXQGDU\��8*%��
H[SDQVLRQ�WKDW�EURXJKW�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�������DFUHV�RI�SURSHUW\�LQWR�WKH�&LW\¶V�ERXQGDU\�LQ�������
%HQG�LV�WKH�ODUJHVW�FLW\�HDVW�RI�WKH�&DVFDGHV�LQ�2UHJRQ�DQG�LV�WKH�FRPPHUFLDO��UHFUHDWLRQDO��
VRFLDO� DQG� LQQRYDWLRQ� FHQWHU� RI� &HQWUDO� 2UHJRQ�� 3RUWODQG� 6WDWH� 8QLYHUVLW\¶V� SUHOLPLQDU\�
SRSXODWLRQ� HVWLPDWH� IRU� %HQG� DV� RI� -XO\� ��� ����� LV� �������� %HQG� VHUYHV� DV� WKH� VHDW� IRU�
'HVFKXWHV�&RXQW\�DQG�DV� WKH�KXE�RI�HFRQRPLF�DFWLYLW\� LQ�D� WKUHH�FRXQW\� UHJLRQ� LQFOXGLQJ�
'HVFKXWHV��-HIIHUVRQ�DQG�&URRN�FRXQWLHV��%HQG�LV�WKH�SULQFLSDO�FLW\�RI�WKH�%HQG�5HGPRQG�
0HWURSROLWDQ�6WDWLVWLFDO�$UHD��%HQG�06$�������
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,QFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�������%HQG�LV�RUJDQL]HG�XQGHU�D�FRXQFLO�PDQDJHU�IRUP�RI�JRYHUQPHQW�DQG�LV�VHUYHG�E\�D�VHYHQ�
PHPEHU�&LW\�&RXQFLO��7KH�0D\RU�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLORUV�DUH�HOHFWHG�WR�IRXU�\HDU�WHUPV��7KH�PD\RU�ZDV�HOHFWHG�LQ�D�
JHQHUDO�HOHFWLRQ�WR�D�IRXU�\HDU�WHUP�WKDW�EHJDQ�-DQXDU\������DQG�&RXQFLORUV�VHOHFW�D�PD\RU�SUR�WHP�DPRQJ�
WKHPVHOYHV��7KH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�VHWV�SROLFLHV�DQG�HQDFWV�RUGLQDQFHV��7KH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�KLUHV�DQG�GLUHFWV�D�&LW\�
0DQDJHU�ZKR�LV�WKH�&LW\¶V�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��7KH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
&LW\�DQG�PDQDJHV�D�VWDII�RI����GHSDUWPHQW�KHDGV�ZLWK�����IXOO�WLPH�HTXLYDOHQW�HPSOR\HHV��)7(��DV�RI�-XQH�����
�������
�
7KH� &LW\� SURYLGHV� D� IXOO� UDQJH� RI� PXQLFLSDO� VHUYLFHV� ZKLFK� LQFOXGH� SROLFH�� ILUH� SURWHFWLRQ� DQG� VXSSUHVVLRQ��
HPHUJHQF\�PHGLFDO�VHUYLFHV��FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�VWUHHWV��VLGHZDONV�DQG�RWKHU�SXEOLF� IDFLOLWLHV��D�
PXQLFLSDO� FRXUW�� FRPPXQLW\� GHYHORSPHQW� DQG� SODQQLQJ�� EXLOGLQJ� SHUPLW� DQG� LQVSHFWLRQ� DFWLYLWLHV�� HFRQRPLF�
GHYHORSPHQW��ZDWHU��ZDWHU�UHFODPDWLRQ�DQG�VWRUPZDWHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�RSHUDWLRQV��7KH�&LW\�DOVR�
RSHUDWHV�DQ�DLUSRUW��FHPHWHU\�DQG�GRZQWRZQ�SDUNLQJ���
�
,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�DERYH�JHQHUDO�JRYHUQPHQW�DFWLYLWLHV��WKH�&LW\�KDV�DQ�XUEDQ�UHQHZDO�DJHQF\��7KH�%HQG�8UEDQ�
5HQHZDO�$JHQF\��%85$��LV�D�OHJDOO\�VHSDUDWH�HQWLW\�ILUVW�HVWDEOLVKHG�LQ�������%85$�LV�FXUUHQWO\�PDQDJLQJ�WZR�
XUEDQ� UHQHZDO� DUHDV�� 7KH� -XQLSHU� 5LGJH� 8UEDQ� 5HQHZDO� 3ODQ� ZDV� DGRSWHG� LQ� ����� IRU� GHYHORSPHQW� RI�
DSSUR[LPDWHO\�����DFUHV�RI�ODQG�LQ�QRUWKHDVW�%HQG��7KH�0XUSK\�&URVVLQJ�8UEDQ�5HQHZDO�3ODQ�ZDV�DGRSWHG�LQ�
�����IRU�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�DQG�SXEOLF�XWLOLW\�LPSURYHPHQWV�LQ�VRXWKHDVW�%HQG��,Q�$XJXVW�������&RXQFLO�DSSURYHG�WKH�
&RUH�$UHD�7D[�,QFUHPHQW�)LQDQFH�3ODQ�WKDW�ZLOO�HVWDEOLVK�WKH�&RUH�$UHD�7D[�,QFUHPHQW�)LQDQFH�$UHD��7KH�&RUH�
$UHD�LQFOXGHV�WKH�%HQG�&HQWUDO�'LVWULFW��(DVW�'RZQWRZQ��LQQHU�+LJKZD\����*UHHQZRRG�DQG�.RU3LQH�RSSRUWXQLW\�
DUHDV��8S�WR������PLOOLRQ�LQ�WD[�LQFUHPHQW�ILQDQFLQJ�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�VXSSRUW�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�UHGHYHORSPHQW�RI�
WKH�����DFUHD�&RUH�$UH�RYHU�D����\HDU�SHULRG���7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQFOXGH�WKH�DFWLYLWLHV�RI�
%85$���
��
7KH�&LW\¶V�EXGJHW�HQFRPSDVVHV�D����PRQWK�SHULRG�EHJLQQLQJ�-XO\���RI�RGG�QXPEHUHG�\HDUV��7KH�&LW\¶V�EXGJHW�
LV�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�2UHJRQ�/RFDO�%XGJHW�/DZ��256�&KDSWHU�������ZKLFK�SURYLGHV�
VWDQGDUG�SURFHGXUHV�IRU�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ��SUHVHQWDWLRQ��DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�DQG�DSSUDLVDO�RI�EXGJHWV��7KH�ODZ�PDQGDWHV�
SXEOLF�LQYROYHPHQW�LQ�EXGJHW�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�SXEOLF�H[SRVXUH�RI�LWV�SURSRVHG�SURJUDPV��7KH�ODZ�DOVR�UHTXLUHV�
WKDW�WKH�EXGJHW�EH�EDODQFHG��$�EXGJHW�LV�SUHSDUHG�IRU�HDFK�IXQG�UHTXLULQJ�DSSURSULDWLRQV��([SHQGLWXUH�EXGJHWV�
IRU� WKH����������� ELHQQLXP�ZHUH�DSSURSULDWHG� E\� IXQG�DW� WKH� SURJUDP� OHYHO�ZLWK� WKH� H[FHSWLRQ� RI� LQWHUIXQG�
WUDQVIHUV��GHEW�VHUYLFH�DQG�FRQWLQJHQF\��ZKLFK�DUH�EXGJHWHG�E\�IXQG�DW�WKH�FDWHJRU\�OHYHO��%XGJHWHG�H[SHQGLWXUHV�
PD\�QRW�OHJDOO\�EH�RYHUVSHQW�DW�WKH�DSSURSULDWLRQ�OHYHO���
�
7KH�EXGJHW�LV�SUHVHQWHG�WKURXJK�SXEOLF�KHDULQJV�KHOG�E\�D�EXGJHW�FRPPLWWHH�ZKLFK�FRQVLVWV�RI�DQ�HTXDO�QXPEHU�
RI�&LW\�&RXQFLO�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�PHPEHUV��$IWHU�JLYLQJ�GXH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ� WR� WKH� LQSXW� UHFHLYHG� WKURXJK�SXEOLF�
FRPPHQW��WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�DSSURYHV�D�UHVROXWLRQ�WKDW�DGRSWV�WKH�EXGJHW�DQG�VHWV�DSSURSULDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�ELHQQLXP��
$�VHSDUDWH�UHVROXWLRQ�LV�DOVR�DGRSWHG�WKDW�DXWKRUL]HV�WKH�OHY\LQJ�RI�SURSHUW\�WD[HV��7KH�DGRSWHG�EXGJHW�VHUYHV�
DV�WKH�IRXQGDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�SODQQLQJ�DQG�FRQWURO���
�
/RFDO�(FRQRP\�DQG�2XWORRN�
�
%HQG�KDV�VKRZQ�LWV�DELOLW\�WR�SURPRWH�DQG�VXSSRUW�JURZWK�LQ�D�YDULHW\�RI�LQGXVWULHV��PRVW�QRWDEO\�WKH�KLJK�WHFK�
DQG�KHDOWK�FDUH�VHFWRUV��%HQG�UDQNV�1R����LQ�ILYH�\HDU�ZDJH�JURZWK�DQG�1R����LQ�ILYH�\HDU�MRE�JURZWK�SHU�WKH�
0LONHQ�,QVWLWXWH¶V������%HVW�3HUIRUPLQJ�&LWLHV�UHSRUW�UHOHDVHG� LQ�-DQXDU\�������7KH�UHSRUW�QRWHV�WKDW�%HQG¶V�
HPSOR\PHQW�DQG�HFRQRPLF�EDVHV�KDYH�H[SDQGHG�WR�LQFOXGH�D�YDULHW\�RI�EXVLQHVVHV�VHUYLQJ�WRXULVP��JRYHUQPHQW��
KHDOWKFDUH��XWLOLWLHV��KLJK�WHFK��ELR�VFLHQFH�DQG�PLFUREUHZHULHV����
�
,Q�WKH�0LONHQ�,QVWLWXWH¶V������%HVW�3HUIRUPLQJ�&LWLHV�UHSRUW��%HQG�5HGPRQG�UDQNHG�WKH�EHVW�SHUIRUPLQJ�VPDOO�FLW\�
LQ�WKH�8�6��IRU�WKH�IRXUWK�\HDU�LQ�D�URZ��SULPDULO\�GXH�WR�LWV�XQULYDOHG�MRE�DQG�ZDJH�JURZWK��7KH�DUHD�UDQNHG�ILUVW�LQ�
RQH�\HDU� ZDJH� JURZWK� DQG� VHFRQG� LQ� ILYH�\HDU� MRE� JURZWK�� 7KH� UHSRUW� VWDWHG� WKDW� %HQG�5HGPRQG� KDV� ³D�
FROODERUDWLYH��GLYHUVH�HFRQRPLF�PDNH�XS�ZLWK�D�KLJKO\�HGXFDWHG�ZRUNIRUFH�SURYLGH�DQ�H[FHOOHQW�SODWIRUP�IRU�ORQJ�
WHUP�JURZWK´��,W�JRHV�RQ�WR�UHFRJQL]H�WKDW�2UHJRQ�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�&DVFDGHV�DQG�&HQWUDO�2UHJRQ�&RPPXQLW\�
&ROOHJH� SURYLGH� D� VNLOOHG� ZRUNIRUFH� IRU� RXU� ORFDO� ODERU� PDUNHWV� DQG� WKDW� %HQG�5HGPRQG� KDV� KDG� DQ�
XQSUHFHGHQWHG�UXQ�RI�JURZWK�RQ�WKH�VPDOO�FLWLHV�LQGH[�DQG�VKRXOG�PDLQWDLQ�JURZWK�LQ�WKH�QHDU�WHUP���7KH�&HQWUDO�
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2UHJRQ�HFRQRP\�LV�YLEUDQW�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�DEOH�WR�GLYHUVLI\�LWV�HFRQRPLF�EDVH�ZLWK�QHZ�ZDYHV�RI�LQQRYDWLRQ��,W�ZDV�
QRWHG�LQ�WKH�UHSRUW�WKDW�%HQG¶V�HPSOR\PHQW�LQ�KLJK�ZDJH��RXWGRRUV�JRRGV�H�FRPPHUFH��DQG�RQOLQH�PDUNHWLQJ�KDV�
JURZQ�LQ�WKH�PHWUR�ZKLOH�WKH�DEXQGDQFH�RI�ODQG�KDV�DWWUDFWHG�YHKLFOH�WHFKQRORJ\�RYHU�WKH�\HDUV����
�
'XH�WR� WKH�H[SDQGLQJ� MRE�JURZWK�� WKH�&LW\� LV�VHHLQJ� LQFUHDVHV�LQ� WKH� ORFDO�KRXVLQJ�PDUNHW�DV�ZHOO�DV�UDSLGO\�
LQFUHDVLQJ�KRPH�SULFHV��PDNLQJ�DIIRUGDEOH�KRXVLQJ�D�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDOOHQJH��5HQWDO�YDFDQF\�UDWHV�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�
ORZ���,Q�VSLWH�RI�WKH�LPSDFWV�RI�&29,'�����WKH�%HQG�UHQWDO�PDUNHW�KDV�FRQWLQXHG�WR�VHH�ORZ�YDFDQFLHV�LQ�SDUW�GXH�
WR�D�PRUDWRULXP�RQ�HYLFWLRQV�UHODWHG�WR�WKH�SDQGHPLF��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��SHRSOH�DUH�PRYLQJ�DZD\�IURP�WKH�ELJ�FLWLHV�DQG�
HOHFWLQJ�WR�WHOHFRPPXWH�WR�WKHLU�MREV�IURP�%HQG�ZKLFK�DOVR�DSSHDUV�WR�EH�LPSDFWLQJ�ORFDO�KRPH�SULFHV��0HGLDQ�
VLQJOH�IDPLO\�KRPH�VDOH�SULFHV�DUH�����������&HQWUDO�2UHJRQ�$VVRFLDWLRQ�RI�5HDOWRUV�������4XDUWHU���5HSRUW���D�
������LQFUHDVH�IURP�WKLV�WLPH�ODVW�\HDU��
�
$FFRUGLQJ�WR�&RPSDVV�5HDO�(VWDWH�&RPPHUFLDO�6HUYLFHV��UHWDLO�DQG�RIILFH�VHFWRUV�FRQWLQXH�WR�H[SHULHQFH�ORZ�
YDFDQF\�UDWHV��������IRU�RIILFH�VSDFH�DQG�������IRU�UHWDLO�VSDFH�GXULQJ�WKH�WKLUG�TXDUWHU�RI��������7KH�LQGXVWULDO�
YDFDQF\�UDWH�LV��������DV�RYHU��������VTXDUH�IHHW�RI�FRPPHUFLDO�VSDFH�ZDV�OHDVHG�GXULQJ�������
�
%HIRUH�WKH�HIIHFWV�RI�WKH�&29,'����SDQGHPLF�DQG�LWV�LPSDFW�RQ�%HQG�EXVLQHVVHV��WKH�XQHPSOR\PHQW�UDWH�LQ�WKH�
%HQG�06$�ZDV�DW�D�KLVWRULFDOO\�ORZ�OHYHO�RI�������'XULQJ�WKH�VWDWH�PDQGDWHG�ORFN�GRZQ�WKDW�VWDUWHG�LQ�0DUFK�
������%HQG¶V�XQHPSOR\PHQW�UHDFKHG�DV�KLJK�DV�������LQ�$SULO�RI�������������IRU�WKH�OHLVXUH�DQG�KRVSLWDOLW\�
LQGXVWU\���6WDWH�RI�2UHJRQ�(PSOR\PHQW�'HYHORSPHQW�'HSDUWPHQW���7KH�UHRSHQLQJ�RI�EXVLQHVVHV�DQG�VFKRROV�
ZLOO�KDYH�D�VLJQLILFDQW�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�HPSOR\PHQW�UDWH�LQ�%HQG�IRU�WKH�IRUHVHHDEOH�IXWXUH��GHSHQGLQJ�RQ�WKH�OHYHO�
RI�&29,'�UHVSRQVH�ODLG�RXW�LQ�WKH�*RYHUQRU¶V�QHZ�ULVN�EDVHG�VDIHW\�PHDVXUHV��$V�GLVFXVVHG�LQ�WKH�³&29,'����
(IIHFWV�DQG�5HVSRQVH´�VHFWLRQ�EHORZ��WKH�&LW\�KDV�IRFXVHG�PDQ\�RI�LWV�HIIRUWV�RQ�UHVRXUFHV�WR�KHOS�EXVLQHVV�DQG�
LQGLYLGXDOV�ZHDWKHU�WKH�SDQGHPLF�DQG�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�LPSDFWV�RI�WKH�VKXWGRZQV���
�
/RQJ�7HUP�)LQDQFLDO�3ODQQLQJ�
�
7KH�&LW\�XSGDWHV�LWV�ORQJ�WHUP�ILQDQFLDO�SURMHFWLRQV�RQ�DQ�RQ�JRLQJ�EDVLV�DQG�LGHQWLILHV�ERWK�FXUUHQW�DQG�ORQJ�WHUP�
IXQGLQJ�QHHGV�DQG�FKDOOHQJHV�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP�ILQDQFLDO�VWDELOLW\�RI�WKH�&LW\��7KH�ILVFDO�DQG�LQYHVWPHQW�
SROLFLHV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�DW�OHDVW�DQQXDOO\�DQG�XSGDWHG�DV�QHHGHG�ZLWK�&RXQFLO�DSSURYDO���
�
7KH�&LW\�PDLQWDLQV�DQG� XSGDWHV� ORQJ�WHUP� ILQDQFLDO�PRGHOV� RQ� DQ�DQQXDO� EDVLV� IRU� WKH� IROORZLQJ� IXQGV� DQG�
SURJUDPV�� *HQHUDO� )XQG�� DLUSRUW�� SROLFH�� ILUH�� WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�� ZDWHU�� ZDWHU� UHFODPDWLRQ� DQG� VWRUPZDWHU�� 7KH�
ILQDQFLDO�PRGHOV� DUH�XSGDWHG� LQ�DGGLWLRQ� WR�PDLQWDLQLQJ�D�&DSLWDO� ,PSURYHPHQW�3URJUDP� �&,3�� WKDW� LGHQWLILHV�
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�LPSURYHPHQW�SURMHFWV�ZLWKLQ�D���\HDU�WLPH�SHULRG�ZKLFK�DUH�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HQKDQFH�VHUYLFH�OHYHOV��
DGGUHVV�H[LVWLQJ�GHILFLHQFLHV��DQG�SURYLGH� IRU� IXWXUH�JURZWK��7KH���\HDU�&,3� LV�DOVR�XSGDWHG�DQQXDOO\�DQG� LV�
FRRUGLQDWHG�ZLWK�RWKHU�GHSDUWPHQWV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&LW\��YDULRXV�FRPPLWWHHV��DQG�VWDNHKROGHUV��7KH�&LW\�FRQWLQXHV�WR�
UHILQH�LWV�&,3�SURFHVV�DV�D�PHDQV�WR�HQKDQFH�ERWK�ILQDQFLDO�SODQQLQJ�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�GHFLVLRQV���$�QXPEHU�RI�
&,3� SURMHFWV� ZHUH� LGHQWLILHG� IRU� IXQGLQJ� GXULQJ� WKH� ���������� ELHQQLXP��7KHVH� LQFOXGH� FRPSOH[��PXOWL�\HDU�
SURMHFWV�LQYROYLQJ�LPSURYHPHQWV�WR�ZDWHU��ZDWHU�UHFODPDWLRQ��VWRUPZDWHU�DQG�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH���
�
0DMRU�,QLWLDWLYHV�IRU�����������%LHQQLXP�
�
&LW\�&RXQFLO�HOLFLWHG�LQSXW�IURP�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�DQG�WKHQ�FRQGXFWHG�D�VHULHV�RI�ZRUN�VHVVLRQV�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�EXGJHW�
DQG�WKH�&RXQFLO¶V�JRDOV�UHIOHFWHG�FRPPXQLW\�SULRULWLHV��$V�D�UHVXOW������������&RXQFLO�JRDOV�UHIOHFW�D�FRKHVLYH�
DQG�DPELWLRXV�SODQ�WR�DGGUHVV�WKH�QHHGV�DQG�FRQFHUQV�RI�FRPPXQLW\�PHPEHUV��7KHVH�JRDOV�FDQ�EH�VXPPDUL]HG�
LQ���PDLQ�FDWHJRULHV���
�
x� (FRQRPLF�9LWDOLW\�±�ZLWK�D�IRFXV�RQ�KRXVLQJ��MREV��DQG�PDQDJLQJ�JURZWK��LQFUHDVH�WKH�VXSSO\�RI�VKRYHO�

UHDG\�ODQG�DYDLODEOH�IRU�KRXVLQJ�DQG�HPSOR\PHQW����
x� 7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�	�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH�±�WR�DGGUHVV�FRQJHVWLRQ�UHOLHI��QHLJKERUKRRG�VDIHW\��VWUHHWV��VHZHU�DQG�

ZDWHU�LQYHVWPHQW�DQG�PRELOLW\�RSWLRQV�
x� 3XEOLF� 6DIHW\� 	� +HDOWK� ±� WR� HQVXUH� JRRG� UHVSRQVH� WLPHV�� WUDIILF� VDIHW\�� FULPH� SUHYHQWLRQ�� ZLOGILUH�

UHVLOLHQF\�DQG�KRPHOHVVQHVV�DQG�PHQWDO�KHDOWK�SDUWQHUVKLSV�
x� (IIHFWLYH� 	� (IILFLHQW� &LW\� 2SHUDWLRQV� ±� WR� SURPRWH� GDWD� DQG� WHFKQRORJ\� LQYHVWPHQWV�� FRPPXQLW\�

SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��SXEOLF�IDFLOLW\�SODQQLQJ�DQG�GLYHUVLW\��HTXLW\�DQG�LQFOXVLRQ��'(,��SURJUDPV�
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�
$�QXPEHU�RI�VLJQLILFDQW�LQLWLDWLYHV��RXWOLQHG�EHORZ��DUH�XQGHUZD\�LQ�%HQG�WR�DFFRPSOLVK�WKH�&RXQFLOV�JRDOV�DQG�
YLVLRQ�IRU�WKH�IXWXUH��
�
(FRQRPLF�9LWDOLW\�
,Q�UHFHQW�\HDUV��WKH�&LW\�VXFFHVVIXOO\�FRPSOHWHG�D�FRPPXQLW\�VXSSRUWHG�*URZWK�3ODQ�WR�VHW�D�SDWK�IRUZDUG�IRU�
VWUDWHJLFDOO\�WDUJHWHG� H[SDQVLRQ� DQG� UHGHYHORSPHQW�� 7KH�&LW\¶V� 8UEDQ�*URZWK� %RXQGDU\� H[SDQVLRQ� LQ� �����
SURYLGHG�D�����LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�ODQG�VXSSO\��'XULQJ�WKH�����������ELHQQLXP�WKH�&LW\�H[SDQGHG�RQ�WKH�
VLJQLILFDQW�LQYHVWPHQW�RI�WLPH�DQG�SODQQLQJ�RI�WKH�XVH�RI�WKLV�ODQG�DQG�SURJUHVVHG�IURP�SODQQLQJ�WR�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�
RI�WKLV�JURZWK��&RXQFLO�SULRULWL]HG�WKH�VRXWKHDVW�H[SDQVLRQ�DUHD�DQG�WKH�FHQWUDO�FRUH�RI�WKH�&LW\�DV�EHLQJ�WKH�PRVW�
UHDG\�IRU�UHGHYHORSPHQW��:RUN�WR�H[SDQG�WKHVH�DUHDV�LQFOXGHV�GHWDLOHG�ODQG�XVH�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�SODQV�WR�HQVXUH�
JURZWK�LQ�DQ�HIILFLHQW�DQG�FRVW�HIIHFWLYH�PDQQHU��,Q�$XJXVW�������&RXQFLO�DSSURYHG�WKH�&RUH�$UHD�7D[�,QFUHPHQW�
)LQDQFH�3ODQ�WKDW�ZLOO�HVWDEOLVK�WKH�&RUH�$UHD�7D[�,QFUHPHQW�)LQDQFH�$UHD��7KH�&RUH�$UHD�LQFOXGHV�WKH�%HQG�
&HQWUDO�'LVWULFW��(DVW�'RZQWRZQ��LQQHU�+LJKZD\����*UHHQZRRG�DQG�.RU3LQH�RSSRUWXQLW\�DUHDV��8S�WR������PLOOLRQ�
LQ�WD[�LQFUHPHQW�ILQDQFLQJ�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�VXSSRUW�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�UHGHYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�����DFUHD�&RUH�$UH�
RYHU�D����\HDU�SHULRG��&LW\�VWDII�DUH�FRQWLQXLQJ�WR�ZRUN�ZLWK�WKH�6RXWKHDVW�$UHD�3ODQ�$GYLVRU\�&RPPLWWHH�RQ�WKH�
GUDIW�SODQ� IRU� WKH�VRXWKHDVW�H[SDQVLRQ�DUHD�� ,W� LV�DQWLFLSDWHG� WKDW� WKH� ILQDO� FRPPLWWHH�PHHWLQJ�ZLOO�EH�KHOG� LQ�
'HFHPEHU������EHIRUH�WKH�SURSRVHG�SODQ�JRHV�WR�WKH�3ODQQLQJ�&RPPLVVLRQ�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO�IRU�DSSURYDO�DQG�
DGRSWLRQ�ODWHU�LQ�ILVFDO�\HDU�����������,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�&LW\�ZRQ�D�SLORW�SURMHFW�SURSRVDO�WR�H[SDQG�WKH�8*%�IRU�
DIIRUGDEOH�KRXVLQJ�� LQ�SDUWQHUVKLS�ZLWK�D�GHYHORSHU� IRU�����GHHG�UHVWULFWHG�KRPHV������PLG�UDQJH�DIIRUGDEOH�
KRPHV�DQG����PDUNHW�UDWH�XQLWV��
�
)LQDOO\��WKH�&LW\�KDV�PDGH�VXEVWDQWLDO�SURJUHVV�RQ�WKH�&RXQFLO�JRDO�WR�SHUPLW�RYHU�������KRXVLQJ�XQLWV�&LW\�ZLGH�
DQG�WR�LPSOHPHQW�WD[�H[HPSWLRQ�SURJUDPV�WR�SURPRWH�DIIRUGDEOH�KRXVLQJ��&LW\�FRGH�ZDV�DPHQGHG�WR�UHPRYH�
GHYHORSPHQW�EDUULHUV�IRU�DGGLWLRQDO�KRXVLQJ�VXSSO\���2YHU�����XQLWV�RI�KRXVLQJ�KDYH�EHHQ�FRPSOHWHG�WKLV�ELHQQLXP�
WR�GDWH��ZLWK�DQRWKHU�������XQGHU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ���
�
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�DQG�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH�
7KH�&LW\�KDV�KHDUG� IURP�FRPPXQLW\�PHPEHUV� WKDW� WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ� LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� LV�D�NH\�SULRULW\� IRU�PDQ\�� ,Q�
UHVSRQVH��&RXQFLO�VHW�����������JRDOV�WR�LQYHVW�LQ�H[SDQVLRQ�DQG�LPSURYHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP����
�
&RQVLGHUDEOH�HIIRUW�ZDV�PDGH�WR�FRPSOHWH�WKH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP�3ODQ��763��WKLV�ELHQQLXP��7KH�763� LV�
GHGLFDWHG� WR� SODQQLQJ� IRU� WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ� QHHGV� RYHU� WKH� QH[W� ��� \HDUV�� ,W� DQDO\]HV� FXUUHQW� DQG� SURMHFWHG�
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�FRQGLWLRQV��DQG�GHVFULEHV�D�IHDVLEOH�ILQDQFLDO�SODQ�WR�DFFRPSOLVK�WKH�QHHGHG�SURMHFWV�RYHU�WKH����
\HDU�SODQQLQJ�KRUL]RQ��7KH�763�EDODQFHV�WKH�QHHGV�RI�GULYHUV��WUDQVLW�XVHUV��IUHLJKW�PRYHPHQW�DQG�SHRSOH�ZKR�
ZDON�DQG�ELF\FOH��7KH�IXQGLQJ�SODQ� LV�GHVLJQHG�WR�EH�HTXLWDEOH��EDODQFHG�DQG�UHVLOLHQW� WR�HQVXUH�VXVWDLQDEOH�
IXQGLQJ���2QH�RI�WKH�RXWFRPHV�RI�WKH�763�ZDV�D�EDOORW�PHDVXUH�IRU�D������PLOOLRQ�*HQHUDO�2EOLJDWLRQ��*2��%RQG��
ZKLFK�ZDV�DSSURYHG�E\�YRWHUV�LQ�1RYHPEHU���������
�
&RXQFLO�DOVR�KDV�D�JRDO� WR� GHYHORS�D�FRPPXQLW\�ZLGH�SDUNLQJ�SURJUDP�DV�ZHOO�DV�PRGHUQL]DWLRQ�RI�SDUNLQJ�
PDQDJHPHQW��DQG�FRQWLQXHG�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�ZDWHU��VHZHU��DQG�VWRUPZDWHU�WUHDWPHQW�V\VWHPV�WR�NHHS�SDFH�ZLWK�
WKH�JURZLQJ�GHPDQG��UHJXODWRU\�UHTXLUHPHQWV��DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�QHHGV���
�
3XEOLF�6DIHW\�	�+HDOWK�
3XEOLF�VDIHW\�FRQWLQXHV�WR�EH�RQH�RI�&RXQFLO¶V�KLJKHVW�SULRULWLHV��2QJRLQJ�SURJUDPV�VXFK�DV�WKH�%DVLF�/LIH�6XSSRUW�
DQG� 4XLFN� 5HVSRQVH� 9HKLFOH� 3URJUDPV� DUH� H[DPSOHV� RI� RSHUDWLRQDO� HIILFLHQFLHV� DQG� FRVW�HIIHFWLYH� VHUYLFH�
GHOLYHU\�PHWKRGV�LPSOHPHQWHG�E\�WKH�)LUH�'HSDUWPHQW��7KH�SURJUDPV�LQFUHDVHG�VWDIILQJ�OHYHOV�WKDW�UHVXOWHG�LQ�
TXLFNHU�UHVSRQVH�WLPHV��PDNLQJ�%HQG�VDIHU�ZKLOH�UHGXFLQJ�FRVWV��
�
%HQG¶V�IDVW�JURZWK�DQG�FKDQJLQJ�GHPRJUDSKLFV�SODFH�D�KLJK�GHPDQG�RQ�SXEOLF�VDIHW\�VWDII��DQG�YLJLODQFH�
LV� UHTXLUHG� WR�NHHS�UHVRXUFHV�DQG�VHUYLFH� OHYHOV�PDWFKHG�ZLWK�FRPPXQLW\�H[SHFWDWLRQV��2QJRLQJ������
�����JRDOV� LQFOXGH� SUHVHUYDWLRQ�RI� FXUUHQW� VHUYLFH� OHYHOV� DQG� UHVSRQVH� WLPHV�� VHHNLQJ�RSSRUWXQLWLHV� WR�
FRQQHFW� UHVLGHQWV� DQG� EXVLQHVVHV� WR� PHQWDO� KHDOWK� DQG� KRPHOHVVQHVV� UHVRXUFHV�� GHYHORSPHQW� RI� ILUH�
UHVLOLHQFH�SODQV�DQG�DWWHQWLRQ�WR�LVVXHV�VXFK�DV�OLYDELOLW\�DQG�FULPH�LQ�WKH�GRZQWRZQ�DUHD���
�
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7KH�&LW\�DOVR�SDUWQHUHG�ZLWK�'HVFKXWHV�&RXQW\�RQ�WKH�UHFHQW�RSHQLQJ�RI�D�QHZ������6WDELOL]DWLRQ�&HQWHU�
WKDW� VHUYHV� FKLOGUHQ� DQG� DGXOWV� ZKR� DUH� LQ� QHHG� RI� VKRUW�WHUP�� PHQWDO� KHDOWK� FULVLV� DVVHVVPHQW� DQG�
VWDELOL]DWLRQ��,W�DOVR�DGGUHVVHV�WKH�QHHGV�RI�FLWL]HQV�LQ�PHQWDO�KHDOWK�FULVLV�ZKR�KDYH�EHHQ�UHIHUUHG�WR�ODZ�
HQIRUFHPHQW�RU�WKH�(PHUJHQF\�'HSDUWPHQW��
�
'XULQJ�ILVFDO�\HDU�������ZH�VDLG�JRRGE\H�WR�)LUH�&KLHI�/DUU\�/DQJVWRQ�DQG�3ROLFH�&KLHI�-LP�3RUWHU��%DWWDOLRQ�&KLHI�
7RGG�5LOH\�ZDV�VHOHFWHG�DV�%HQG¶V�VL[WK�ILUH�FKLHI�DQG�0LFKDHO�.UDQW]�ZDV�VHOHFWHG�DV�WKH�QHZ�3ROLFH�&KLHI�
WKURXJK�DQ�RSHQ�UHFUXLWPHQW�WKDW�LQFOXGHG�FRPPXQLW\�LQSXW�LQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV���%RWK�QHZ�OHDGHUV�DV�ZHOO�DV�
WKHLU�GHSDUWPHQWV�IDFHG�LQFUHDVHG�FKDOOHQJHV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�DV�WKH\�GHDOW�ZLWK�WKH�SXEOLF�KHDOWK�LPSDFWV�RI�WKH�
&29,'�����SDQGHPLF�DQG�ZLOGILUHV�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�VWDWH�
�
(IIHFWLYH�	�(IILFLHQW�&LW\�2SHUDWLRQV�
7R�DFFRPSOLVK�WKH�QXPHURXV�DQG�DPELWLRXV�JRDOV�DGRSWHG�E\�&LW\�&RXQFLO��&LW\�PDQDJHPHQW�GHSHQGV�RQ�D�ZHOO�
UXQ�DQG�HIILFLHQW�VXSSRUW�V\VWHP�WR�GHYHORS�DQG�LPSOHPHQW�WKRVH�JRDOV��'XULQJ�WKH�ILUVW�KDOI�RI�WKH�����������
ELHQQLXP��WKH�&LW\�IRFXVHG�RQ�FRPPXQLW\�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�WKURXJK�VXSSRUW�DQG�LPSURYHPHQW�LQ�WKH�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�
1HLJKERUKRRG�$VVRFLDWLRQV��7KH�&LW\� KDV�DOVR�PDGH�SURJUHVV� LQ� WKH�GHYHORSPHQW� RI�D�GLYHUVLW\��HTXLW\� DQG�
LQFOXVLRQ�SURJUDP�EHJLQQLQJ�ZLWK�DQ�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�DVVHVVPHQW�DQG�IRUPDWLRQ�RI�D�WDVN�IRUFH�WR�LGHQWLI\�QHHGV�DQG�
SULRULWLHV�RI�XQGHUUHSUHVHQWHG�FRPPXQLWLHV��%DVHG�RQ�WDVN�IRUFH�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV��WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�DGRSWHG�DQ�
RUGLQDQFH� LQ� 2FWREHU� ����� WR� FUHDWH� D� +XPDQ� 5LJKWV� DQG� (TXLW\� &RPPLVVLRQ�� 2QFH� WKH� &RPPLVVLRQ� LV�
DSSRLQWHG��WKH\�ZLOO�GHYHORS�D�'(,�DFWLRQ�SODQ�DQG�LGHQWLI\�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�WR�OHYHUDJH�FRPPXQLW\�HIIRUWV�WKURXJK�
IXQGLQJ�DQG�VWDII�VXSSRUW�WKDW�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�LQIOXHQFH�RXU�QH[W�ELHQQLDO�EXGJHW��7KH�&LW\�KDV�DQG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�
PRGHUQL]H�LWV�WHFKQRORJ\��DQG�UHFHQWO\�DQQRXQFHG�WKH�ILUVW�RI�VHYHUDO�SXEOLF�IDFLQJ�V\VWHP�ODXQFKHV�IRU�LWV�2QOLQH�
3HUPLW�&HQWHU�ZKLFK�LV�RSHQLQJ�LQ�'HFHPEHU�������DQG�D�QHZ�XWLOLW\�ELOOLQJ�V\VWHP�LV�VFKHGXOHG�IRU�FRPSOHWLRQ�LQ�
6SULQJ���������
�
&29,'����(IIHFWV�DQG�5HVSRQVH�
�
:KLOH�WKH�&LW\¶V�ORQJ�WHUP�JRDOV�DQG�SODQV�PRYH�IRUZDUG��WKH�VKRUW�WHUP�LPSDFW�RI�WKH�&29,'����SDQGHPLF�LV�
DOVR� D� SULRULW\�� 8QIRUWXQDWHO\�� DV� LV� W\SLFDOO\� WKH� FDVH� GXULQJ� UHFHVVLRQV�� YXOQHUDEOH� SRSXODWLRQV� DUH� EHLQJ�
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FINANCIAL SECTION





Report of Independent Auditors  

Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Bend, Oregon

Bend, Oregon

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Bend, 

Oregon (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise the City¶V�basic financial statements as listed in the table of 

contents.

0DQDJHPHQW¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error.

$XGLWRU¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLW\ 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements��7KH�SURFHGXUHV�VHOHFWHG�GHSHQG�RQ�WKH�DXGLWRU¶V�MXGJPHQW��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the HQWLW\¶V

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the HQWLW\¶V internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 

of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinions.
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2020, and the 

respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 

ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

0DQDJHPHQW¶V�'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV��the 6FKHGXOH�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�3URSRUWLRQDWH�6KDUH�RI�WKH�1HW�

Pension Liability/(Asset), the Schedule of WKH�&LW\¶V�Pension Plan Contributions, the Schedule of the 

&LW\¶V�3URSRUWLRQDWH�6KDUH�RI�WKH�1et OPEB Liability/(Asset), the Schedule of WKH�&LW\¶V�OPEB Plan 

Contributions, WKH�6FKHGXOH�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�7Rtal OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and 

the notes to the Required Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents on pages 4

through 16 and 72 through 75 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 

the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 

applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 

management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 

consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 

opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 

us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary 

comparison information for the General Fund and major special revenue funds, as listed in the Table of 

Contents as Required Supplementary Information, on pages 68 through 71 be presented to supplement 

the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is 

required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 

historical context. The required budgetary comparison information is the responsibility of management 

and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 

prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 

comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 

used to prepare the financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. In our opinion, the required budgetary comparison information is fairly stated, in all material 

respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as whole.

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 

Awards and related notes on pages 189 and 190, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 

Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards, and the other supplementary information on pages 76 through 161,

each as listed in the table of contents (collectively, the supplementary information), are presented for 

purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
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The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 

statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 

the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 

such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 

opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 

financial statements as a whole.

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

FROOHFWLYHO\�FRPSULVH�WKH�&LW\¶V�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��7KH�LQWURGXFWRU\�VHFWLRQ�DQG�VWDWLVWLFDO�

section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 

financial statements.

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion 

or provide any assurance on them. 

Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

December 11, 2020, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on 

our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 

not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of WKH�&LW\¶V�internal control over financial reporting or 

on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 

Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards 

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have also 

issued our report dated December 11, 2020, on our consideration of the City's compliance with 

certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as 

specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 

testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.

James C. Lanzarotta, Partner for

Moss Adams, LLP

Eugene, Oregon

December 11, 2020
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is presented to facilitate financial analysis and provide an
overview of the financial activities of the City of Bend, Oregon (the City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
Information in the MD&A is based on currently known facts, decisions and conditions. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal letter, the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 The City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

at the close of fiscal year by $1,026.6 million (net position). As shown on Table 1-A, $85.8 million is unrestricted

and may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations and pay for daily operations.

 The City's total net position increased by $39.2 million from fiscal year 2018-19 consisting of an increase of

$10.9 million in the net position of governmental activities, and an increase in net position of the business-type

activities of $28.3 million.

 The City’s liabilities and deferred inflows totaled $456.2 million at fiscal year-end. This increase of $76.3 million

from the prior year is due mainly to increases of $14.6 million in the net pension liability, $14.1 million in the

total OPEB liability, $1.6 million in timing of accounts payable and $46.8 million increase in debt due to the

issuance of the 2020 FF&C bonds. 

 The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $125.4 million, an increase of $38.3

million, in comparison to fiscal year 2018-19. Of the combined ending governmental fund balances, $46.5

million, or 37.1%, is available for spending at the City’s discretion subject to Council approved policies

(assigned and unassigned fund balances). 

 The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $13.2 million or 39.3% of total General Fund

expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Basic Financial Statements and Supplementary Information are presented using the integrated approach as
prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. The Basic Financial Statements are
comprised of three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements

The Basic Financial Statements present financial information about the City as a whole and about its activities.
Following the Basic Financial Statements are Required Supplementary Information and Other Supplementary
Information, which provide budgetary comparisons for each fund. Finally, completing the document is a series of
other financial and statistical schedules and the compliance section.

All financial statements are presented in whole dollars. Actual amounts may vary due to rounding.

Note 1. Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to present the financial picture of the City in a manner
similar to a private-sector business, i.e. from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of
accounting.

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets (including infrastructure), and deferred outflows of the City as well
as all liabilities (including long-term debt), and deferred inflows. Net Position is the difference between assets and
deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, which is one way to measure the City’s financial health, or
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position may be an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1. Government-wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The Statement of Activities reports all revenues when earned and expenses when incurred regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. The focus of the Statement of Activities is to present the major program costs, matching major
resources with each. To the extent a program’s costs are not recovered by grants and direct charges, the costs are
paid from taxes and other general revenues. This statement summarizes and simplifies the user’s analysis to
determine the extent to which programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by general revenues. 

The government-wide financial statements distinguish programs/functions of the City that are governmental
(principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues) from those that are business-type (intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges). 

Governmental activities of the City are categorized as follows:

 General government – includes centralized services such as fleet management, information technology, facility

management, public works laboratory, insurance, administration and financial services, legal and risk

management, and other general functions not separately identified as a program.

 Public safety – includes police, fire and emergency medical services.

 Infrastructure – includes the City’s street maintenance operations, street and local improvement construction

and the City’s engineering activities.

 Community and economic development – includes the City’s community development, building inspection,

planning, growth management, community development block grant, affordable housing, tourist promotion, and

economic improvement district activities. 

 Permanent Maintenance – includes the City’s cemetery permanent maintenance collections.

 Urban renewal – consists of the activities of the Bend Urban Renewal Agency.

Business-type activities include the following:

 Water

 Water Reclamation 

 Airport

 Cemetery 

 Parking & Downtown 

 Stormwater

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 - 18 of this report.

Note 2. Fund Financial Statements

Following the government-wide statements is a section containing fund financial statements. The fund financial
statements include statements for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Funds are used to segregate
resources for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All funds of the City can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds are used for essentially the same functions as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. They are prepared
using the current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term funding decisions.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 2. Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The following reconciliations are provided to facilitate a comparison between governmental funds as reported in the
fund financial statements and governmental activities as reported in the government-wide financial statements:

 A reconciliation of the fund balance reported in the governmental funds Balance Sheet to the net position

reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position, and 

 A reconciliation of the change in fund balances reported in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the change in net position reported in the government-wide

Statement of Activities. 

The City has 26 governmental funds. The governmental fund statements present five major funds separately:
General Fund, Streets & Operations Fund, Fire/EMS Fund, System Development Charges (SDC) Fund, and the
Transportation Construction Fund. The other 21 nonmajor funds are combined and presented in a single column as
nonmajor governmental funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 - 22 of this report.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities supported by user charges and where the emphasis is on the
sufficiency of revenues to cover expenses. There are two types of proprietary funds - enterprise funds and internal
service funds. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 - 27 of this report.

The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, water reclamation, airport, cemetery, downtown parking and
stormwater operations. The water and water reclamation funds are presented separately as major funds in the
proprietary fund financial statements while the airport, cemetery, parking & downtown, and stormwater funds are
combined and presented in a single column as nonmajor enterprise funds.

Internal service funds (ISF) are generally used to accumulate and allocate the costs of the City’s central services to
all operating departments. The City has three internal service funds. The City-wide Support ISF includes
administration and financial services, legal and risk management, insurance, information technology, and facility
management. The Departmental Support ISF consists of fleet management, engineering, and public works
laboratory. The ISF - Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Fund accumulates reserves for future payments of
OPEB costs. Because the internal service funds activities predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-
type functions, their assets and liabilities have been included with governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. Fiduciary funds are
not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to
support the City’s own programs. The City’s only fiduciary fund is to collect and pass-through park system
development charges (SDC’s) for Bend Park and Recreation District and state assessments for building permits.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 28 of this report.

Note 3. Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide information that is essential for a full understanding of the data
presented in the government-wide and fund financial statements (the basic financial statements). Information such
as significant accounting policies and detail of certain assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows are included in
the notes, which should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 29 - 67 of this report.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This section discusses and analyzes significant changes from the prior fiscal year in the government-wide financials.

Analysis of Net Position

As previously mentioned, the City’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by
$1,026.6 million at June 30, 2020, an increase of $39.3 million from the prior year. The following is a condensed
statement of net position and an analysis of the change in the City’s financial position from the previous year.

Table 1-A
Net Position as of June 30

(in millions)^

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets $ 174.8 $ 137.8 $ 118.3 $ 135.9 $ 293.1 $ 273.7

Capital assets 549.0 528.5 583.8 536.1 1,132.8 1,064.6

Total assets 723.8 666.3 702.1 672.0 1,425.9 1,338.3

Deferred outflows of resources 51.0 25.0 5.9 3.9 56.9 28.9

Total deferred outflows of resources 51.0 25.0 5.9 3.9 56.9 28.9

Current liabilities 25.6 22.8 17.3 15.2 42.9 38.0

Non-current liabilities 213.3 142.8 196.6 194.8 409.9 337.6

Total liabilities 238.9 165.6 213.9 210.0 452.8 375.6

Deferred inflows of resources 2.7 3.4 0.7 0.9 3.4 4.3

Total deferred inflows of resources 2.7 3.4 0.7 0.9 3.4 4.3

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 476.9 481.5 396.3 346.3 873.2 827.8

Restricted 61.4 29.2 6.2 4.5 67.6 33.7

Unrestricted (5.1) 11.6 90.9 114.2 85.8 125.8

Total net position $ 533.2 $ 522.3 $ 493.4 $ 465.0 $ 1,026.6 $ 987.3

^Actual amounts may vary due to rounding.

Capital assets increased $68.2 million as a result of extensive work on the City’s transportation, water and water
reclamation infrastructure as discussed on page 13. Included in current and other assets above, restricted and
unrestricted cash and investments increased $22.8 million in large part due to the receipt of bond proceeds near
fiscal year end to be used in upcoming construction projects.

Debt increased by $46.7 million as discussed in further detail in the debt administration section on page 14. 

The majority of the net position, (85.1%), is invested in capital assets (land, buildings, infrastructure, etc.) less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
community members; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Analysis of Changes in Net Position

The following is a comparison between the June 30, 2020 and 2019 Statement of Activities.  

Table 2-A
Changes in Net Position for the Year Ended June 30

(in millions)^

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 33.7 $ 35.7 $ 57.4 $ 56.8 $ 91.1 $ 92.5

Operating grants and contributions 24.3 15.7 0.1 - 24.4 15.7

Capital grants and contributions 28.4 20.3 11.0 10.4 39.4 30.7

General revenues:
Taxes 50.1 47.8 - - 50.1 47.8

Franchise fees 11.8 9.6 - - 11.8 9.6

Unrestricted investment income 5.2 4.8 4.8 4.7 10.0 9.6

Total revenues 153.5 133.9 73.3 71.9 226.8 205.9

Expenses
Governmental Activities:

General government 20.0 26.1 - - 20.0 26.1

Public safety 54.6 47.1 - - 54.6 47.1

Infrastructure 33.8 29.5 - - 33.8 29.5

Community and economic
development 22.0 16.5 - - 22.0 16.5

Permanent maintenance - * - * - - - -

Urban renewal 0.9 * 0.3 - - 0.9 0.3

Interest on long-term debt 2.3 1.7 - - 2.3 1.7

Business-type activities:
Water - - 19.7 19.5 19.7 19.5

Water reclamation - - 27.5 22.7 27.5 22.7

Airport - - 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.6

Cemetery - - 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2

Parking & downtown - - 1.3 1.5 1.3 1.5

Stormwater - - 3.5 3.4 3.5 3.4

Total expenses 133.6 121.2 54.0 48.9 187.6 170.2

Revenues over expenses 19.9 12.7 19.3 23.0 39.2 35.5

Transfers (9.0) (9.9) 9.0 9.9 - -

Change in net position 10.9 2.8 28.3 32.9 39.2 35.5

Net position, beginning 522.3 519.5 465.0 432.1 987.1 951.6

Net position, ending $ 533.2 $ 522.3 $ 493.3 $ 465.0 $ 1,026.3 $ 987.1

*Actual amount is too small to report

^Actual amounts vary due to rounding
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $10.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2020. Key
elements of the increase are as follows:

 Program revenues increased by $14.7 million. Charges for services decreased $1.9 million due to decreased

building permit charges and planning fees.  Capital and operating grants and contributions increased $16.7

million due to increases in developer contributions and intergovernmental grant and shared revenues.

 Taxes, franchise fees, and investment income increased $4.9 million due to increases in property taxes of $2.7

million, increases of $3.1 million in tax and franchise fee receipts, and $2.1 million increase in unrestricted

investment income offset by a decrease of $1.4 million in room tax.

 Governmental expenses increased by $12.4 million, primarily in infrastructure and community & economic

development due to increased costs in staffing and professional services as the City increased service levels in

those areas.

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY TYPE
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENSES (in millions of dollars)

* The actual amount for Permanent maintenance and Urban Renewal is too small to report

The chart above compares the revenues, not including any subsidies from the general fund, and expenses for each
of the City’s programs and shows the extent of each program’s dependence on general revenues for support in the
current year.

General government activities include central services such as fleet management, information technology, facility
management, engineering, public works laboratory, insurance, administration and financial services, and legal and
risk management. These programs generate some external revenues but are primarily funded from charges to the
city functions they support.

The Public Safety function (police, fire, and emergency services) generates program revenues as well, but property
taxes and state shared revenues fund the majority of its costs.

Infrastructure is funded with intergovernmental revenues (primarily state gas taxes), developer contributions, SDC's,
grant revenue, and franchise fees.

Community and Economic Development programs are funded with Federal Housing and Urban Development
Department grant revenues, loan repayments, charges for building permits, and development planning and
inspections fees.

Business-type Activities 

As shown in Table 2-A, business-type activities increased the CIty's net position by $28.3 million. Water and water
reclamation contributed $10.4 million and $19.9 million, respectively. Total revenues from business-type activities
increased by $1.4 million from the prior year. Increases in charges for services of $0.6 million are primarily due to
higher water reclamation charges. Capital grants and contributions increased by $0.6 million due to less grant
funding in the Airport as its large construction project wraps up, offset by increased developer contributed assets in
both the water and water reclamation funds.

Business-type expenses increased overall by $5.5 million. Increased salary and benefits accounts for $3.2 million of
this increase, due to an increase in staffing levels and increased cost in benefit programs. In addition, routine costs
for internal charges increased in those funds.  
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business-type Activities  (Continued)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES REVENUES BY TYPE

As shown in the pie chart above, charges for services accounted for 78.3% of total business-type revenue in fiscal
year 2019-20 compared to 79.0% in fiscal year 2018-19.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES REVENUES AND EXPENSES (in millions of dollars)

The graph above shows that revenues for water and water reclamation operations are significantly higher than their
respective direct expenses because water and water reclamation rates have been increased to generate revenues
for infrastructure spending and stabilize rate adjustments over the next five years, and developer contributed assets
are recognized as contribution revenue. Acquisitions of capital assets and principal payments on long-term debt are
not reported as direct expenses, but are reported as additions to assets and reductions to liabilities respectively on
the Statement of Net Position. Cemetery and downtown parking revenues are essentially equivalent to the related
direct expenses as there are minimal capital improvements and minimal debt service for these two operations.
Stormwater operations are funded by a monthly customer fee and allow the City to make needed improvements to
the infrastructure.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

FUND ANALYSIS

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds
The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of
resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental funds reported by the City include the General Fund,
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital Projects Funds and Permanent Funds.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds had combined ending fund balances of $125.4
million which is an increase of $38.3 million from the prior fiscal year. This increase is due to the recognition of
$54.4 million of proceeds from debt issuance plus an increase of $22.4 million in revenues from increases taxes,
franchise fees, intergovernment revenues and grants, system development charges and other charges for services.
These increases were offset by increases in expenditures of $25.6 million across virtually all programs as well as an
increase of $10.6 million in increased capital outlay expenditures.

Of the combined ending fund balance of $125.4 million, $5.1 million was nonspendable related to the assets held for
resale and the Cemetery Permanent Maintenance Fund; $60.8 million was restricted by creditors, grantors or by
law; $12.9 million was committed to specific purposes through City Council adopted resolution or ordinance; $33.3
million was assigned by intent of the City to a specific purpose; and $13.2 million was unassigned and available for
spending by the City within the purposes specified for the City’s funds.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund was $13.2 million, down $0.2 million (1.5%) from the previous year. The unassigned
fund balance represents 69.7% of total General Fund requirements. 

The other major governmental funds are the Streets & Operations Fund, Fire/EMS Fund, the System Development
Charges (SDC) Fund and the Transportation Contstruction Fund. The Streets & Operation Fund's ending fund
balance increased by $0.9 million due to increased revenue from intergovernment grants exceeding increased
spending on capital projects. The Fire/EMS Fund's ending fund balance increased by $0.6 million which is
consistent with the prior fiscal years. The SDC Fund's ending fund balance increased by $6.1 million due to
increased system development charges exceeding increased transfers out to Transportation Construction, Water,
and Water Reclamation for allowable capital projects.

The Transportation Construction Fund increased by $31.2 million as a result of unspent proceeds from debt
issuance net of the increase in capital outlay expenditures.

Proprietary Funds
The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements
where the focus is on the sufficiency of revenues to cover expenses. The City’s two major proprietary funds are the
Water Fund and the Water Reclamation Fund.

The unrestricted net position of the Water Fund at the end of the year amounted to $54.2 million, an increase of
$3.1 million. Net investment in capital assets increased due to a decrease in debt on assets constructed, thereby
increasing the unrestricted fund balance. SDC's generated $3.1 million of revenue and developer contributed
infrastructure totaled $2.6 million.

In the Water Reclamation Fund, the unrestricted net position at the end of the year amounted to $34.2 million,  a
reduction of $(24.1) million. Overall net position increased $19.9 million. In addition, SDC's generated $6.2 million of
revenue and developer contributed infrastructure totaled $5.4 million. 

SDC's are received in the SDC Fund (a major governmental fund) and transferred to the Water and Water
Reclamation Funds as qualifying expenses are incurred. Revenues from these charges decreased in the Water
Fund by (11.4)% and decreased in the Water Reclamation Funds by 1.6%  in fiscal year 2019-20 over fiscal year
2018-19.

Other factors concerning the finances of the proprietary funds can be found in the previous discussion of the City’s
business-type activities.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Original budget compared to final budget

The budgetary statement for the General Fund, which is located on page 68, shows the original budget, final budget,
actual revenues and expenditures, and transfers in and out for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. During the
2019-2021 biennial budget cycle, General Fund budgeted resources changed as follows:

 Budgeted resources decreased by $7.3 million primarily as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic impact on

businesses and community members within the City. Those changes included decreases of $1.2 million in

property taxes, $3.8 in million room taxes, $3.0 million in franchise fees, $1.0 in charges for services offset by

an increase of $1.7 million in intergovernmental grants.

 Budgeted expenditures were reduced by $7.1 million. All City departments and programs were evaluated and,

on average, reduced their operating budgets by 10% in response to the revenue shortfalls. Most reductions

came from reduction of budgeted but vacant positions, deferred capital outlay and reduced interfund transfers

and subsidies are a result of reduced internal services.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2020 the City had invested $1,132.9 million in capital assets, net of depreciation, as reflected in the
following table. This represents a net increase (additions, disposals and depreciation) of $68.4 million.
Governmental capital assets totaled $549.1 million while business-type capital assets totaled $583.8 million.

Capital Assets as of June 30 (in millions)

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Land including right-of-way $ 149.3 $ 149.4 $ 6.4 $ 6.4 $ 155.7 $ 155.8

Land use rights - - 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4

Works of art 0.7 0.7 - - 0.7 0.7

Buildings and improvements 13.0 13.5 16.2 16.2 29.2 29.7

Infrastructure 317.8 308.4 492.7 421.8 810.5 730.2

Vehicles and equipment 10.8 9.8 3.0 3.3 13.8 13.1

Software 5.0 - - - 5.0 -

Construction in progress 52.5 46.6 64.1 87.0 116.6 133.6

$ 549.1 $ 528.4 $ 583.8 $ 536.2 $ 1,132.9 $ 1,064.5

Major construction projects affecting capital assets for fiscal year 2019-20 are as follows:

 Street Construction - Improvement of various street infrastructure projects added $5.8 million to capital assets.

Projects included paving projects designed to improve and extend the life of approximately 80 lane miles of

street surfaces. Developer constructed street infrastructure contributed to the City totaled $7.6 million in the

current year.

 Transportation Construction - $21.8 million went to construction of new streets and transportation projects.

Major projects included substantial completion of the Empire Corridor Modernization improvements, including

the Empire and Purcell Roundabout and the Murphy Corridor improvements including the Murphy and 15th and

Murphy and Parrell Roundabouts and the Murphy Railway Overcrossing. Other improvements included

Citywide safety improvements and construction of Citywide bicycle greenways.

 Water Fund Improvements - $5.7 million was expended on water improvements 2019-2020 included

improvements to the Empire and Murphy Corridors. Developer constructed water infrastructure contributed to

the City totaled $2.6 million in the current year.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

 Water Reclamation Fund Improvements added to capital assets in 2019-2020 were $41.9 million. Significant

projects were Capacity Improvements, the North Intercepter project, Collection System Enhancements and

several individual Pump Station Upgrades and Decommissionings.

 $2.7 million was spent City-wide on various energy efficiency projects including water conservation, heating

and lighting upgrades, street light upgrades and building envelope improvements to reduce the City's carbon

footprint and to reduce energy cots.

Please refer to Note 5 on page 43 of the basic financial statements for further detailed information on capital assets.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of June 30, 2020, the City had $297.4 million in long-term debt and unamortized premiums and discounts, an
increase of $46.7 million from the prior year. The City has an unamortized balance of premiums and discounts on
long-term debt issuances of $17.7 million that are amortized over the life of the associated debt. Debt outstanding
by type at year-end is as follows:

Outstanding Debt as of June 30
(in millions)

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Full faith & credit obligations $ 62.6 $ 16.7 $ 11.5 $ 10.7 $ 74.1 $ 27.4
Revenue bonds - - 45.1 46.8 45.1 46.8
Notes payable 21.7 23.8 120.6 121.7 142.3 145.5
General obligation debt 18.2 19.4 - - 18.2 19.4

102.5 59.9 177.2 179.2 279.7 239.1

Unamortized premiums &
discounts 7.7 1.2 10.0 10.4 17.7 11.6

Total Outstanding Debt $ 110.2 $ 61.1 $ 187.2 $ 189.6 $ 297.4 $ 250.7

The significant changes in long-term debt include proceeds of $49.8 million from the issuance of 2020 full faith and
credit obligations bonds, $0.9 million in full faith and credit debt to finance the ERP project, and $4.2 million for
drawdowns of notes payable from the State of Oregon Department of Environmental Quality to fund construction on
the water reclamation system. This increase was offset by $14.1 million in scheduled principal payments.

Debt Limitation Ratings

Oregon Revised Statutes 287A.050 provides a limit on general obligation bonded indebtedness in excess of 3% of
the real market value of all taxable property within the City. Based on the fiscal year 2019-20 value, the City’s debt
limitation is $654.5 million. The City is well within its debt limitation with an amount of outstanding debt subject to
this limitation of $16.5 million. 

The City of Bend’s long-term bonds are rated by Moody’s Investors Service and/or Standard & Poor's Financial
Services LLC as follows:

Issue Type Global Scale Rating

General Obligation Bonds Aa2
Full Faith and Credit Obligation Bonds Aa2/AA+
Water Revenue Bond Aa2/AA
Sewer Revenue Bond AA

Please refer to Note 11 on pages 52 of the basic financial statements for further detailed information on long-term
debt.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Based on preliminary estimates from Portland State University, the population of the City of Bend as of July 1, 2020,
was 92,840, which is 47% of the population of Deschutes County. As noted in the Transmittal Letter, Bend
continues to be one of the fastest growing cities in the country. Bend's population increased over 21% in the last 10
years and has grown over 75% in the last 20 years. This level of growth has put a huge demand on City services
and City resources.

2019-2021 Biennial Budget
Over the past decade, the City responded to this escalating growth by first addressing infrastructure needs in its
essential services: water and sewer utilities, street maintenance and public safety. In response to community input,
the current City Council goals are focused on addressing the following priorities: economic vitality (including
increasing the housing supply), transportation and infrastructure, public safety and health, and effective and
efficient City operations. The 2019-2021 biennial budget represents an aggressive approach in addressing these
key priorities. In addition, the City is invested in addressing ongoing issues facing our local community such as
homelessness, mental health, and diversity, equity and inclusion (DEI) initiatives. Much work remains to plan for
continued growth, including action on the recently adopted long-term transportation system plan and related
funding package, which includes the recent voter approved $190.0 million General Obligation Bond. Fiscal year
2019-2020 started the process, which will continue for the remainder of the 2019-2021 biennium, and into the
upcoming Council goal setting and budget process for the 2021-2023 biennium.

City Council set ambitious goals for the 2019-2021 biennium, which reflected a biennial budget that adopted a 78%
increase in capital improvement spending from the 2017-2019 biennial budget. The City's five year Capital
Improvement Program in place for fiscal year 2019-20 called for spending $74 million on transportation projects,
$18 million in water system projects and $136 million in water reclamation projects. To meet this increased
expenditure level, the Council approved increases in City fees and rates. Staff were also authorized to issue over
$109M of debt to ensure today’s and future generations equally share in paying for investment and replacement of
aging infrastructure, facilities and equipment. Fee adjustments included increases to utility rates, system
development charges, and franchise fees. The overall financial strategy included reducing certain reserve levels to
address ongoing street maintenance needs and the relative higher cost of deferment.

COVID-19 Response
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the City Manager called for budget reductions and a new forecast of
revenues based on the anticipated financial impact of the pandemic. Significant reductions in room tax revenues,
state-shared revenues for gas taxes, charges for services in parking and General Fund fines and forfeitures were
anticipated. City departments responded by reducing budgets by roughly 10% while maintaining all City services
and existing staffing. Vacant positions were frozen and eliminated, but no staff were laid off. While capital projects
were examined and considered for deferral until after the full impacts of the pandemic were known, long term
projects as identified through community input in transportation system were given priority. Other budget
reductions included deferring the purchase of vehicles and equipment, reduced training and travel, scaling back on
facility improvements that were initially anticipated for a growing workforce, and reducing contractual services. The
City continues to monitor revenues and overall, the revenue forecasts have been fairly accurate into fiscal year
2020-2021.

The City received several COVID-19 related grants that were utilized to maintain City services, update City facilities
for social distancing, to provide personal protective equipment to first responders and to sanitize public facilities to
maintain public health. The City applied for or was allocated approximately $3.5 million in COVID-19 related
funding.  Over $2 million was allocated to local organizations and community partners to provide relief with
business assistance payments, childcare, rent and mortgage assistance and services for the City’s vulnerable
populations.

Throughout the state mandated shutdown, City services continued. There has been no slow down in development
activity and all major construction projects have continued on schedule. In November 2020, voters approved
Measure 9-135 for a $190 million transportation bond to allow the City to continue achieving Council goals set for
this biennium. We anticipate growth and demand in the City to continue if not increase, as flight from large urban
areas becomes more attractive and teleworking opens up long distance employment possibilities.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

ECONOMIC FACTORS (Continued)

Summary 
Bend is evolving into a City of 100,000. We are catching up to growth and creating long-term plans for investments
in transportation and other necessary infrastructure. The 2019-2021 biennial budget continues our path to balanced
economic development, environmental stewardship, housing affordability and our community heritage that
preserves our strength as a desirable, friendly and livable City. Staff continues to work with the City Council to
address community priorities while maintaining the financial health of our organization and being good stewards of
the public funds that are entrusted to us.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

The City’s financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the City’s finances.
Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should
be addressed to Sharon Wojda, City of Bend Chief Financial Officer, at 710 NW Wall Street, Bend, Oregon 97703.
The telephone number for the City’s Finance Department is 541-385-6682.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS





City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 108,239,262 $ 101,588,986 $ 209,828,248
Receivables, net 8,137,717 9,560,659 17,698,376
Due from other governments 2,482,930 270,586 2,753,516
Advances to/from other funds 1,150,000 (1,150,000) -
Restricted cash and investments 33,733,319 6,403,541 40,136,860
Other assets 1,418,026 78,280 1,496,306
Assessments receivable, net 128,403 48,679 177,082
Loans and notes receivable, net 14,339,662 1,408,653 15,748,315
Assets held for resale 4,487,276 - 4,487,276
Non-depreciable capital assets 202,480,579 71,893,815 274,374,394
Depreciable capital assets, net 346,584,906 511,882,305 858,467,211
Net OPEB asset 779,865 126,004 905,869

Total Assets 723,961,945 702,111,508 1,426,073,453

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows from pensions 41,469,090 4,427,344 45,896,434
Deferred outflows from OPEB 9,402,311 1,519,182 10,921,493
Deferred outflows from debt refunding 61,338 - 61,338

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 50,932,739 5,946,526 56,879,265

Liabilities
Accounts payable 7,070,032 5,261,010 12,331,042
Other liabilities 8,434,906 3,009,547 11,444,453
Due to developers 68,360 - 68,360
Deposits 765,079 267,051 1,032,130
Long-term debt due or payable within one year 9,194,828 8,748,125 17,942,953
Net pension liability 63,228,878 10,216,213 73,445,091
Total OPEB liability 49,128,968 7,938,019 57,066,987
Long-term debt due or payable after one year 101,035,596 178,488,695 279,524,291

Total Liabilities 238,926,647 213,928,660 452,855,307

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows from pensions 2,407,822 389,044 2,796,866
Deferred inflows from OPEB 321,826 51,998 373,824
Deferred inflows from debt refunding 34,606 292,399 327,005

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,764,254 733,441 3,497,695

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 476,851,782 396,321,326 873,173,108
Restricted for:

Debt 31,616,032 4,940,915 36,556,947
Capital projects 23,771,527 1,270,000 25,041,527
Affordable housing 3,299,525 - 3,299,525
Tourism 1,436,878 - 1,436,878
Permanent maintenance 697,362 - 697,362
Urban renewal 139,079 - 139,079
Grant activity 474,612 - 474,612

Unrestricted (5,083,014) 90,863,692 85,780,678

Total Net Position $ 533,203,783 $ 493,395,933 $ 1,026,599,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Activities

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Program Revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Government

Direct
Expenses

Charges for
Services

Grants and
Contributions

Grants and
Contributions

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Function/Programs
Governmental Activities:

General government $ 20,015,093 $ 11,953,095 $ 6,327,429 $ - $ (1,734,569) $ - $ (1,734,569)
Public safety 54,577,985 4,468,845 6,053,457 - (44,055,683) - (44,055,683)
Infrastructure 33,833,993 1,783,008 7,684,456 28,417,840 4,051,311 - 4,051,311
Community and economic

development 21,964,377 15,545,434 4,194,622 - (2,224,321) - (2,224,321)
Permanent maintenance 5,303 6,546 - - 1,243 - 1,243
Urban renewal 928,998 - 1,894 - (927,104) - (927,104)
Interest on long-term debt 2,264,602 - - - (2,264,602) - (2,264,602)

Total Governmental Activities 133,590,351 33,756,928 24,261,858 28,417,840 (47,153,725) - (47,153,725)

Business-Type Activities:
Water 19,729,499 20,051,041 23,819 2,646,694 - 2,992,055 2,992,055
Water reclamation 27,526,736 31,057,805 93,238 5,426,647 - 9,050,954 9,050,954
Airport 1,691,303 956,998 383 210,983 - (522,939) (522,939)
Cemetery 294,414 94,509 - - - (199,905) (199,905)
Parking & downtown 1,286,812 1,023,632 507 - - (262,673) (262,673)
Stormwater 3,515,851 4,179,483 116 2,766,991 - 3,430,739 3,430,739

Total Business-Type Activities 54,044,615 57,363,468 118,063 11,051,315 - 14,488,231 14,488,231

Total Activities $ 187,634,966 $ 91,120,396 $ 24,379,921 $ 39,469,155 (47,153,725) 14,488,231 (32,665,494)

General Revenues and Transfers:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose 36,450,847 - 36,450,847
Property taxes, levied for debt service 3,829,945 - 3,829,945
Room taxes 8,801,196 - 8,801,196
Marijuana taxes 1,066,470 - 1,066,470

Franchise fees 11,790,674 - 11,790,674
Unrestricted investment income 5,185,201 4,847,287 10,032,488
Transfers (9,028,996) 9,028,996 -

Total General Revenues and Transfers 58,095,337 13,876,283 71,971,620

Change in Net Position 10,941,612 28,364,514 39,306,126

Net Position, July 1, 2019 522,262,171 465,031,419 987,293,590

Net Position, June 30, 2020 $ 533,203,783 $ 493,395,933 $1,026,599,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

General
Fund*

Streets &
Operations

Fund
Fire/EMS

Fund

System
Development

Charges
(SDC) Fund

Transportation
Construction

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 10,998,353 $ 2,996,792 $ 3,933,817 $ - $ 43,090,488 $ 28,741,654 $ 89,761,104
Restricted cash and investments 1,471,516 28,790 - 20,287,354 2,292,478 9,646,493 33,726,631
Receivables:

Taxes 1,448,737 - 80,554 - - 357,307 1,886,598
Accounts, net 2,193,198 87,296 2,048,332 40,570 344,921 84,466 4,798,783
Assessments receivable, net - - - - - 128,403 128,403
Loans and notes receivable, net 639,656 - - 716,763 - 12,983,243 14,339,662
Interest 1,307,432 - - - - - 1,307,432

Due from other funds 250,000 - - - - - 250,000
Due from other governments 921,132 405,069 930,056 - 920 71,379 2,328,556
Assets held for resale 4,487,276 - - - - - 4,487,276

Total Assets $ 23,717,300 $ 3,517,947 $ 6,992,759 $ 21,044,687 $ 45,728,807 $ 52,012,945 $ 153,014,445

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
(Deficits)

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,029,111 $ 677,912 $ 247,723 $ - $ 4,153,804 $ 517,868 $ 6,626,418
Salaries and benefits payable 326,714 79,200 283,185 - 9,926 141,765 840,790
Retainage payable - 155,198 17,326 - 507,559 7,216 687,299
Due to developers - - - 68,360 - - 68,360
Other accrued liabilities 699,619 - - - - - 699,619
Deposits - restricted 237,080 28,790 - - - 492,521 758,391
Unearned revenue - - - - - 288 288

Total Liabilities 2,292,524 941,100 548,234 68,360 4,671,289 1,159,658 9,681,165

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 635,681 - 45,199 - - 70,521 751,401
Unavailable revenue - ambulance

billings - - 1,474,985 - - - 1,474,985
Unavailable revenue - assessments &

loans 1,844,815 15,695 - 757,333 - 13,119,280 15,737,123

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,480,496 15,695 1,520,184 757,333 - 13,189,801 17,963,509

Fund Balances (Deficits):
Nonspendable 4,487,276 - - - - 697,362 5,184,638
Restricted 1,234,436 374,814 52,524 20,218,994 26,945,854 11,897,612 60,724,234
Committed - - 4,871,817 - - 8,068,576 12,940,393
Assigned - 2,186,338 - - 14,111,664 16,999,936 33,297,938
Unassigned 13,222,568 - - - - - 13,222,568

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 18,944,280 2,561,152 4,924,341 20,218,994 41,057,518 37,663,486 125,369,771

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances
(Deficits) $ 23,717,300 $ 3,517,947 $ 6,992,759 $ 21,044,687 $ 45,728,807 $ 52,012,945 $ 153,014,445

* The General Fund presented here includes the General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund. Details of the combination are at page 145.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 125,369,771

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different
because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore, are

not reported in the funds. 524,322,228
Other assets and deferred outflows of resources are not available to pay for current-period

expenditures and therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Interest receivable 129,891
Deferred outflows of refunded debt 54,590

Deferred revenues are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are
reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds' balance sheet

Unavailable property taxes 751,401
Unavailable assessments and loans 15,737,123
Other unavailable revenues 1,475,273

Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that are not due and payable in the current period,
are not reported in the funds:

Interest payable (405,733)
Accrued compensated absences (3,942,569)
Net pension activity (16,044,393)
Other post-employment benefits (30,925,920)
Accrued health insurance benefits (15,059)
Long-term debt (96,139,496)
Deferred inflows of refunded debt (4,490)

The internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain activities such
as garage, information technology, facility management, engineering, public works
laboratory, insurance, legal and risk management, and administration and financial services
to individual funds. The net position of the internal service funds are reported with
governmental activities. 12,841,166

Total Net Position $ 533,203,783

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

General
Fund*

Streets &
Operations

Fund
Fire/EMS

Fund

System
Development

Charges
(SDC) Fund

Transportation
Construction

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Revenues
Taxes $ 40,919,305 $ - $ 2,623,023 $ - $ - $ 6,569,900 $ 50,112,228
Franchise fees 8,186,174 859,323 - - 1,919,939 825,238 11,790,674
Intergovernmental 3,810,586 8,174,205 6,712,520 - 246,285 1,546,299 20,489,895
Assessments - - - - - 131,601 131,601
Licenses and permits 91,288 - - - - 6,522,915 6,614,203
Charges for services 683,514 184,171 4,315,380 - 8,686 12,136,490 17,328,241
System development charges - - - 18,516,062 - - 18,516,062
Contributions 6,000 - 825 - 204,242 33,030 244,097
Fines and forfeitures 1,081,436 - - - - - 1,081,436
Loan repayments - - - 9,697 - 566,332 576,029
Permanent maintenance fees - - - - - 6,546 6,546
Investment income 738,193 120,024 144,076 1,059,608 488,688 1,675,180 4,225,769
Miscellaneous 10,631 180,677 52,210 - 99 1,958 245,575

Total Revenues 55,527,127 9,518,400 13,848,034 19,585,367 2,867,939 30,015,489 131,362,356

Expenditures
Current:

General government 283,740 - - - - 11,254,338 11,538,078
Public safety 28,665,442 - 27,255,959 - - - 55,921,401
Infrastructure - 10,619,865 - 177,930 3,872,078 324,297 14,994,170
Community and economic

development 3,797,301 - - - - 20,612,698 24,409,999
Permanent maintenance - - - - - 5,303 5,303
Urban renewal - - - - - 600,022 600,022

Debt service:
Principal - 309,773 484,864 - 1,239,368 3,192,257 5,226,262
Interest - 33,670 90,697 - 59,350 1,484,998 1,668,715

Capital outlay 916,547 6,747,854 1,214,450 - 21,345,374 585,077 30,809,302

Total Expenditures 33,663,030 17,711,162 29,045,970 177,930 26,516,170 38,058,990 145,173,252

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 21,864,097 (8,192,762) (15,197,936) 19,407,437 (23,648,231) (8,043,501) (13,810,896)

Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Insurance proceeds 6,335 - - - - - 6,335
Issuance of long-term debt - 1,519,741 1,003,470 - 45,052,660 202,340 47,778,211
Premium on issuance of long-

term debt - 221,872 146,500 - 6,205,091 27,868 6,601,331
Proceeds from sale of capital

assets 215,302 60,940 36,450 - - - 312,692
Transfers in 392,097 7,273,995 14,645,466 - 3,920,510 7,620,339 33,852,407
Transfers out (22,220,029) (44,855) (40,935) (13,275,884) (358,764) (485,575) (36,426,042)

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) (21,606,295) 9,031,693 15,790,951 (13,275,884) 54,819,497 7,364,972 52,124,934

Net change in fund balances 257,802 838,931 593,015 6,131,553 31,171,266 (678,529) 38,314,038

Fund Balances (Deficits), July
1, 2019 18,686,478 1,722,221 4,331,326 14,087,441 9,886,252 38,342,015 87,055,733

Fund Balances (Deficits), June
30, 2020 $ 18,944,280 $ 2,561,152 $ 4,924,341 $ 20,218,994 $ 41,057,518 $ 37,663,486 $ 125,369,771

*The General Fund presented here includes the General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund. Details of the combination are at page 146.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balance $ 38,314,038

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay was greater than depreciation.

Capital asset additions $ 31,450,797
Capital asset disposals (154,322)
Depreciation (19,585,157) 11,711,318

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 10,810,443

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Long-term debt proceeds (54,379,542)
Long-term debt principal repayments 5,226,262

Some expenses (revenues) reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.

Accrued interest payable (238,467)
Amortization of bond premiums and discounts 153,994
Amortization of deferred inflows 4,490
Amortization of deferred outflows (6,824)
Accrued pension expense 4,818,157
Accrued compensated absences (285,678)
Accrued OPEB expense (2,150,585)
Accrued health insurance benefits (354)

The internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain
activities such as garage, information technology, facility management,
engineering, public works laboratory, insurance, legal and risk management,
and administration and financial services to individual funds. The net revenues
and expenses of the internal service funds are reported with governmental
activities. (3,035,640)

Change in Net Position $ 10,941,612

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

22



City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities

Water Fund

Water
Reclamation

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Proprietary

Funds
Internal

Service Funds

Assets
Current assets:

Pooled cash and investments $ 55,643,397 $ 41,183,164 $ 4,762,425 $ 101,588,986 $ 18,478,158
Receivables:

Accounts, net 3,575,063 5,107,169 771,551 9,453,783 15,013
Interest 37,917 68,959 - 106,876 -

Due from other governments 4,164 5,084 261,338 270,586 154,374
Current portion of advances to other funds - - - - 100,000
Other assets 29,840 - - 29,840 348
Prepaids and deposits 48,440 - - 48,440 1,417,678

Total Current Assets 59,338,821 46,364,376 5,795,314 111,498,511 20,165,571

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments 228,305 4,866,490 1,308,746 6,403,541 6,688
Assessments receivable, net - 48,679 - 48,679 -
Loans and notes receivable, net 1,400,000 8,653 - 1,408,653 -
Advances to other funds - - - - 800,000
Capital assets, net 176,850,196 326,281,649 80,644,275 583,776,120 24,743,257
Net OPEB asset 52,086 58,519 15,399 126,004 165,684

Total Noncurrent Assets 178,530,587 331,263,990 81,968,420 591,762,997 25,715,629

Total Assets 237,869,408 377,628,366 87,763,734 703,261,508 45,881,200

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows from pensions 1,830,138 2,056,122 541,084 4,427,344 5,821,435
Deferred outflows from OPEB 627,987 705,530 185,665 1,519,182 1,997,543
Deferred outflows from debt refunding - - - - 6,748

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,458,125 2,761,652 726,749 5,946,526 7,825,726

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 447,234 4,361,243 452,533 5,261,010 443,614
Salaries and benefits payable 82,529 96,006 26,584 205,119 287,598
Retainage payable 92,972 736,723 10,621 840,316 12,754
Other accrued liabilities:

Compensated absences 355,471 444,174 111,820 911,465 1,506,699
Interest payable 206,524 650,886 9,091 866,501 31,950
Insurance claims 1,411 2,539 456 4,406 4,836
Other - 152,605 29,135 181,740 -

Deposits - restricted 228,305 - 38,746 267,051 6,688
Due to other funds - - 250,000 250,000 -
Current portion of advances from other

funds - - 100,000 100,000 -
Current portion of long term debt, net 2,455,186 6,179,639 113,300 8,748,125 3,632,045

Total Current Liabilities 3,869,632 12,623,815 1,142,286 17,635,733 5,926,184

Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds - - 800,000 800,000 -
Net pension liability 4,223,093 4,744,552 1,248,568 10,216,213 13,433,106
Net OPEB liability 3,281,352 3,686,528 970,139 7,938,019 10,437,552
Long-term debt, net 55,152,580 121,525,019 1,811,096 178,488,695 10,458,883

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 62,657,025 129,956,099 4,829,803 197,442,927 34,329,541

Total Liabilities 66,526,657 142,579,914 5,972,089 215,078,660 40,255,725

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Net Position (Continued)

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities

Water Fund

Water
Reclamation

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Proprietary

Funds
Internal

Service Funds

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows from pensions 160,820 180,678 47,546 389,044 511,546
Deferred inflows from OPEB 21,495 24,149 6,354 51,998 68,373
Deferred inflows from debt refunding 292,399 - - 292,399 30,116

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 474,714 204,827 53,900 733,441 610,035

Net Position (Deficit)
Net investment in capital assets 119,014,764 198,576,991 78,729,571 396,321,326 10,642,380
Restricted for:

Debt 64,733 4,866,490 9,692 4,940,915 13,419
Capital projects - - 1,270,000 1,270,000 -

Unrestricted (deficit) 54,246,665 34,161,796 2,455,231 90,863,692 2,185,367

Total Net Position $ 173,326,162 $ 237,605,277 $ 82,464,494 $ 493,395,933 $ 12,841,166

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities

Water Fund

Water
Reclamation

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Proprietary

Funds
Internal

Service Funds

Operating Revenues
Licenses and permits $ - $ - $ 540,900 $ 540,900 $ 256,536
Charges for services 19,925,019 30,990,828 5,234,775 56,150,622 30,475,717
Rental income - - 236,922 236,922 2,203,248
Fines and forfeitures - - 232,999 232,999 -
Loan repayments 91,000 1,381 - 92,381 -
Miscellaneous 20,063 50,194 11,742 81,999 571,758

Total Operating Revenues 20,036,082 31,042,403 6,257,338 57,335,823 33,507,259

Operating Expenses
Salaries and benefits 6,892,269 7,536,161 1,646,963 16,075,393 17,738,217
Materials and supplies 3,518,751 3,220,976 1,163,490 7,903,217 6,183,582
Internal services 2,891,456 5,951,073 1,481,510 10,324,039 3,442,452
Insurance premiums and claims - - - - 2,052,889
Depreciation 4,666,916 8,020,210 2,466,227 15,153,353 1,532,526

Total Operating Expenses 17,969,392 24,728,420 6,758,190 49,456,002 30,949,666

Operating income (loss) 2,066,690 6,313,983 (500,852) 7,879,821 2,557,593

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 2,283,030 2,258,932 305,325 4,847,287 933,432
Insurance proceeds - - - - 16,270
Interest expense (2,357,324) (2,842,206) (73,856) (5,273,386) (331,420)
Amortization 619,168 15,488 1,743 636,399 25,695
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 55,460 11,385 9,174 76,019 6,994

   Noncaptial grants and contributions 23,819 93,238 1,006 118,063 211,158

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 624,153 (463,163) 243,392 404,382 862,129

Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers 2,690,843 5,850,820 (257,460) 8,284,203 3,419,722

Contributions and Transfers
Capital grants and contributions 2,646,694 5,426,647 2,977,974 11,051,315 -
Transfers in 3,126,416 6,242,286 188,094 9,556,796 964,039
Transfers out (114,200) (118,500) (295,100) (527,800) (7,419,401)

Total Contributions and Transfers 5,658,910 11,550,433 2,870,968 20,080,311 (6,455,362)

Change in net position 8,349,753 17,401,253 2,613,508 28,364,514 (3,035,640)

Net Position, July 1, 2019 164,976,409 220,204,024 79,850,986 465,031,419 15,876,806

Net Position, June 30, 2020 $ 173,326,162 $ 237,605,277 $ 82,464,494 $ 493,395,933 $ 12,841,166

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Fund

Water
Reclamation

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Proprietary

Funds

Governmental
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 19,835,516 $ 30,554,578 $ 6,218,690 $ 56,608,784 $ 514,167
Cash received from interfund services provided 147,118 22,234 25,279 194,631 32,277,131
Cash paid to employees for services (5,561,228) (6,424,336) (1,696,788) (13,682,352) (14,584,535)
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (3,652,515) (3,262,196) (1,182,317) (8,097,028) (8,459,411)
Cash paid for interfund services used (2,891,456) (5,951,073) (1,481,512) (10,324,041) (3,442,452)

Net Cash from Operating Activities 7,877,435 14,939,207 1,883,352 24,699,994 6,304,900

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing
Activities
Transfers from other funds 3,126,416 6,242,286 188,094 9,556,796 964,039
Transfers to other funds (114,200) (118,500) (295,100) (527,800) (7,419,401)
Interfund loan proceeds - - 250,000 250,000 -
Interfund loan repayments - - (915,000) (915,000) -
Noncapital grants and contributions 19,655 88,154 385 108,194 100,044

Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities 3,031,871 6,211,940 (771,621) 8,472,190 (6,355,318)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Issuance of debt 1,118,882 4,068,875 706,511 5,894,268 1,132,946
Principal payments on capital debt (1,781,500) (5,911,071) (103,410) (7,795,981) (1,099,175)
Interest payments on capital debt (2,357,685) (2,615,935) (44,525) (5,018,145) (370,429)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (6,187,226) (40,344,837) (3,928,036) (50,460,099) (3,001,462)
Repayment to/from other funds for capital

activities - - (100,000) (100,000) 100,000
Interest paid/received for advances to/from other

funds for capital activities - - (26,000) (26,000) 26,000
Capital grants and contributions 60,341 5,821,492 941,916 6,823,749 -
Insurance proceeds - - - - 16,270
Proceeds from sale of assets 55,460 19,880 9,174 84,514 6,994
Premium on issuance of debt 163,349 - 88,970 252,319 35,242

Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing
Activities (8,928,379) (38,961,596) (2,455,400) (50,345,375) (3,153,614)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment income 647,821 566,481 61,413 1,275,715 260,291

Net Cash from Investing Activities 647,821 566,481 61,413 1,275,715 260,291

Net change in pooled cash and investments 2,628,748 (17,243,968) (1,282,256) (15,897,476) (2,943,741)

Pooled Cash and Investments, July 1, 2019 51,607,745 61,601,171 7,109,515 120,318,431 20,755,446

Pooled Cash and Investments, June 30, 2020 $ 54,236,493 $ 44,357,203 $ 5,827,259 $104,420,955 $ 17,811,705

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Fund

Water
Reclamation

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Proprietary

Funds

Governmental
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Reconciliation of Pooled Cash and Investments
to Statement of Net Position
Pooled cash and investments 55,643,397 41,183,164 4,762,425 101,588,986 18,478,158
Restricted cash and investments 228,305 4,866,490 1,308,746 6,403,541 6,688
less unrealized (gain) loss on investments (1,635,209) (1,692,451) (243,912) (3,571,572) (673,141)

Pooled Cash and Investments 54,236,493 44,357,203 5,827,259 104,420,955 17,811,705

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities

Operating income (loss) $ 2,066,690 $ 6,313,983 $ (500,852) $ 7,879,821 $ 2,557,593
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,666,916 8,020,210 2,466,227 15,153,353 1,532,526
Change in:

Accounts receivable (48,301) (492,670) 14,725 (526,246) 401,520
Loan, notes and assessments receivable - 16,221 - 16,221 -
Prepaids and deposits (8,864) - - (8,864) (1,115,663)
Accounts payable (133,764) (41,220) (18,829) (193,813) (222,938)
Salaries and benefits payable 11,072 4,583 (250) 15,405 20,044
Pension benefits 194,320 46,732 (122,063) 118,989 97,819
Other post-employment benefits 1,044,546 959,683 85,094 2,089,323 2,674,137
Compensated absences payable 81,026 99,922 (12,315) 168,633 378,903
Insurance claims payable 77 905 (291) 691 (17,221)
Prepaids and deposits payable 3,717 10,858 (28,094) (13,519) (1,820)

Net Cash from Operating Activities $ 7,877,435 $ 14,939,207 $ 1,883,352 $ 24,699,994 $ 6,304,900

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities  

The City received donated Water, Water Reclamation, and Nonmajor Enterprise Funds infrastructure totaling $2,586,353,
$5,426,647, $2,766,991, respectively, in the current year.

Acquisition of capital assets financed through accounts payable and retainage payable for the current year totaled $291,177 in
the Water Fund, $4,938,994 in the Water Reclamation Fund, $359,838 in the Nonmajor Enterprise Funds, and $100,539 in the
Internal Service Funds.

The net book value of capital assets contributed to other funds, or gain/(loss) on disposal was $55,460 in the Water Fund,
$11,385 in the Water Reclamation Fund, $9,174 in the Nonmajor Enterprise Funds, and $6,994 in the Internal Service Funds in
the current year.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

Agency Fund

Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,253,795

Total Assets 1,253,795

Liabilities
Amounts held for others 1,253,795

Total Liabilities 1,253,795

Fiduciary Net Position $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Bend, Oregon (the City) have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). GAAP statements require the application of
all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

The Financial Reporting Entity

As required by GAAP, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its component
unit, which is a legally separate organization for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable or a legally separate organization that raises and holds economic resources for the direct benefit of the
primary government. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's
board, and either a) the ability to impose will by the primary government, or b) the possibility that the component unit
will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government. 

The accompanying financial statements present the City of Bend, Oregon (the primary government) and its
component unit, the Bend Urban Renewal Agency. The component unit discussed in the next paragraph is blended
and reported as if it is part of the City. 

Blended Component Unit - The Bend Urban Renewal Agency (BURA), is a legally separate public body corporate
and politic, created by ordinance of the City. The BURA board consists exclusively of members of the City Council.
The City can impose its will on BURA through its ability to modify and approve the budget and govern the overall
policies. The services of BURA are exclusively for the benefit of the City, and the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses related to BURA are reported in the government-wide financial statements. BURA has a June 30 year-
end and unless otherwise noted in this report, the accounting policies of this component unit are consistent with
those described for the primary government.

BURA receives funds through tax increment financing pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 457.420 through
457.450. Separate financial statements for BURA can be obtained from the finance department of the City of Bend,
710 NW Wall Street, Bend, OR 97703.

Organization

The City of Bend, Oregon is a municipal corporation governed by an elected council of seven members. The City
(located in Deschutes County) was organized in 1904 and incorporated in 1905 under Article XI of the State of
Oregon Constitution. The City operates under a council/manager form of government and provides the following
services: police, fire, ambulance, municipal court, community and economic development, building, planning, growth
management, street construction and maintenance, transportation facilities and airport, cemetery, public works and
general government services, and water, water reclamation and stormwater utilities.

Financial Statement Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Activities report information on all activities of the primary
government and its blended component unit. Governmental activities, which are supported by taxes, franchise fees,
intergovernmental revenues and charges for services, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely on fees charged to external parties for services. The City’s Agency fund, which is used to account for money
collected on behalf of the Bend Parks and Recreation District and the State of Oregon, has been excluded from the
government-wide financial statements.

The Statement of Activities presents the direct expenses of a given function/program or business-type activity and
the related program revenues categorized into charges for services, operating grants and contributions and capital
grants and contributions. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program.
Indirect expenses are those costs, usually administrative in nature, that support all City functions and enable direct
services to be provided. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and charges to customers who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or program, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
program. Taxes, franchise fees and investment income and other items not included among program revenues are
reported as general revenues.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial Statement Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements (Continued)
The government-wide financial statements are accounted for using an economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of timing of related cash flows. The City also receives revenue from non-exchange
transactions, in which the City receives value without giving equal value in exchange; including property taxes,
grants, entitlements and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized when all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied. Interfund activity consists of transfers, services provided and/or used, reimbursements, advances,
and loans. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule include interfund services provided and/or used between the
governmental and business-type activities.

All financial statements are presented in whole dollars. Actual amounts may vary due to rounding. 

Fund Financial Statements

The City uses funds to report its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain
functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate funds. Fund
financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds are used to account for most of the City's general activities, including the collection and
disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service
funds), the acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects funds), the legally restricted funds where
only earnings, not principal, may be used for programs (permanent funds).

The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement
focus whereby only current assets and liabilities generally are included in the Balance Sheet, and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance presents increases and decreases in those current fund
balances. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting where revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). 

"Measurable" means the amount can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter (60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities
when due.

The City considers taxes and franchise fees available and susceptible to accrual if they are collected within 60 days
after fiscal year-end.

Intergovernmental revenues are recognized when all eligibility requirements are met. Eligibility requirements for
intergovernmental revenues received on a reimbursement basis (i.e. where monies must be expended on specific
projects or for a specific purpose before any amounts are paid to the City) are determined to be met when the
underlying expenditures are recorded. Eligibility requirements for intergovernmental revenues which are unrestricted
as to purpose of the expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed requirements
are considered to be met at the time of receipt or when susceptible to accrual.

Special assessments and loan repayments are recognized as revenues when received. 

Licenses and permits, charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are recognized as revenues when received
because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The following are the City’s major governmental funds:

General Fund –  The General Fund accounts for the following operations: police, municipal court, code
enforcement, growth management, accessibility, as well as allocation of general discretionary revenues and
other general services of the City not accounted for in any other fund. Principal sources of revenue are property
taxes, room taxes, franchise fees, intergovernmental revenues and municipal court fines. 

Streets & Operations Fund – This fund accounts for the City’s street and transportation operations, including
street preservation, repair and maintenance, street lighting and landscaping. Resources consist primarily of
state highway fund apportionment and support from the General Fund.

Fire/EMS Fund – This fund accounts for the City's fire suppression, prevention and emergency medical
services. Revenues include General Fund support, the May 2014 voter approved fire local option levy, charges
for emergency medical services, Firemed memberships and fire protection contracts. 

System Development Charges (SDC) Fund – This fund accounts for the collection of SDC’s for the City’s
street, water, and water reclamation systems. SDC’s are fees collected for capital improvements to increase
city-wide capacities for water, water reclamation, and transportation. Revenues are used to fund eligible
construction projects.

Transportation Construction Fund – This fund accounts for the construction of streets, bridges, and trails.
The principal sources of revenue are franchise fees, transfers from the SDC Fund, and proceeds from
borrowings.

In addition, the City also reports the following governmental fund types:

Special Revenue Funds – These funds account for revenue sources that are restricted or committed to
finance particular functions or activities.

Debt Service Funds – These funds account for resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to the
payment of principal and interest on urban renewal bonds, special assessment bonds, general obligation
bonds, fire station bonds and pension obligation bonds.

Capital Project Funds – These funds account for revenue sources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to capital projects. 

Permanent Funds – These funds account for resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s programs. 

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector where the
determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Goods or services from such
activities can be provided either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments of the City (internal
service fund). Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the funds’ on-going operations.
The principal operating revenues are charges to customers. Operating expenses include cost of materials and
supplies, personnel costs, administration expenses and depreciation. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the Statement of Fund Net Position. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund
types where revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Proprietary Funds (Continued)

The following are the City’s major enterprise funds:

Water Fund – This fund accounts for the maintenance, operation and construction of the City's water intake,
purification and delivery systems. The principal sources of revenue are user fees and system development
charges.

Water Reclamation Fund – This fund accounts for the maintenance, operation and construction of the City’s
wastewater collection and treatment system. The principal sources of revenue are user fees and system
development charges.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

Internal Service Funds – The Internal Service Funds account for those activities and services furnished
internally to other departments within the City on a cost reimbursement basis. Charges are made to the various
departments to support these activities. The City has three internal service funds. The City-wide Support
Internal Service Fund includes administration and financial services, legal and risk management, insurance,
information technology, and facility management. The Departmental Support Internal Service Fund consists of
fleet management, engineering, and public works laboratory. The facility management, engineering, public
works laboratory and administration and financial services divisions also charge external customers fees for
services. The Internal Service Fund-Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) accumulates reserves for future
payments of OPEB costs. 

Fiduciary Fund

Assets held in a trustee capacity for others and not used to support the City’s own programs qualify as fiduciary.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the City’s own programs. The City has the following fiduciary fund:

Agency Fund – The agency fund accounts primarily for the assets and liabilities of various monies received on
behalf of the Bend Parks and Recreation District and the State of Oregon. Agency activity is custodial in nature
and does not involve the measurement of results of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, deferred outflows
of resources, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures or expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Investments

The City maintains a common cash and investment pool for all City funds. The types of investments in which the
City may invest are restricted by State of Oregon statutes and a Council adopted investment policy. Authorized
investments include general obligations of the United States Government and its agencies, obligations of the States
of Oregon, California, Idaho and Washington that have a rating of AA- (or equivalent) or better, A-1 rated
commercial paper and banker’s acceptances, AA (or equivalent) rated corporate bonds, time deposits, repurchase
agreements and the State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool. Investments in the State of Oregon’s
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are considered short-term and highly liquid where the remaining maturity
at the time of purchase is one year or less and are stated at fair value. Fair value of the investment in the LGIP is
the same as the value of the pool shares. The LGIP is governed by the Oregon Short Term Fund Board and audited
by the Secretary of State, Audits Division. 

All investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined as the quoted market price, if available; otherwise
the fair value is estimated based on the amount at which the investment could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties. Earnings on pooled cash and investments are credited to each fund monthly

32



City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Investments (Continued)

based on the average daily balance of each participating fund. Pooled cash and investments have the general
characteristics of a demand deposit account in that any participating fund may deposit additional cash at any time
and may also withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments are those whose use is restricted to specific purposes by state statute, bond
indenture or otherwise. At June 30, 2020, the City had $55,945,598 of cash and investments restricted for debt
service, construction, building, tourism, permanent maintenance, Urban Renewal, grant activity, and deposits.

Receivables 

Property taxes are assessed on a July 1st - June 30th fiscal year basis. Assessed valuation and tax levies are
certified by the County Assessor in mid-October and property owners have the option of paying the full amount by
November 15th or prior to February 15 th and receiving a discount or paying in three installments, November 15th,
February 15th and May 15th. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on July 1st and are considered delinquent if
not paid by the following May 15th. The Deschutes County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities
within the County. Tax revenue is considered received when in the hands of the County as the intermediary
collection agency. In the governmental funds, tax revenue is recognized when collected and available to the City.
Taxes receivable at June 30th, less tax collections received within sixty days subsequent to year end, are recorded
as unavailable revenue. Management has determined that an allowance for uncollectible accounts is not required
for property taxes. All other receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Assessment receivables consist of assessments in both governmental funds for downtown economic improvements
and enterprise funds for local utility improvements and are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts
based on past performance of uncollectible accounts.

Governmental fund loans and notes receivable consist of grant-funded loans for building permits and energy
efficiency upgrades (which due upon sale or transfer of the property), community block development loans to
qualified individuals to promote affordable housing and affordable housing loans to qualified organizations to build
affordable housing in the City. Other loans consist of promissory notes for system development charges, for the sale
of transit facilities and for the sale of water system assets, with terms ranging from 1 to 20 years and interest
ranging from 0% to 7%.  Loans are secured by the liens on real property.

Other receivables consist primarily of water, sewer, and stormwater utility receivables; but, also include ambulance,
court, community development, and airport receivables. Ambulance and court receivables at June 30, less
collections received within sixty days subsequent to year end, are recorded as unavailable revenue. In the
proprietary funds, receivables include services provided, for which payment has  not yet been received. 

The enterprise funds’ receivables include billings for residential and commercial customers utilizing the City’s water,
sewer, and storm water services and are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts based on past
performance of uncollectible accounts. To address for potential impacts of COVID-19, the City increased allowance
for uncollectible amounts where appropriate.

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue as deferred inflows in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognitions in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. 

Due from Other Governments

Due from other governments are amounts due primarily from granting agencies. The largest amount relates to
receivables from the State of Oregon for state shared revenues in the General Fund and the Streets & Operations
Fund. Other amounts include receivables from the Oregon Department of Human Services to the Ground
Emergency Medical Transportation Program in the Fire/EMS Fund, from the Oregon Department of Administrative
Services for Coronavirus relief, and from the Federal Aviation Administration for grant supported projects at the
Airport, 
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 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories and Prepaid Items (Other Assets)

Within the proprietary funds, inventories are valued at lower of cost or market using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)
method and are accounted for using the consumption method. Within the governmental funds, inventories are
accounted for using the purchases method.

Within the proprietary funds, prepaid items are accounted for using the consumption method. Within the
governmental funds, prepaid items are accounted for using the purchases method.

Assets Held for Resale

Assets held for resale, including Juniper Ridge development costs, are recorded at lower of cost or market. 

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Capital assets include land, right-
of-ways, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, vehicles and equipment costing over $10,000 with an estimated
life in excess of one year. Maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or extend the assets’
lives are charged to expense as incurred and are not capitalized. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related capital assets,
except for land, right-of-ways, land use rights and works of art which are considered inexhaustible in nature and are
not depreciated. The estimated useful lives of the various categories of assets are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5 to 75 years
Infrastructure 10 to 75 years
Vehicles and equipment 3 to 20 years

Upon disposal of capital assets, the accounts are relieved of the related historical costs and accumulated
depreciation, and if appropriate, resulting gains or losses are recognized.

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable to vendors and contractors include general accounts payable and other accrued liabilities not
included in short-term or long-term liabilities. The City also reports retainage payable in connection with vendor
contracts.

Other Liabilities

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits. There
is no liability reported for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City by policy does not pay out sick leave banks
when employees separate from service with the City. All vacation pay, and related payroll benefits, is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported
in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of termination or retirement. All
compensated absences are paid by the individual funds as they become due. The General Fund and Fire/EMS
Funds are primarily responsible for payment of this liability for the Governmental Activities. 

Due to Developers

Due to developers is a liability associated with the improvement fee portion of the SDC charge that a developer can
be granted a credit for on acceptance of a Qualified Public Improvement.

Pension Plan

The City reports its proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement
System (OPERS). For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of OPERS and the additions
to/deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have remained on the same basis as reported by OPERS.
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Pension Plan (Continued)

For this purpose, benefit payments by PERS (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value by OPERS.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits
Other Than Pensions (OPEB), the City’s total OPEB liability and net OPEB assets are actuarially determined and
are recognized as a long-term liability and asset in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary
funds statements. Please refer to Note 15 for more information.

Long-term Debt 

Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Position and proprietary fund financial statements.
The related bond discounts and premiums are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the straight-
line method. In the governmental fund financial statements, the bond discounts and premiums are recognized when
incurred and not deferred. The face amount of the debt issued and premiums received are reported as other
financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. 

Adoption of New and Future GASB Pronouncements

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the City implemented the following GASB Pronouncements:

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. Issued in May of
2020, the primary objective of this statement is to provide relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the
COVID-19 pandemic by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation
Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018 or
later. Accordingly, the City did not implement any new pronouncements this fiscal year.

The following GASB pronouncements have been issued, but are not effective as of June 30, 2020:

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Issued January 2017, this statement establishes criteria for identifying
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. GASB 84 will be effective for the City, fiscal year ending June

30, 2021.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Issued June 2017 to better meet the information needs of financial statement
users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. and increases the usefulness of
governments' financial statements. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of
resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities.
GASB Statement No. 87 will be effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests. Issued August 2018, the primary objective of this statement is to
improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization; and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. GASB
Statement No. 90 will be effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. Issued May 2019, the primary objectives of this Statement are
to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice
associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations,
and (3) related note disclosures. GASB Statement No. 91 will be effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30,
2023.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. Issued January 2020, the primary objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature
by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of GASB Statements.
This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to leases implementation, derivative
instruments, postemployment benefits (pensions and other post-employment benefits [OPEB]), asset retirement
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Adoption of New and Future GASB Pronouncements (Continued)

obligations, risk pool and fair value measurements. GASB Statement No. 92 will be effective for the City of Fiscal
years ending June 30, 2022 (for paragraphs 6 and 7) and June 30, 2023 (paragraphs 8, 9 and 12). In additions,
paragraph 10 will be effective for government acquisitions occuring in reporting periods ending in fiscal year June
30, 2022. 

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. Issued March 2020, the primary objective of this
statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the
replacement of an IBOR. GASB statement No. 93 will be effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnership and Availability Payment Arrangements.
Issued March 2020, the primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues
related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). It also provides guidance for
accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements (APAs). GASB Statement No. 94 will be
effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs). Issued May 2020,
the primary objective of this Statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments).This
statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscriptions asset - an
intagible assets - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other
than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding
a SBITA, GASB Statement No. 96 will be effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 84,
and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase
consistency and comparability related to the reporting of the fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a
potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a
governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined
contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit
plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fudiciary component unit in
fiduciary fund financial statement; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting
and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457
plans) that meet the definition of a pension lan and for benefits provided through those plans. GASB No. 97 will be
effective for the City for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Statement and effective
immediately, however, the City has determind that it has no component units that meet the definitions of these
paragraphs. 

The City of Bend will implement new GASB pronouncements no later than the required effective date. The City is
currently evaluating whether or not the above listed new GASB pronouncements will have a significant impact on the
City's financial statements.
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Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, the city reports deferred outflows of
resources in the Statement of Financial Position in a separate section following Assets. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City
reports deferred outflows from pensions, OPEB, and debt refundings as deferred outflows on the statement of
financial position. The deferred outflows from pensions and OPEB are for plan contributions made subsequent to
the measurement date of the pension liability and OPEB asset, as presented, and the deferred outflow from debt
refundings represents the unamortized carrying value from the refunding.

Similarly, the Statement of Financial Position reports deferred inflows of resources in a separate section following
Liabilities. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The City reports deferred inflows from pensions, OPEB, and debt refundings as deferred inflows on the
statement of financial position. The deferred inflows from pension are for investment differences between the liability
and assets. The deferred inflow from debt refundings represents the unamortized carrying value from bond
refundings. The City also presents unavailable revenue as a deferred inflow of resources on the governmental funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from multiple sources: property taxes,
ambulance billings, and assessments and loans receivable. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

Net Position/Fund Balance

Net Position

In the financial statements, assets in excess of liabilities are presented in one of two ways depending on the
measurement focus of the statement. On the Statement of Net Position for government-wide reporting and for the
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds’ Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, net position is segregated into three
categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. 

Net investment in capital assets represents total capital assets less accumulated depreciation and capital related
debt and net of unspent bond proceeds. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources directly
related debt should also be included in this section. Significant unspent deferred inflows of resources should not be
included. 

Restricted net position represents net position that is not subject solely to the government’s own discretion.
Restrictions may be placed on net position by an external third party that provided the resources, by laws or
regulations of other governments, by enabling legislation, by endowment agreements, or by the nature of the asset.
Unspent bond proceeds for capital projects are used in the calculation of restricted net position. 

Unrestricted surplus (deficit) net position represent amounts not included in other categories. 

Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, the fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise
a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Fund balance is reported as nonspendable when the resources cannot be spent because they are either legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact, or are in a nonspendable form such as assets held for resale.

Fund balance is reported as restricted when the constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a) externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Fund balance is reported as committed when the City Council passes a resolution that places specific constraints on
how the resources may be used. The City Council can modify or rescind the resolution at any time through passage
of an additional resolution.

Resources that are constrained by the government’s intent to use them for a specific purpose, but are neither
restricted nor committed, are reported as assigned fund balance. The City has a formal policy adopted by resolution
that designates the authority to assign the fund balance in the General Fund to the Finance Director. When the
adopted budget calls for spending down the existing fund balance in the ensuing biennium, an assignment is
created through the budget process in the amount of that appropriation. 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification represents fund
balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned within the General Fund. This classification is also
used to report any negative fund balance amounts in other governmental funds. 

Finally, GASB Statement No. 54 requires a spending policy, as it relates to ending fund balance. The following
hierarchy applies to the order in which funds are spent in all governmental funds:

1. Restricted Fund Balance
2. Committed Fund Balance
3. Assigned Fund Balance
4. Unassigned Fund Balance

City Council authorized the establishment of a stabilization reserve in fiscal year 2009-10 to provide temporary
support to minimize the impacts to community members of severe economic downturns or major unforeseen events
(as determined by Council action) where a significant portion of revenues supporting critical basic operations are
projected to decline for more than 2 years or permanently, and such decline cannot be absorbed by the department
or fund. In these events, the City will need time to affect reductions, consolidate operations, reprioritize critical
programs or implement an alternate revenue source. The General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund will provide
temporary support to minimize the impacts to community members who rely on these critical operations. The
Stabilization Fund will also be maintained to protect and enhance the City’s credit rating. Additions to the
stabilization reserves may include investment earnings and excess revenues and/or additional allocations from
other funds. The stabilization funds may be spent for City Council approved temporary support for critical basic
services and operations meeting the General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund Policy. The reserves at the end of
the 2017-2019 biennium exceeded the target of 17%, and use of those reserves is reflected in the 2019-2021
biennial budget. During June 2019, the City Council amended the fiscal policies to reduce the targeted ending
reserve balance from 17% to 16% of the General Fund operating budget for the 2019-2021 biennium. The reduction
in reserves is related to increased funding for transportation system improvements. Per the City Council adopted
budget for the 2019-2021 biennium, the City will maintain General Fund unassigned reserves of at least 16% of the
operating budget of the General Fund for the 2019-2021 biennium. Reserve balances in the General Fund Revenue
Stabilization Fund will be considered when evaluating total General Fund reserve levels. Funding of General Fund
reserves will generally come from excess revenues over expenditures or one-time revenues. Ending reserve levels
will be evaluated annually and undesignated reserve balances in excess of the 16% target will be dedicated to
improving the condition of the City’s street and transportation system. The reserve balances in the General Fund
and the General Stabilization Fund were $9,256,859 and $3,965,709 as of June 30, 2020 and represents 26% of the
General Fund annual operating budget for the 2019-2021 biennium. 
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Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental fund balances by classification for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:

General
Fund

Streets &
Operations

Fund
Fire/EMS

Fund

System
Development

Charges
(SDC) Fund

Transportation
Construction

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Nonspendable

Assets held for resale $ 4,487,276 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 4,487,276
Permanent maintenance funds - - - - - 697,362 697,362

Restricted for
External grantor covenant - - - - - 474,612 474,612
Outside debt covenant - - - - - 6,521,899 6,521,899
Outside construction covenant - - - - 2,292,478 1,260,055 3,552,533
State law revenue restriction 1,234,436 - - 20,218,994 - 3,641,046 25,094,476
Debt - 374,814 52,524 - 24,653,376 - 25,080,714

Committed
Fire service agreements - - 4,871,817 - - - 4,871,817
Planning support services - - - - - 8,068,576 8,068,576

Assigned
Construction activities - 2,186,338 - - 14,111,664 1,887,849 18,185,851
Building support services - - - - - 13,694,982 13,694,982
Community development

operations - - - - - 120,517 120,517
Debt service - - - - - 596,852 596,852
Reserves for police operations - - - - - 699,736 699,736

Unassigned 13,222,568 - - - - - 13,222,568

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) $18,944,280 $ 2,561,152 $ 4,924,341 $20,218,994 $ 41,057,518 $ 37,663,486 $125,369,771

Stewardship

Municipal budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 294 – Local Budget Law).
Any deviation between Oregon Budget Law and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) are treated as
reconciling items on the budget to actual schedules. The City Manager is responsible for submitting a proposed
budget to the Budget Committee comprised of the City Council and an equal number of citizens of the City. The City
is required to prepare a budget for each fund that is balanced in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes. Each
fund is budgeted on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The Budget Committee conducts public hearings for the purpose of obtaining citizens’ comments, and then
approves a budget and submits it to the City Council for final adoption. The approved expenditures for each fund
may not be increased by more than 10 percent by Council without returning to the Budget Committee for a second
approval. After the Council adopts the budget and certifies the total ad valorem taxes to be levied, no additional tax
levy may be made for that budget period.

The City Council legally adopts the biennial budget by resolution before July 1 of odd numbered years. The
resolution establishes appropriations for each fund and sets the level by which expenditures and other uses cannot
legally exceed appropriations. In the General Fund and the Internal Service Fund, the levels of budgetary control
established by resolution are set at the program/division level. For all other funds, the levels of budgetary control are
personal services, materials and services, debt service, capital outlay, transfers and operating contingency. 

Appropriations lapse at of the end of the biennium for goods or services not yet received. The City Council may
modify the budget by transferring appropriations between levels of control and by adopting supplemental budgets.
Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget. Some
supplemental budgets require hearings before the public, publications in newspapers and approval by the City
Council. Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by the use of appropriation transfers between the
levels of control. Such transfers require approval by the City Council. Supplemental appropriations were approved
by the City Council for the 2019-21- biennium. All appropriations terminate on June 30, 2021.
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 2 -  Cash and Investments

At June 30, 2020, the City’s cash and investments are comprised of the following:

Cash on hand $ 4,396
Deposits with financial institutions 5,241,621
Deposits with trust custodians 723,760
State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool 37,157,868

Total cash and cash equivalents 43,127,645
Investments:

U.S. agency obligations 143,147,528
Obligations of the States of Oregon, California and Washington 21,524,248
Corporate notes 43,419,482

Total Investments 208,091,258

Total pooled cash and investments $ 251,218,903

Cash and investments are reflected on the basic financial statements as follows:

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Agency Fund Total

Pooled cash and investments $ 108,239,262 $ 101,588,986 $ 1,253,795 $ 211,082,043
Restricted cash and investments 33,733,319 6,403,541 - 40,136,860

$ 141,972,581 $ 107,992,527 $ 1,253,795 $ 251,218,903

Deposits with Financial Institutions 

The City’s cash deposits with financial institutions are in a public funds checking account and a public funds savings
account that is insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The total cash in
bank as of June 30, 2020 was $7,490,093, of these deposits $7,240,093 was not insured by the FDIC. The
uninsured cash deposits are part of the Public Funds Collateralization Program. ORS Chapter 295 governs the
collateralization of Oregon public funds and provides the statutory requirements for the Public Funds
Collateralization Program. Bank depositories are required to pledge collateral against any public funds deposits in
excess of deposit insurance amounts. This provides additional protection for public funds in the event of a bank
loss. ORS Chapter 295 sets the specific value of the collateral, as well as the types of collateral that are acceptable.
ORS Chapter 295 creates a shared liability structure for participating bank depositories, better protecting public
funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 100% protected.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means to limit exposure to fair value loss arising from interest rates, the City’s investment policy requires that
the City’s investments mature within seven years. Actual investment maturities for the City are as follows:

Maturity
Actual at

June 30, 2020
Actual at

June 30, 2020

Less than 30 days $ - %-
Less than 12 months 39,313,259 %19
Less than 18 months 20,163,016 %10
Less than 7 years 148,614,983 %71

$ 208,091,258 %100

As of June 30, 2020 the weighted-average maturity of the City's investment portfolio was 1.93 years. 

Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to specific bond ratings as
determined by nationally recognized rating agencies. Commercial paper must be rated at least A-1 by Standard &
Poor’s, P-1 by Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch at the time of purchase by each service which rates the commercial paper.
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Credit Risk (Continued)

Corporate bonds must be rated at least AA- by Standard & Poor’s, Aa3 by Moody’s, or AA by Fitch. In addition,
ownership of commercial paper and corporate bonds is limited to a combined total of 35% of the portfolio with no
more than 5% of the portfolio held in any one issuer. At June 30, 2020, the City was in compliance with the above
policy requirements with commercial paper and corporate bonds totaling 21% of the portfolio. Investments in
obligations of the States of Oregon, California, Idaho and Washington must be rated AA- (or an equivalent rating) or
better and ownership of such obligations is limited to 25% of the portfolio with no more than 5% held in any one
issuer.

The State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool and money market account are unrated. Investments held
at June 30, 2020 are categorized by rating as follows:

Investor Service Rating
U.S. Agency
Obligations

State / Local
Obligations Corporate Notes

Prime (AAA, Aaa, AAA)* $ 140,161,803 $ 10,265,370 $ 10,153,715
High Grade (AA, Aa, AA)* - 11,258,878 28,566,457
Upper Medium Grade (A, A, A)* - - 4,699,310
High Grade Short-term (A-1, P-1, F1)* 2,985,725 - -

$ 143,147,528 $ 21,524,248 $ 43,419,482

* Respectively, the rating agencies are as follows: Standard & Poor's, Moody's, Fitch.

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-
dealer) to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are
in the possession of another party. The City’s investment policy limits its exposure to custodial credit risk by
requiring that all security transactions entered into by the City be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment basis.
Securities are to be held by a third party custodian in a segregated account in the City's name. For each transaction,
the broker or securities dealer issues a confirmation ticket to the City listing the specific instrument, issue, rating,
coupon, maturity, CUSIP number, purchase or sale price, yield, transaction date, and other pertinent information. At
June 30, 2020, the City does not have investments exposed to custodial credit risk.

Fair Value Measurement

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, specifies a hierarchy of valuation classifications
based on whether the inputs to the valuation techniques used in each valuation classification are observable or
unobservable. These classifications are summarized in the three broad levels listed below:

 Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability

either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active,

quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted

prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as exchange rates, financing terms, interest rates,

yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risk and default rates).

 Level 3 – Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which significant inputs or significant valuation drivers

are unobservable.

Total

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

(Level 1)

Other
Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 3)

June 30, 2020
US Treasury Securities $ 26,796,601 $ 26,796,601 $ - $ -
Federal Agency Securities 116,350,927 - 116,350,927 -
Corporate Notes 43,419,482 - 43,419,482 -
Municipal Bonds 21,524,248 - 21,524,248 -

Total assets $ 208,091,258 $ 26,796,601 $ 181,294,657 $ -
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 3 -  Receivables

Receivables as of  June 30, 2020 are as follows:
Governmental Activities

General
Fund

Streets &
Operations

Fund
Fire/EMS

Fund

System
Development

Charges
(SDC) Fund

Transportation
Construction

Fund
Other
Funds

Internal
Service
Funds Total

Taxes receivable $ 1,448,737 $ - $ 80,554 $ - $ - $ 357,307 $ - $ 1,886,598
Accounts receivable 7,160,759 119,450 6,351,761 40,570 420,628 102,098 15,156 14,210,422
Interest receivable 1,307,432 - - 2,193 - 127,698 - 1,437,323
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,967,561) (32,154) (4,303,429) - (75,707) (17,632) (143) (9,396,626)

Receivables, net $ 4,949,367 $ 87,296 $ 2,128,886 $ 42,763 $ 344,921 $ 569,471 $ 15,013 $ 8,137,717

Business-type Activities

Water Fund

Water
Reclamation

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds Total

Accounts receivable $ 4,514,775 $ 6,366,263 $ 988,917 $ 11,869,955
Interest receivable 37,917 68,959 - 106,876

Total receivables 4,552,692 6,435,222 988,917 11,976,831
Allowance for doubtful accounts (939,712) (1,259,094) (217,366) (2,416,172)

Receivables, net $ 3,612,980 $ 5,176,128 $ 771,551 $ 9,560,659

Loans, Assessments, and Notes Receivable

Assessments receivable consist of amounts levied against benefited property owners for the cost of public
improvements and attach as an enforceable lien on the property until paid. All the City’s assessment loans are
made over a period of 10 years and bear interest ranging from 1.50% to 7.00%. Promissory notes consist of System
Development Charge (SDC) deferrals and loans over a period of 9 months to 10 years and bear interest ranging
from 0.00% to 12.00%, building permit and energy efficiency upgrade deferrals due upon the sale/transfer of the
property with no interest, and Community Development and Affordable Housing loans with variable terms.

Assessments, loans and notes receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2020:

Assessments Receivable
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities

Assessments receivable for downtown economic improvements $ 128,403 $ -
Assessments receivable for local improvements, 10 year terms with 5% to 7.0% interest - 64,905
Allowance for uncollectible assessments - (16,226)

Total assessments receivable 128,403 48,679

Loans and Notes Receivable

Promissory notes receivable for system development charges, 5 to 10 year terms with
6.0% to 7.0% interest 129,339 11,537

Promissory notes receivable for system development charges due upon sale/transfer,
0% to 3.0% interest 587,424 -

Promissory notes receivable for building permits and energy efficiency upgrade
deferrals due upon property sale/transfer, 0% interest 133,068 -

Community development block grant loans to qualified individuals or organizations,
various terms with 0% to 5.0% interest 5,914,815 -

Affordable housing loans to qualified organizations, various terms with various interest 6,935,361 -
Promissory note receivable for sale of transit facilities to Central Oregon

Intergovernmental Council (C.O.I.C.), 20 year term, 0% interest 639,656 -
Promissory note receivable for the sale of Juniper Utility assets to Roats Water System,

Inc., 20 year term, 6.5% interest - 1,400,000
Allowance for uncollectible loans and notes receivable - (2,884)

Total loans and notes receivable 14,339,663 1,408,653

Total assessments, loans and notes receivables $ 14,468,066 $ 1,457,332
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 4 -  Assets Held for Resale

The City has land and improvements to land held for resale in the Juniper Ridge Urban Renewal Area.

Governmental activities
Balance

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases Transfers
Balance

June 30, 2020

Assets held for resale $ 4,487,276 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,487,276

 5 -  Capital Assets

Governmental capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Governmental activities
Balance

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases Transfers
Balance

June 30, 2020

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land including right-of-way $ 149,416,860 $ 21,530 $ (154,322) $ - $ 149,284,068
Land use rights 9,994 - - - 9,994
Works of art 719,215 - - - 719,215
Construction in progress 46,608,069 30,983,879 - (25,124,644) 52,467,304

Total capital assets not depreciated 196,754,138 31,005,409 (154,322) (25,124,644) 202,480,581

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 26,322,677 341,392 - 152,300 26,816,369
Infrastructure 563,680,853 7,623,717 - 19,534,941 590,839,511
Vehicles and equipment 26,627,524 3,060,799 (1,218,855) 147,908 28,617,376
Software 879,629 - - 5,289,495 6,169,124

Total capital assets being depreciated 617,510,683 11,025,908 (1,218,855) 25,124,644 652,442,380

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 12,854,669 946,785 - 232 13,801,686
Infrastructure 255,315,564 17,754,806 - (23,826) 273,046,544
Vehicles and equipment 16,796,499 2,246,159 (1,218,855) 23,594 17,847,397
Software 879,629 282,220 - - 1,161,849

Total accumulated depreciation 285,846,361 21,229,970 (1,218,855) - 305,857,476

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 331,664,322 (10,204,062) - 25,124,644 346,584,904

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 528,418,460 $ 20,801,347 $ (154,322) $ - $ 549,065,485

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Governmental activities
General government $ 1,532,527
Public safety 1,322,662
Public ways and facilities 17,973,973
Community and economic development 108,016
Urban renewal 180,506

Governmental activities depreciation expense $ 21,117,684
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 5 -  Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Business-type activities
Balance

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases Transfers
Balance

June 30, 2020

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land including right-of-way $ 6,412,163 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,412,163
Land use rights 1,365,423 - - - 1,365,423
Construction in progress 86,956,838 51,570,854 - (74,411,462) 64,116,230

Total capital assets not depreciated 94,734,424 51,570,854 - - 71,893,816

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 25,323,240 - - 595,033 25,918,273
Vehicles and equipment 13,797,186 481,719 (271,716) - 14,007,189
Software 698,111 - - - 698,111
Water Infrastructure 210,718,931 2,586,353 - 4,480,402 217,785,686
Water reclamation infrastructure 263,898,125 5,426,647 - 67,440,157 336,764,929
Stormwater Infrastructure 47,178,498 2,766,991 - 1,895,870 51,841,359
Other infrastructure 30,247,675 36,110 - - 30,283,785

Total capital assets being depreciated 591,861,766 11,297,820 (271,716) 74,411,462 677,299,332

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 9,127,453 620,421 - - 9,747,874
Vehicles and equipment 10,490,003 778,205 (263,220) (3,869) 11,001,119
Software 697,295 816 - - 698,111
Water Infrastructure 44,140,272 4,427,629 - 2,018 48,569,919
Water reclamation infrastructure 63,986,009 7,659,472 - 1,851 71,647,332
Stormwater infrastructure 17,826,700 1,050,376 - - 18,877,076
Other infrastructure 4,238,126 637,471 - - 4,875,597

Total accumulated depreciation 150,505,858 15,174,390 (263,220) - 165,417,028

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 441,355,908 (3,876,570) (8,496) 74,411,462 511,882,304

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 536,090,332 $ 47,694,284 $ (8,496) $ - $ 583,776,120

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Business-type activities
Water $ 4,666,916
Water reclamation 8,020,210
Nonmajor:

Airport 847,393
Cemetery 13,385
Parking & Downtown 414,567
Stormwater 1,190,882

Business-type activities depreciation expense $ 15,153,353
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 6 -  Lease Obligations

The City has existing fire station leases with Deschutes County Rural Fire Protection District No. 2 under operating
lease agreements expiring in June 2050 with options to renew for five successive terms of ten years each. Lease
payments are due semi-annually on December 1 and June 1 each year. Rental expense for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020 totaled $246,210. Minimum future lease payments not including annual consumer price index
adjustments are $248,003 each fiscal year from 2021 through 2050. 

In fiscal year 2020, The City entered into a new lease agreement expiring in 2043 with Deschutes County Rural Fire
Protection District No. 2 for the Tumalo and Pilot Butte Fire Stations. Lease payments are due semi-annually on
December 1 and June 1 each year. Rental expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 totaled $163,650.
Minimum annual future lease payments are $327,300 through 2024. In 2025, payments will increase to $597,300
and reduce gradually each year through 2043 when the last payment will be $590,425.

The City leases a building from Wall Street-Cookson, LLC. The term of the lease is five years, expiring June 2024
with options to renew for two successive terms of two years each. Rental expense for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020 totaled $337,422 and lease payments are due monthly. Minimum future lease payments not including annual
consumer price index adjustments total $1,481,676 for the remaining five years.

 7 -  Lease Receivables

The City is the lessor of numerous ground and hangar leases associated with the municipal airport. Most of these
leases carry 20 year terms with current leases expiring through 2039 In general, the leases call for monthly rent
payments based on square footage as defined in each lease agreement. Total lease revenue included in the Airport
Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is $867,257. Cost of leased assets totaled $2,347,061 at June 30,
2020 with a carrying amount of $925,076 and current year depreciation of $41,460. Minimum future lease payments
not including annual consumer price index adjustments are $867,256 each fiscal year from 2021 through 2039.

 8 -  Due To / From Other Funds

The City provided interim financing for the following funds due to delayed grant funding reimbursements. These
amounts are non-interest bearing and are repaid in the following fiscal year.

Description Amount

Due to the General Fund from Nonmajor Enterprise Funds $ 250,000
Due to the Internal Service Fund - City Wide Administration from Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 900,000

 9 -  Interfund Transfers

Transfers between funds provide support for various City programs in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

The primary purposes of significant transfers that occur on a regular bases are as follows: The General Fund
transfers to the Streets & Operations Fund, Fire/EMS Fund, and Nonmajor Governmental Funds for general
support. 

In the governmental activities column of the statement of activities, transfers between governmental funds have
been eliminated, and transfers between enterprise funds have been eliminated in the business-type activities
column.

45



City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the City made the following interfund transfers between its
governmental activities and business-type activities:

Governmental activities

General Fund

Streets &
Operations

Fund
Fire/EMS

Fund

System
Development

Charges
(SDC) Fund

Transportation
Construction

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Internal
Service
Funds

Governmental activities:
General $ 106,727 $ 2,155 $ 15,035 $ - $ 74,885 $ 63,149 $ 130,146
Streets & Operations 7,066,900 - - - 28,595 - -
Fire / EMS 14,615,800 - - - - 29,666 -
Transportation Construction - - - 3,907,182 - 8,528 -
Nonmajor Governmental 59,000 - 5,000 - 37,500 319,000 6,957,339
Internal Services 204,102 42,700 20,900 - 217,784 44,638 331,916
Business-type activities:
Water - - - 3,126,416 - - -
Water Reclamation - - - 6,242,286 - - -
Nonmajor Enterprise 167,500 - - - - 20,594 -

Total transfers out $ 22,220,029 $ 44,855 $ 40,935 $ 13,275,884 $ 358,764 $ 485,575 $ 7,419,401

Business-type activities

Water
Fund

Water
Reclamation

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds
Total

transfers in

Governmental activities:
General $ - $ - $ - $ 392,097
Streets & Operations - - 178,500 7,273,995
Fire / EMS - - - 14,645,466
Transportation Construction - 4,800 - 3,920,510
Nonmajor Governmental 102,500 102,500 37,500 7,620,339
Internal Services 11,700 11,200 79,100 964,040
Business-type activities:
Water - - - 3,126,416
Water Reclamation - - - 6,242,286
Nonmajor Enterprise - - - 188,094

Total transfers out $ 114,200 $ 118,500 $ 295,100 $ 44,373,243

 10 -  Compensated Absences

Changes in compensated absences during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows and are included in
other liabilities on the Statement of Net Position:

Balance
July 1, 2019 Earned Used

Balance
June 30,

2020
Due within
one year

Governmental activities $ 4,784,689 $ 5,262,171 $ (4,597,592) $ 5,449,268 $ 5,449,268
Business-type activities 742,832 900,685 (732,052) 911,465 911,465

$ 5,527,521 $ 6,162,856 $ (5,329,644) $ 6,360,733 $ 6,360,733

The City considers all outstanding balances as current; historically balances have been paid out within the year.
However, due to effects of COVID-19 on staff absences, a significant amount of the liability rolled into fiscal year
ending June 30, although it is expected to return to normal in the future.
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 11 -  Long-Term Debt

In the following paragraphs and charts, long-term debt information is presented separately with respect to
governmental and business-type activities. The following tables present current year changes in those obligations
and the current portions due for each issue. 

Governmental activities: Original Issue Interest Rate Maturity

Full faith & credit obligation bonds:
Pension obligation bonds, series 2004 $ 13,725,000 2.13% to 6.095% 06/01/28
Fire stations, series 2010, refinance series 1999 3,225,000 2.00% to 4.00% 06/01/24
Transportation system, series 2010, refinance series

2000 5,160,000 2.00% to 4.00% 06/01/21
Accessibility, series 2010 3,265,000 0.75% to 5.00% 06/01/24
Street equipment, series 2012 1,425,000 3.00% to 4.00% 12/01/26
Police facility, series 2012, refinance series 2002 4,670,000 3.00% to 4.00% 12/01/26
Fire engine and energy projects, series 2020 2,764,607 4.00% to 5.00% 06/01/40
Transportation system improvements, series 2020 45,255,000 4.00% to 5.00% 06/01/50

General obligation bonds:
General obligation bonds, series 2012 26,805,000 2.00% to 4.00% 06/01/32

Direct borrowing and direct placement obligations:
Transportation, series 2013, refinance series 2003 6,283,391 %1.50 12/01/21
Juniper Ridge, series 2013, refinance line of credit 3,700,000 %1.50 12/01/23
Murphy Crossing urban renewal, series 2015 3,000,000 2.65% to 3.65% 12/01/29
Fire equipment, series 2015B 3,000,000 %2.65 06/01/25
Fire equipment and police expansion, series 2016,

refinance series 2006 2,600,000 %2.29 12/01/31
Cooley road, police expansion, series 2016, refinance

series 2008 2,740,000 %2.29 12/01/31
Fire equipment and facilities, series 2016 4,525,000 %2.29 12/01/31
Streets, ERP Refunding, series 2018 6,231,753 2.85% to 3.15% 06/01/28
Enterprise resource project, series 2018 7,000,000 %1.85 06/01/21
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Governmental activities:
Balance

July 1, 2019 Additions
Reductions/
Adjustments

Balance
June 30, 2020

Due within
one year

Full faith & credit obligation bonds:
Pension obligation bonds, series

2004 $ 10,315,000 $ - $ (750,000) $ 9,565,000 $ 850,000
Fire stations, series 2010, refinance

series 1999 1,285,000 - (235,000) 1,050,000 240,000
Transportation system, series 2010,

refinance series 2000 840,000 - (410,000) 430,000 430,000
Accessibility, series 2010 1,330,000 - (240,000) 1,090,000 255,000
Street equipment, series 2012 200,000 - (200,000) - -
Police facility, series 2012, refinance

series 2002 2,770,000 - (300,000) 2,470,000 310,000
Fire engine and energy projects,

series 2020 - 2,764,607 - 2,764,607 -
Transportation system

improvements, series 2020 - 45,255,000 - 45,255,000 -

General obligation bonds:
General obligation bonds, series

2012 19,375,000 - (1,205,000) 18,170,000 1,240,000

Direct borrowing and direct placement
obligations:
Transportation, series 2013,

refinance series 2003 2,096,855 - (829,368) 1,267,487 841,923
Juniper Ridge, series 2013,

refinance line of credit 1,734,009 - (375,310) 1,358,699 381,025
Murphy Crossing urban renewal,

series 2015 2,029,303 - (194,882) 1,834,421 196,339
Fire equipment, series 2015B 1,980,665 - (308,716) 1,671,949 317,084
Fire equipment and police

expansion, series 2016, refinance
series 2006 2,230,000 - (190,000) 2,040,000 200,000

Cooley road, police expansion,
series 2016, refinance series
2008 2,470,000 - (250,000) 2,220,000 255,000

Fire equipment and facilities, series
2016 4,010,000 - (270,000) 3,740,000 275,000

Streets, ERP refunding, series 2018 5,700,848 - (567,160) 5,133,688 583,438
Enterprise resource project, series

2018 1,584,954 891,550 - 2,476,504 2,476,503

Long-term debt obligations 59,951,634 48,911,157 (6,325,436) 102,537,355 8,851,312
Premiums and discounts 1,234,518 6,636,573 (178,022) 7,693,069 343,516

$ 61,186,152 $55,547,730 $ (6,503,458) $110,230,424 $ 9,194,828
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Business-type activities: Original Issue Interest Rate Maturity

Full faith & credit obligation bonds:
Water RZEDB, series 2010 2,300,000 1.50% to 6.20% 11/01/30
Sewer RZEDB, series 2010 10,730,000 1.50% to 6.20% 11/01/30
Sewer, series 2012, refinance series 2002 3,185,000 3.00% to 4.00% 12/01/26
Parking improvements, series 2020 540,000 4.00% to 5.00% 06/01/30
Energy projects, series 2020 1,285,393 4.00% to 5.00% 06/01/40

Revenue bonds:
Water, series 2016 49,910,000 3.00% to 5.00% 12/01/36

Direct borrowing and direct placement obligations:
Airport Eastside Improvement 867,335 4.00% to 5.00% 12/01/31
Stormwater equipment, series 2018 804,097 2.85% to 3.15% 06/01/28
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14510 5,482,336 %3.32 12/01/33
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14511 14,484,130 %2.48 06/01/39
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14512 18,833,534 %2.44 12/01/37
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14513 3,939,246 %1.06 06/01/22
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14514 21,000,000 %1.93 TBD
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14515 13,620,000 %2.00 06/01/38
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14516 59,349,742 %1.00 12/01/38
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14517 5,450,000 %1.60 12/01/38
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14518 7,895,000 %1.60 TBD
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14519 8,000,000 %1.27 TBD
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14520 2,620,000 %2.00 TBD
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14521 10,000,000 %1.75 TBD
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan R14522 4,000,000 %1.38 TBD
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Business-type activities:
Balance

July 1, 2019 Additions
Reductions/
Adjustments

Balance
June 30, 2020

Due within
one year

Full faith & credit obligation bonds:
Water RZEDB, series 2010 $ 1,642,480 $ - $ (116,500) $ 1,525,980 $ 119,148
Sewer RZEDB, series 2010 7,662,520 - (543,500) 7,119,020 555,852
Sewer, series 2012, refinance series 2002 1,365,000 - (325,000) 1,040,000 330,000
Parking improvements, series 2020 - 540,000 - 540,000 -
Energy projects, series 2020 - 1,285,393 - 1,285,393 -

Revenue bonds:
Water, series 2016 46,765,000 - (1,665,000) 45,100,000 1,735,000

Direct borrowing and direct placement
obligations:
Airport Eastside Improvement 498,475 - (30,228) 468,247 30,445
Stormwater equipment, series 2018 735,593 - (73,182) 662,411 75,282
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14510 4,407,305 - (239,804) 4,167,501 247,831
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14511 14,484,130 - (585,709) 13,898,421 600,325
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14512 18,068,922 - (783,382) 17,285,540 802,613
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14513 1,964,556 - (647,942) 1,316,614 654,829
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14514 8,235,328 1,289,668 - 9,524,996 -
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14515 12,748,279 - (557,619) 12,190,660 568,828
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14516 47,722,890 - (2,228,112) 45,494,778 2,250,452
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14517 6,708,574 280,909 - 6,989,483 153,421
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14518 5,645,971 14,227 - 5,660,198 -
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14519 446,224 1,234,430 - 1,680,654 -
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan

R14520 - 1,249,641 - 1,249,641 -

Long-term debt obligations 179,101,247 5,894,268 (7,795,978) 177,199,537 8,124,026
Premiums and discounts 10,396,996 252,319 (612,032) 10,037,283 624,099

$ 189,498,243 $ 6,146,587 $ (8,408,010) $ 187,236,820 $ 8,748,125

Total long-term debt obligations:
Governmental

activities
Business-type

activities Total
Due within one

year

Full faith & credit obligation bonds $ 62,624,607 $ 11,510,393 $ 74,135,000 $ 3,090,000
Revenue bonds - 45,100,000 45,100,000 1,735,000
Direct borrowing and direct placement obligations 21,742,748 120,589,144 142,331,892 10,910,338
General obligation bonds 18,170,000 - 18,170,000 1,240,000

Long-term debt obligations 102,537,355 177,199,537 279,736,892 16,975,338
Premiums and discounts 7,693,069 10,037,283 17,730,352 967,615

Total long-term debt obligations $ 110,230,424 $ 187,236,820 $ 297,467,244 $ 17,942,953
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s obligations are as follows:

Year ending Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2021 $ 8,851,313 $ 4,583,268 $ 8,124,026 $ 5,161,871 $ 16,975,339 $ 9,745,139
2022 6,636,782 3,969,273 8,917,747 6,381,122 15,554,529 10,350,395
2023 6,440,156 3,733,073 8,869,002 4,999,765 15,309,158 8,732,838
2024 6,546,746 3,497,171 8,767,586 4,656,414 15,314,332 8,153,585
2025 6,086,330 3,238,655 8,997,883 4,375,608 15,084,213 7,614,263

2026-2030 24,449,869 12,783,938 48,639,740 17,274,144 73,089,609 30,058,082
2031-2035 11,561,360 9,255,811 50,549,242 9,058,939 62,110,602 18,314,750
2036-2040 8,924,799 7,142,339 32,650,354 1,787,438 41,575,153 8,929,777
2041-2045 10,120,000 4,797,250 1,683,957 39,945 11,803,957 4,837,195
2046-2050 12,920,000 2,000,500 - - 12,920,000 2,000,500

$102,537,355 $ 55,001,278 $177,199,537 $ 53,735,246 $279,736,892 $108,736,524

Debt service requirements include the principal outstanding at June 30, 2020 for debt issued but not fully drawn.
Amortization is estimated based on debt terms.

The balance of unamortized premiums and discounts on long-term debt issuances is $17,730,352, which is
amortized over the life of the associated debt.

All bond reserve requirements were met at the time of issuance and the City is in compliance with any ongoing
reserve requirements. The City is in compliance with the bond covenants regarding debt service coverage. The City
is also in compliance with federal arbitrage regulations for applicable debt issuances.

Full Faith & Credit Obligation Bonds 

The City issued full faith & credit obligations to provide financing for the construction of police and fire facilities,
airport, and street infrastructure and equipment, energy improvement projects, and to partially fund unfunded
pension costs attributable to the unfunded actuarial liability in the Public Employees’ Retirement System plan in
which the City participates. These bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City with stated interest rates
on specific maturities ranging from 0.75% to 6.20% and maturities through fiscal year 2031.

The City issued new full faith & credit obligations in 2020, for more information see the New Debt Issuance section. 

General Obligation Bonds

The City has issued general obligation (GO) bonds to finance the cost of capital construction and capital
improvement to City streets, including new construction and improvements and repairs to city streets, bicycle lanes,
sidewalks and related improvements and to repay interim financing. The GO bonds are for governmental activities
only.  Original issue amount was $26,805,000 with interest rates ranging between 2.00% 4.00% and maturities
going through fiscal year 2032.  The City is authorized to levy ad valorem taxes sufficient to pay the debt service of
the bonds.

Revenue Bonds 

The City has pledged future water customer revenues, net of operating expenses, to repay $45.1 million in water
revenue bonds issued in 2016. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the expansion and improvement of
the existing water system. The bonds are payable solely from water customer net revenues and are payable through
fiscal year 2037. Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 34 percent
of net revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $66,928,325. Principal and
interest paid for the current year and total customer net revenues were $3,935,950 and $11,976,568, respectively.
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Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations

The City has long-term notes payable to the State of Oregon Business Development Department (OBDD) and the
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) to provide funding for airport, water and water reclamation
infrastructure improvements. Obligation maturities range from fiscal year 2022 through fiscal year 2042 and stated
interest rates on specific maturities are 1.00% to 5.00%. Revenues from the airport, water, and water reclamation
operations are utilized to repay the respective obligations.

The City has long-term notes payable to the Bank of New York, Cashmere Valley Bank, Columbia Bank, and First
Interstate Bank, to provide funding for fire equipment, facilities, transportation, and the ERP. The notes have
maturities through fiscal year 2032 and stated interest rates on specific maturities of 1.50% to 4.00%.

Outstanding obligations from direct borrowings and direct placements related to governmental activities of
$6,132,556 and business-type activities of $468,247 contain provisions that, in the event of default, outstanding
become immediately due if the City 1) fails to make any payment when due, 2) fails to comply with other terms,
obligations, covenants or conditions contained in the notes; 3) makes material false or misleading statements, 4)
becomes insolvent, is appointed a receiver, commences bankruptcy proceeding or forfeiture; 5) an adverse material
change in the City’s financial condition occurs.

New Debt Issuance 

On April 7, 2020, the City issued $49,845,000 in full faith and credit obligations, series 2020 with an interest rate of
4.00% to 5.00% and maturity in fiscal year 2050. The proceeds of the obligations are being used to finance the
construction of transportation system improvements, parking lot improvements, energy saving projects and the
acquisition of a fire engine.

On July 16, 2019, the City secured a CWSRF loan (R14520) of $2,620,000 from ODEQ for the Amethyst Mahogany
diversion sewer flow reroute into the Southeast Interceptor. The loan is secured by sewer system revenues and has
a repayment period of 20 years with no prepayment penalties. The loan has an interest rate of 2.00% and an annual
fee of 0.50% of the outstanding loan amount. The loan is drawn on a reimbursement basis and as of June 30, 2020,
there is an outstanding balance of $1,249,621.

On December 9, 2019, the City secured a CWSRF loan (R14521) of $10,000,000 from ODEQ for connecting 160
homes currently on septic systems to a city gravity sewer via laterals constructed along the Southeast Interceptor.
The loan is secured by sewer system revenues and has a repayment period of 20 years with no prepayment
penalties. The loan has an interest rate of 2.00% and an annual fee of 0.50% of the outstanding loan amount. The
loan is drawn on a reimbursement basis and as of June 30, 2020, there is no outstanding balance.

On April 26, 2020, the City secured a CWSRF loan (R14522) of $4,000,000 from ODEQ for constructing a new lift
station and rerouting the Drake Pump Station. The loan is secured by sewer system revenues and has a repayment
period of 20 years with no prepayment penalties. The loan has an interest rate of 1.38% and an annual fee of 0.5%
of the outstanding loan amount. The loan is drawn on a reimbursement basis and as of June 30, 2020, there is no
outstanding balance.

On September 16, 2020 the City issued $37,925,000 in sewer bonds. For more information see Note 18 -
Subsequent Events. 

On November 3, 2020 City of Bend voters passed Measure 9-135 to issue new general obligation (GO) bonds. For
more information see Note 18 - Subsequent Events. 

 12 -  Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases insurance policies from commercial
carriers and pays annual premiums for the following coverages: general and automobile liability limit of $10,000,000
per occurrence or $30,000,000 in the aggregate; commercial property policy, including building and contents, of
$200,000,000 which includes real, personal, and inland marine property coverage for actual replacement cost; a
cyber liability up to $1,000,000; crime coverage in the amount of $500,000; airport liability in the amount of
$10,000,000; and pollution coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 in the aggregate.
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The City carries a public employee dishonesty bond for claims up to $100,000 covering the Finance Director and
Assistant Finance Director. Additionally, the City carries a $1,000,000 policy for workers' compensation. Employee
health, life and disability coverages are also maintained. There has been no significant reduction in insurance
coverage from the prior year. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance limits in any
of the past three fiscal years.

An Insurance Division in the City’s Internal Service Fund accounts for the City’s risk management activities. All
funds of the City participate in the Insurance Division. Amounts payable to the Insurance Division are based on cost
estimates necessary to pay premiums, and if applicable, prior and current year claims and to establish a reserve for
catastrophic losses. Workers’ compensation is insured under a retrospective plan where premiums are accrued
based on contributions and paid losses. 

A liability for workers’ compensation claims is established if information indicates that it is probable that a liability has
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable.

Fiscal Year Balance at July 1
Claims Incurred and
Changes in Estimate Claims Paid Balance at June 30

2017-18 $ 501,157 $ 80,345 $ (82,009) $ 499,493
2018-19 499,493 (444,600) (38,183) 16,710
2019-20 16,710 (16,710) - -

The City has a high-deductible health insurance plan. The City shares responsibility for 62.5% of the co-insurance
claims on this plan with employees. The City has recognized an estimated co-insurance liability of $24,300 for the
probable and reasonable co-insurance claims.

 13 -  Tax Abatements

As of June 30, 2020, the City provides tax abatements through four programs:

Nonprofit low income rental (ORS 307.541) - In 1985, Oregon legislature authorized a property tax exemption for
low-income housing held by charitable, nonprofit organizations. The tax exemption is intended to benefit low-income
renters by alleviating the property tax burden on those agencies that provide this type of housing. 

Charitable, nonprofit organizations that provide housing to low-income persons are eligible, and must be certified by
the Internal Revenue Service as 501(c)(3) or (4) organization. Organizations must own or have a leasehold interest
in the property or participate in a partnership as long as the nonprofit organization is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the property. Applicants who are leaseholders must have a signed leasehold agreement by the
application deadline. Vacant land intended to be developed as low-income housing is also eligible for the exemption.

Housing for low income rental (ORS 307.517) - An exemption is allowed for property or a portion of property if it
meets certain criteria.  The property must be offered for rent or held for the purpose of developing low income rental
housing, be occupied by low income persons, and have a rent required payment that reflects the full value of the tax
exemption.

Enterprise zones (ORS 285C.175) - The Oregon Enterprise Zone program is a State of Oregon economic
development program that allows for property tax exemptions for up to five years. In exchange for receiving property
tax exemption, participating firms are required to meet the program requirements set by state statute and the local
sponsor.

The Enterprise Zone program allows industrial firms that will be making a substantial new capital investment a
waiver of 100% of the amount of real property taxes attributable to the new investment for up to 5 years after
completion. Land or existing machinery or equipment is not tax exempt; therefore, there is no loss of current
property tax levies to local taxing jurisdiction.  

Construction in process in enterprise zones (ORS 285C.170) - The Oregon Enterprise Zone program is a State of
Oregon economic development program that allows for property tax exemptions. A Construction-in-Process
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exemption is available for qualifying properties currently under construction in an Enterprise Zone.

To qualify, the property must be owned or leased by an authorized business that is contractually obligated to own or
lease the property until placed in service, it may not be previously subject to exemption as a commercial facility
(ORS 307.330), and may not be operated, in all or part, as a hotel, motel, or destination resort.

Property may be exempt for no more than two tax years, which must be consecutive, and is not dependent on the
property already receiving or being qualified to receive the Enterprise Zone exemption.

Tax Abatement Program

Estimated
Taxes Abated

During 2019-20

Nonprofit low income rental $ 46,808
Housing for low income rental 10,416
Enterprise zones 246,385
Construction in process in enterprise zones 5,399

Total $ 309,008

 14 -  Pension Plan

Plan Description

Employees of the City are provided with pensions through the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
(OPERS) a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, the Oregon Legislature has delegated
authority to the Public Employees Retirement Board to administer and manage the system. All benefits of the
System are established by the legislature pursuant to ORS Chapters 238 and 238A. Tier One/Tier Two Retirement
Benefit plan, established by ORS Chapter 238, is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. The
Pension Program, established by ORS Chapter 238A, provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29,
2003. OPERS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuation that can
be obtained at http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx.

Benefits provided

1. Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit ORS Chapter 238

Pension Benefits

The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 retirement benefit
options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on
years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, 1.67
percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average
salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who were
contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefit results. 

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement
allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years
of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members).
General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire members are eligible after
reaching age 50. Tier One general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age
58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if retirement occurs
prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits at age 60.
The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29,
2003.

Death Benefits

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s
account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-
sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following
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Benefits provided (Continued)

1. Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit ORS Chapter 238 (Continued)

conditions are met:

 the member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death,

 the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment,

 the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or

 the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

Disability Benefits

A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than duty-
connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury
or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the
length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is
computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit. 

Benefit Changes After Retirement

After retirement, members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account
and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of equity investments.
Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes.

2. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB)

Pension Benefits

The Pension Program (ORS Chapter 238A) provides a defined contribution plan to members hired on or
after August 29, 2003. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions.
Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:

Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.
Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement
credit. To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been employed
continuously as a police and fire member for at least five years immediately preceding retirement. 

General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.
Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement
credit.

A member of the OPSRP Pension Program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date
the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches
normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes
effective. 

Death Benefits

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required to be
treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise
have been paid to the deceased member. 

Disability Benefits

A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes disabled
or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent
of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred. 

Benefit Changes After Retirement

Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. Under current
law, the cap on the COLA in fiscal year 2014-15 and beyond will vary based on 1.25 percent on the first
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Benefits provided (Continued)

2. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB) (Continued)

$60,000 of annual benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefits above $60,000.

3. OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)

Pension Benefits
An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the
rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the
member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours
of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the
IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies. 

Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in
his or her employee account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in
equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution
option has a $200 minimum distribution limit.

Death Benefits

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account
balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired
member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining
installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment. 

Contributions

PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment
Benefit Plans.

The rates based on a percentage of payroll, first became effective July 1, 2019. Employer contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2020 were $10,741,226. Additional contributions made to the PERS side account are discussed on
page 56. The rates in effect for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were 24.88 percent for Tier One/Tier Two
Members, 16.20 percent for OPSRP Pension Program General Service Members, 20.83 percent for OPSRP
Pension Program Police and Fire Members, and 6 percent for OPSRP Individual Account Program Members.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of $73,445,091 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2019.
The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2019, the City's proportion was 0.4246 percent, which increased 0.0359 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. The changes from the prior year are primarily due to changes in the
estimates and assumptions used by the PERS actuary.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources Related to Pensions
(Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City's recognized a pension expense of $20,732,628. At June 30, 2020, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 4,050,280 $ -
Changes of assumptions 9,963,664 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan

investments - 2,082,094
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and proportionate

share of contributions 4,223,012 684,419
Differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of

contributions 2,850,328 30,353

Total (prior to post-measurement date contributions) 21,087,284 2,796,866
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 24,809,150 -

Net deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources $ 45,896,434 $ 2,796,866

In September 2019, PERS created the Employer Incentive Funds (EIF). Through an application process, approved
employers could make lump-sum payments into a side account at PERS, which will be used to reduce the
employers required contributions to the Defined Benefit Plan annually. The EIF program matched 25% of the lump-
sum amounts, up to the greater of 5% of an employer's unfunded actuarial liability or $300,000. City Council
authorized staff to contribute the maximum toward the program. Lump-sum payments of $11,254,339 were made in
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. In turn, EIF matched that amount with a deposit of $2,813,585 into the City's side
account. Both the City's deposit and EIF match are shown in the government-wide financial statements as part of
deferred outflows of resources from pensions. In addition to these payments, $10,741,226 of current contributions
made directly to the plan by the City are also shown as deferred outflows of resources from pensions since all were
made subsequent to the measurement date. Contributions totaling $24,809,150 will be recognized at the
measurement date of June 30, 2020. Other deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense in future years as follows :

Year Ending
June 30

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow)
of Resources

2021 $ 9,074,219
2022 2,587,641
2023 3,522,338
2024 2,780,866
2025 325,354

Total $ 18,290,418

Actuarial Assumptions

The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021, were set using the Entry Age Normal
actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method
produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount
necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the
amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 20 years. For the OPSRP Pension Program component
of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount
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Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current
service year), (b) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized
over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years. The economic
assumptions used for the actuarial valuation are shown as follows:

Valuation Date December 31, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2019

Experience Study Report 2018, published July 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered
amortization bases over a closed period: Tier One/Tier Two
UAL is amortized over 20 years and OPSRP pension UAL is
amortized over 16 years.

Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation Rate 2.50 percent

Investment Rate of Return 7.20 percent

Projected Salary Increases 3.50 percent

Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in
accordance wit moro decision; blend based on service. 

Mortality Healthy retirees and benficiaries: Pub-2010 Sex Distinct,
generational projection with unisex social security data scale

with collar adjustments and et backs as described in valuation.  

Active members: Pub-2010 Sex distinct, generational with
unisex, social security data scale, with collar adjustments and
set backs as described in valuation. 

Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 disabled retirees, Sex distinct,
generational with unisex social security data scale. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about
the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies
are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown above are based
on the 2018 Experience Study which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending on December 31, 2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in July 2017 the
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and
the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions for
each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset
allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes
shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes
adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are
based on a forward-looking capital market economic model.
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

Asset Class Target Allocation

Compounded
Annual Return
(Geometric)

Core Fixed Income %8.00 %3.50
Short-Term Bonds %8.00 %3.40
Intermediate-Term Bonds %3.00 %5.10
High Yield Bonds %1.00 %6.50
Large/Mid Cap US Equities %15.80 %6.30
Small Cap US Equities %1.30 %6.70
Micro Cap US Equities %1.30 %6.80
Developed Foreign Equities %13.10 %6.70
Emerging Foreign Equities %4.10 %7.50
Non-US Small Cap Equities %1.90 %7.00
Private Equities %17.50 %7.80
Real Estate (Property) %10.00 %5.50
Real Estate (REITS) %2.50 %6.40
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified %2.50 %4.10
Hedge Fund - Event-driven %0.60 %5.90
Timber %1.90 %5.60
Farmland %1.90 %6.20
Infrastructure %3.80 %6.60
Commodities %1.90 %3.80

Assumed Inflation - Mean %2.50

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined.
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) calculated using the discount
rate of 7.2 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.2 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.2 percent) than the current rate.

1% Decrease (6.2%) Discount Rates (7.2%) 1% Increase (8.2%)

The City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset) $ 117,615,792 $ 73,445,091 $ 36,480,294
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued OPERS
financial report that can be obtained at http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/Actuarial-Financial-
Information.aspx.

Funding Policy

Members of OPERS and OPSRP are required to contribute 6 percent of their salary covered under the plan.
Pursuant to collective bargaining agreements, the required employee contribution of 6 percent of covered
compensation is paid by the City for all OPERS and OPSRP eligible employees. Effective January 1, 2004, this 6
percent contribution is remitted to the Individual Account Program. The contribution requirements for plan members
and the City are established by ORS Chapter 238 and may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature.

 15 -  Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions. The OPEB for the City combines three separate plans. The City provides an implicit rate
subsidy for retiree Health Insurance Continuation premiums, a stand-alone plan for employees meeting certain
eligibility requirements, and a contribution to the State of Oregon’s OPERS cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit plan.

Employees covered by benefit terms: At June 30, 2020 the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 125
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 37
Active participants 699

861

Health Insurance Continuation and Stand Alone Plans

Plan Description

The OPEB for the City includes an implicit rate subsidy for retiree health insurance. Per ORS 243.303, the City
provides a single-employer plan to provide retirees with group health and dental insurance from the date of
retirement to age 65 and the premium cannot be separately rated from the group for health care insurance coverage
of officers and employees of the City. Retirees pay the full premium for coverage elected unless the premium is paid
for by the City as described below. Providing the same rate to retirees as provided to active employees constitutes
an implicit rate subsidy for OPEB. This “plan” is not a stand-alone plan and therefore does not issue its own financial
statements. 

Based on negotiated union agreements, the City provides retiree health benefits to retired employees with at least
15 years of service prior to retirement when the retiree reaches age 62 (age 60 for emergency personnel). The City
will pay the premium for retiree coverage if the retiree has continuously maintained City retiree or OPERS group
insurance since date of retirement until the qualifying age of 62 (age 60 for emergency personnel). The City will pay
the OPERS sponsored supplement to Medicare insurance beginning at age 65 if the retiree has continuously
maintained coverage. The City is not responsible for any costs associated with retiree health care insurance
coverage including Medicare and supplement to Medicare insurance for non-represented employees hired after
December 31, 2010, City of Bend Employees Association (COBEA) members hired after August 31, 2011, Fire
Association employees hired after June 30, 2012, and Police Association employees hired after June 30, 2013.

Funding Policy

The City has not established a trust fund to supplement the costs for the net OPEB obligation. Contribution
requirements are negotiated between the City and union representatives. The City’s funding policy provides for
contributions at amounts sufficient to fund benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
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Health Insurance Continuation and Stand Alone Plans (Continued)

Total OPEB Liability

The City’s total OPEB liability at June 30, 2020 was $57,066,987.  The liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation dated July 1, 2018 with a measurement date of June 30, 2020 with updated supplemental exhibits on
August 11, 2020.The update was made to address significant drops in the discount rate assumption. 

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs based on the most recent actuarial experience study for Oregon PERS.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation Rate 2.50 percent per year

Discount rate at municipal bond rate: 2.25 percent

Healthcare cost trend rates: 5.00-7.00 percent

Mortality

Post Retirement Mortality used is based on RP 2014 Healthy
Annuitant with General Projection using Sex distinct,
generational, unisex Social Security data valuation. 

Changes in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB

Liability

Balance at 6/30/2019 $ 42,922,536
Changes for the year:

Service cost 1,634,918
Interest 1,984,877
Changes of assumptions 11,422,805
Benefit payments (898,149)

Net change in Total OPEB liability 14,144,451

Balance at 6/30/2020 $ 57,066,987

Covered employee payroll 52,405,828
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll %108.89

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 184,675
Changes of assumptions 10,688,699 -

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources $ 10,688,699 $ 184,675

Year Ending
June 30

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow)
of Resources

2021 $ 1,319,261
2022 1,319,261
2023 1,319,261
2024 1,319,261
2025 1,319,261

Thereafter 3,907,719

Total $ 10,504,024

61



City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 15 -  Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

Health Insurance Continuation and Stand Alone Plans (Continued)

Total OPEB Liability (Continued)

Changes of assumptions

Corporate bonds yields have dropped significantly since prior valuation, discount rate assumption has been updated
to better reflect current bond yields.

The payroll growth and salary merit assumptions were changed to match the assumption used in the valuation of
Oregon PERS.

Premium increase rates were modified to better reflect current anticipated experience.

Demographic assumptions were revised to match (as closely as possible) those developed in the most recent
Oregon PERS experience study.

Coverage lapse rates were introduced to better reflect observed and anticipated experience.

Aging factors were revised to better align with prevalent actuarial practice.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates. The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.25%) than
the current discount rate:

1% Decrease
(1.25% )

Discount Rate
(2.25%)

1% Increase
(3.25%)

Total OPEB liability (asset) $ 68,836,833 $ 57,066,987 $ 47,847,922

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the total
OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.0% decreasing to 4.0%) or 1-percentage-point
higher (8.0% decreasing to 6.0%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease
(6.0% Graded
Down to 4.0%)

Cost
Trend Rate

(7.0% Graded
Down to 5.0%)

1% Increase
(8.0% Graded
down to 6.0%)

Total OPEB liability (asset) $ 45,895,987 $ 57,066,987 $ 72,003,314

OPERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA)

Plan Description

As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), the City contributes to the Retirement
Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit other post employment benefit plan administered by OPERS. RHIA pays a monthly contribution
toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums of eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statute
(ORS) 238.420 established this trust fund. Authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of RHIA reside
with the Oregon Legislature. The plan is closed to new entrants after January 1, 2004. OPERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and Required Supplementary Information. That report
may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-
3700, or by calling (888) 320-7377.
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OPERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) (Continued)

Funding Policy

Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of the plan members
and the participating employers were established and may be amended only by the Oregon Legislature. ORS
require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums
coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the Retirement Health Insurance Account established by the
employer, and any monthly cost in excess of $60 shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner
provided in ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost the member
must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in OPERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability
allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in OPERS, (2) receive both Medicare
Parts A and B  coverage, and (3) enroll in a OPERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a
deceased OPERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is
receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from OPERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the
member retired before May 1, 1991.

Participating cities are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by OPERS,
currently 0.59% of annual covered payroll for Tier 1 & 2 and 0.49% for OPSRP. The OPERS Board of Trustees sets
the employer contribution rate based on the annual required contribution of the employers (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined by PERS as an amount that is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year. The City's contributions to RHIA for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $232,591.

OPEB Assets, Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2020 the City reported an asset of $905,869 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB asset.  The net
OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB asset
was determined by an actuarial valuation date as of December 31, 2017.  The City’s proportionate share of the
RHIA net OPEB asset has been determined based on the City’s contributions to the RHIA program (as reported by
PERS) during the measurement period ending on the corresponding measurement date.  The City’s proportionate
share at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 was 0.46878896% and 0.44864579%, respectively.

Net OPEB Asset Allocation

Governmental Activities $ 779,865 %86
Business-type Activities 126,004 %14

Government-wide $ 905,869 %100

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized an OPEB asset of $905,869, and reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Retiree Health Insurance Account OPEB from the
following sources: 

Total OPEB
Liability/(Asset)

Balance at 6/30/2019 $ (500,810)
Employer's proportionate share of collective system OPEB expenses (income) (117,811)
Change in proportionate share (6,354)
Benefit payments (280,894)

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year $ (905,869)
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OPERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) (Continued)

OPEB Assets, Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB (Continued)

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 119,457
Changes of assumption - 938
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments - 55,914
Change of proportionate share 203 12,840

Total 203 189,149
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 232,591 -

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources $ 232,794 $ 189,149

$232,591 of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources are City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date that will be recognized as an increase of the net OPEB asset in the year ended June 30, 2021.
Total amounts reported as net deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense in future years as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow)
of Resources

2021 $ (97,066)
2022 (86,767)
2023 (10,873)
2024 5,760

Total $ (188,946)

The City's funding policy provides for actuarially determined annual contributions, which include the normal cost and
amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset), as well as what the City's proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that in one percentage
point lower (6.20%) or on percentage point higher (8.20%).

1% Decrease
(6.20%)

Discount Rate
(7.20%)

1% Increase
(8.20%)

District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $ (702,283) $ (905,869) $ (1,079,340)

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employments,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the City are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
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OPERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Valuation Date December 31, 2017

Measurement Date June 30, 2019

Experience Study 2018, published July 2019

Actuarial Assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Inflation rate 2.50 percent

Long-term expected rate of return 7.20 percent

Discount rate 7.20 percent

Projected salary increases 3.50 percent

Retiree healthcare participation Not applicable

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: RP-2014 Healthy annuitant,
sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data
Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in
the valuation.

Active members: Mortality rates are a percentage of the RP-
2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex,
Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-
bakcs as described in the valuation.

Disabled retirees: Mortality rates are a percentage of the RP-
2014 Healthy annuitant, sex distinct generational with Unisex,
Social Security Data Scale. 

 16 -  Deferred Compensation Plan

The City has a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Section 457(g).
The plan is administered by independent plan administrators through administrative service agreements. The plan is
available to all employees of the City. Employees may defer a portion of their salary until future years. Deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or financial hardship. The plan’s
assets are held in custodial accounts for the exclusive benefit of participants and beneficiaries and are not subject
to the claims of the City’s creditors, nor can they be used by the City for any purpose other than the payment of
benefits to the plan participants. Accordingly, these plan assets and related liability are not recorded in the City’s
basic financial statements. 

 17 -  Commitment and Contingencies

At June 30, 2020 the City was significantly committed on outstanding construction, engineering, consulting, service
and equipment purchase contracts as follows:
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Governmental activities:
Streets & Operations Fund $ 1,258,807
Transportation Construction Fund 7,404,512
Internal Service Funds 3,001,378

$ 11,664,697

Business-type activities:
Airport $ 72,555
Water Fund 14,420
Water Reclamation Fund 39,969,396
Stormwater Fund 1,982,263

$ 42,038,634

The City expects to use fee revenues and/or discretionary funds to meet the commitments in the General and
Streets & Operations Funds and system revenues to meet the commitments in the Water Fund.  Debt proceeds will
be used for commitments in the Transportation Construction, Internal Service and Water Reclamation Funds.

The City has agreements to reimburse various developers for the construction of certain transportation, water and
water reclamation infrastructure through system development charges or recovery fees collected from properties
established as reimbursement or recovery areas. As of June 30, 2020 amounts collected and potentially due to
developers totaled $68,360 and are recorded as a liability in the System Development Charges Fund.

As of July 1, 2019, the City was in a contract dispute with the general contractor, Apollo, Inc., on a major upgrade to
the City’s sewer treatment plant. Apollo had filed suit in Deschutes County Circuit Court seeking damages on a
variety of claims, and the City had its own counterclaims. The parties participated in a mediation in July 2019, and
resolved all remaining claims in August 2019.

The City has had a few tort claims and court complaints filed against it that are being defended and covered by the
City’s insurance carrier, Citycounty Insurance Services (CIS). Because of the insurance coverage, these cases do
not create a risk of direct financial loss, other than the extent of the City’s insurance deductible.

Various immaterial claims and lawsuits against the City are pending. These claims are either covered by insurance
or are the types which are normal in view of the City’s operations. City management believes the total amount of
liability, if any, which may arise from such claims and lawsuits beyond that which is covered by insurance would not
have a material effect on the City’s financial condition or its ability to carry on its activities substantially as now
conducted.

In conjunction with one lawsuit that is with the Court of Appeals, that court required a letter of credit in an amount
equal to the judgement of approximately $340,000. The City has supplied such letter of credit, the bank required
and the City provided, a hold on an equal amount of funds in its cash operating account. Those funds are reflected
in the governmental activities as restricted cash and restricted net position.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak a public
health emergency. The City’s results of operations could be adversely affected to the extent that the coronavirus or
any other epidemic harms the economy. The City’s management is monitoring the outbreak and potential financial
impact, which are currently uncertain.   Although the City does not expect the impact on its operations and financial
results to be significant, the duration and intensity of the impact of the coronavirus and resulting disruption to the
City’s operations are uncertain and could adversely affect financial results.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 18 -  Subsequent Events

On September 30, 2020, the City issued $37.925 million in revenue bonds, secured by the net revenues of the
sewer system.  Proceeds from the bonds provide financing for the development of the Northeast Interceptor sewer
line.  The bonds are payable solely from sewer customer net revenues and are payable through fiscal year 2050.  

On November 3, 2020, City of Bend voters approved Measure 9-135, City of Bend Bonds for Traffic Flow, East-
West Connections, Neighborhood Safety Improvements.  The Measure allows the City to issue up to $190 million of
general obligations bonds to fund priority transportation and safety projects.  The City will establish a bond oversight
committee of community members to track and report to the community on project expenses, schedule, and
progress.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION





GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

General Fund
This fund accounts for the City's police and municipal court operations, allocation of general discretionary
revenues and other general services of the City not accounted for in any other fund. Principal sources of
revenue are property taxes, transient room taxes, franchise fees, intergovernmental revenues and municipal
court fines. Primary expenditures are for police and municipal court operations and transfers of general
discretionary revenues to other governmental funds.

Streets & Operations Fund
This fund accounts for the City's street maintenance and transportation engineering operations that are funded
mainly by state highway apportionment, garbage franchise fees, charges for services, grants, and allocation of
general discretionary revenues.

Fire/EMS Fund
This fund accounts for the fire suppression, prevention, and emergency medical services which are funded
primarily by general fund discretionary revenues, fire protection contracts, charges for emergency medical
services, property taxes, and transient room taxes.

System Development Charges (SDC) Fund
This fund accounts for the collection of system development charges for street, water and water reclamation
systems. Revenues are used to fund eligible construction projects.





City of Bend, Oregon
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget
Over/Under

Revenues
Property taxes:

Current year's property tax levy $ 67,297,000 $ 65,785,600 $ 32,725,899 $ - $ 32,725,899 $ (33,059,701)
Delinquent property taxes 1,444,000 1,727,000 1,247,737 - 1,247,737 (479,263)

Room taxes 14,385,000 10,605,700 5,879,199 - 5,879,199 (4,726,501)
Marijuana taxes 3,054,300 2,363,600 1,066,470 - 1,066,470 (1,297,130)
Franchise fees 19,134,600 16,113,500 8,186,174 - 8,186,174 (7,927,326)
Intergovernmental 8,306,700 9,921,750 3,810,586 - 3,810,586 (6,111,164)
Licenses and permits 207,800 207,800 91,288 - 91,288 (116,512)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 768,400 947,100 683,514 - 683,514 (263,586)
Contributions - - 6,000 - 6,000 6,000
Fines and forfeitures 2,367,400 1,967,400 1,059,436 - 1,059,436 (907,964)
Investment income 413,200 413,200 213,453 - 213,453 (199,747)
Miscellaneous 40,600 40,600 10,631 - 10,631 (29,969)

Total Revenues 117,419,000 110,093,250 54,980,387 - 54,980,387 (55,112,863)

Expenditures
Accessibility program 583,900 584,900 283,740 - 283,740 301,160
Municipal court program 1,806,000 1,720,000 876,788 - 876,788 843,212
Code enforcement program 1,449,300 1,380,600 706,021 - 706,021 674,579
Community projects program 3,113,100 4,568,450 1,568,669 - 1,568,669 2,999,781
Police program 61,757,700 58,347,100 28,635,004 - 28,635,004 29,712,096
Growth management program 3,797,100 3,252,500 1,592,808 - 1,592,808 1,659,692
Contingency 5,080,900 4,623,600 - - - 4,623,600
Reserves 1,679,300 1,679,300 - - - 1,679,300

Total Expenditures 79,267,300 76,156,450 33,663,030 - 33,663,030 42,493,420

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 38,151,700 33,936,800 21,317,357 - 21,317,357 (12,619,443)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 215,302 - 215,302 215,302
Insurance proceeds - - 6,335 - 6,335 6,335
Advances to other governments (200,000) (200,000) (57,000) - (57,000) 143,000
Repayments from other governments 170,000 170,000 56,000 - 56,000 (114,000)
Payment of interfund loan (1,389,300) (1,577,600) (390,000) - (390,000) 1,187,600
Interfund loan repayments 1,889,300 2,077,600 1,055,000 - 1,055,000 (1,022,600)
Transfers in 170,000 170,000 78,249 - 78,249 (91,751)
Transfers out (48,385,100) (44,325,000) (22,220,029) - (22,220,029) 22,104,971

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (47,745,100) (43,685,000) (21,256,143) - (21,256,143) 22,428,857

Net changes in fund balance (9,593,400) (9,748,200) 61,214 - 61,214 9,809,414

Beginning Fund Balance 9,593,400 9,748,200 9,748,175 - 9,748,175 (25)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 9,809,389 $ - $ 9,809,389 $ 9,809,389

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis (1) $ 9,809,389

Stabilization fund budgeted as separate fund (1) 3,860,777
Advances to/from other governments reported as receivables on GAAP basis 57,000
Advances to/from other funds reported as receivables on GAAP basis 250,000
Assets held for resale 4,487,276
Urealized gain/(loss) from investments 479,838

Combined Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 18,944,280

(1) Includes: General Fund and General Fund Stabilization Fund (page 145).
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City of Bend, Oregon
Streets & Operations Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Franchise fees $ 1,765,200 $ 2,366,100 $ 859,323 $ - $ 859,323 $ (1,506,777)
Intergovernmental:

State highway fund apportionment 15,228,000 13,024,700 6,207,514 - 6,207,514 (6,817,186)
Grants and agreements 1,381,800 2,601,500 1,966,691 - 1,966,691 (634,809)

Charges for services:
Charges to other City funds 486,000 486,000 184,171 - 184,171 (301,829)

Investment income 39,400 39,400 4,310 - 4,310 (35,090)
Miscellaneous 48,000 48,000 180,677 - 180,677 132,677

Total Revenues 18,948,400 18,565,700 9,402,686 - 9,402,686 (9,163,014)

Expenditures
Current:
   Infrastructure 33,854,900 29,025,300 14,325,880 - 14,325,880 14,699,420

Interfund charges 6,697,000 6,204,400 3,041,839 - 3,041,839 3,162,561
Debt service 641,000 641,000 343,443 - 343,443 297,557
Contingency 351,200 351,200 - - - 351,200

Total Expenditures 41,544,100 36,221,900 17,711,162 - 17,711,162 18,510,738

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (22,595,700) (17,656,200) (8,308,476) - (8,308,476) 9,347,724

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 60,940 - 60,940 60,940
Issuance of long-term debt 2,856,000 2,856,000 1,519,741 - 1,519,741 (1,336,259)
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - 221,872 - 221,872 221,872
Transfers in 15,697,700 13,183,000 7,273,995 - 7,273,995 (5,909,005)
Transfers out (105,100) (105,100) (44,855) - (44,855) 60,245

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 18,448,600 15,933,900 9,031,693 - 9,031,693 (6,902,207)

Net changes in fund balance (4,147,100) (1,722,300) 723,217 - 723,217 2,445,517

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 4,147,100 1,722,300 1,722,221 - 1,722,221 (79)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 2,445,438 $ - $ 2,445,438 $ 2,445,438

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 2,445,438
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 115,714

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 2,561,152

69



City of Bend, Oregon
Fire/EMS Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Property taxes:

Current year's property tax levy $ 4,857,200 $ 4,748,600 $ 2,362,314 $ - $ 2,362,314 $ (2,386,286)
Delinquent property taxes 78,900 104,200 84,685 - 84,685 (19,515)

Room taxes 430,700 334,100 176,024 - 176,024 (158,076)
Intergovernmental 8,592,200 11,572,000 6,712,520 - 6,712,520 (4,859,480)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 10,385,700 8,651,400 4,310,455 - 4,310,455 (4,340,945)
Charges to other City funds 9,800 9,800 4,925 - 4,925 (4,875)

Contributions 4,400 4,400 825 - 825 (3,575)
Investment income 138,800 138,800 30,071 - 30,071 (108,729)
Miscellaneous 123,000 123,000 52,210 - 52,210 (70,790)

Total Revenues 24,620,700 25,686,300 13,734,029 - 13,734,029 (11,952,271)

Expenditures
Current:
   Public safety 49,751,400 49,394,800 24,628,795 - 24,628,795 24,766,005

Interfund charges 7,010,100 6,902,700 3,841,614 - 3,841,614 3,061,086
Debt service 1,262,000 1,262,000 575,561 - 575,561 686,439
Contingency 3,547,000 3,402,400 - - - 3,402,400
Reserved for maintenance 100,000 100,000 - - - 100,000

Total Expenditures 61,670,500 61,061,900 29,045,970 - 29,045,970 32,015,930

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (37,049,800) (35,375,600) (15,311,941) - (15,311,941) 20,063,659

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 36,450 - 36,450 36,450
Issuance of long-term debt 3,242,600 1,150,100 1,003,470 - 1,003,470 (146,630)
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - 146,500 - 146,500 146,500
Transfers in 30,281,000 30,015,400 14,645,466 - 14,645,466 (15,369,934)
Transfers out (121,200) (121,200) (40,935) - (40,935) 80,265

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 33,402,400 31,044,300 15,790,951 - 15,790,951 (15,253,349)

Net changes in fund balance (3,647,400) (4,331,300) 479,010 - 479,010 4,810,310

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 3,647,400 4,331,300 4,331,326 - 4,331,326 26

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 4,810,336 $ - $ 4,810,336 $ 4,810,336

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 4,810,336
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 114,005

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 4,924,341

70



City of Bend, Oregon
System Development Charges (SDC) Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
System development charges $ 29,046,500 $ 31,473,600 $ 18,516,062 $ - $ 18,516,062 $ (12,957,538)
Loan repayments 18,800 18,800 9,697 - 9,697 (9,103)
Investment income 273,700 273,700 217,182 - 217,182 (56,518)

Total Revenues 29,339,000 31,766,100 18,742,941 - 18,742,941 (13,023,159)

Expenditures
Current:

   Infrastructure:
Interfund charges 344,600 344,600 177,930 - 177,930 166,670

Reserved for construction 3,973,800 3,973,800 - - - 3,973,800

Total Expenditures 4,318,400 4,318,400 177,930 - 177,930 4,140,470

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 25,020,600 27,447,700 18,565,011 - 18,565,011 (8,882,689)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (35,629,700) (38,056,800) (13,275,884) - (13,275,884) 24,780,916

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (35,629,700) (38,056,800) (13,275,884) - (13,275,884) 24,780,916

Net changes in fund balance (10,609,100) (10,609,100) 5,289,127 - 5,289,127 15,898,227

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 10,609,100 10,609,100 14,087,441 - 14,087,441 3,478,341

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 19,376,568 $ - $ 19,376,568 $ 19,376,568

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 19,376,568
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 842,426

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 20,218,994
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City of Bend, Oregon
Oregon Public Employee Retirement Pension Plan (OPERS)

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
For the last seven years

Fiscal year
ended

City's proportion of
the net pension

liability/(asset) (1)

City's proportionate
share of the net

pension
liability/(asset) (1)

City's covered
payroll

City's proportionate
share of the net

pension (asset)/liability
as a percentage of its

covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net
position as a

percentage of the
total pension

(asset)/liability

2014 $ 0.37690343 $ 19,233,934 $ 31,848,035 60.39% 91.97%
2015 0.37690343 (8,543,325) 36,565,264 (23.36)% 103.59%
2016 0.37689702 21,639,397 33,753,314 64.11% 91.90%
2017 0.37779751 56,716,178 35,860,584 158.16% 80.53%
2018 0.39951843 53,855,238 38,825,140 138.71% 83.12%
2019 0.38864905 58,875,212 46,751,374 125.93% 82.07%
2020 0.42459686 73,445,091 50,507,661 145.41% 80.23%

(1) Actuarial information was provided by the actuary for OPERS

Oregon Public Employee Retirement Pension Plan (OPERS)
Schedule of the City's Pension Plan Contributions

For the last seven years

Fiscal year
ended

Contractually
required

contributions (1)

Contributions in
relation to the

contractually required
contributions

Contribution
deficiency /

(excess) City's covered payroll

Contributions as a
percentage of its
covered payroll

2014 $ 3,765,119 $ (3,765,119) $ - $ 36,565,264 11.82%
2015 3,758,247 (3,758,247) - 33,753,314 10.28%
2016 5,005,056 (5,005,056) - 35,860,584 13.96%
2017 5,338,248 (5,338,248) - 38,825,140 13.75%
2018 7,503,113 (7,503,113) - 46,751,374 16.05%
2019 8,021,340 (8,021,340) - 50,507,661 15.88%
2020 10,741,226 (24,809,150) (14,067,924) 52,405,828 20.50%

(1) Actuarial information was provided by the actuary for OPERS
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City of Bend, Oregon
Oregon Public Employee Retirement Health Insurance Account (OPERS RHIA)

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)
For the last five years

Fiscal year
ended

City's proportion of
the net pension

(asset)/liability (1)

City's proportionate
share of the net

pension
liability/(asset) (1)

City's covered
payroll

City's proportionate
share of the net

pension (asset)/liability
as a percentage of its

covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net
position as a

percentage of the
total pension

(asset)/liability

2016 (2) - $ - $ - -% -%
2017 0.42428630 115,220 35,860,584 0.32% 94.14%
2018 0.42821716 (178,712) 38,825,140 (0.46)% 108.88%
2019 0.44864579 (500,810) 46,751,374 (1.07)% 123.99%
2020 0.46878896 (905,869) 50,507,661 (1.79)% 144.35%

(1) Actuarial information was provided by the actuary for OPERS
(2) Actuarial information not available

Oregon Public Employee Retirement Health Insurance Account (OPERS RHIA)
Schedule of the City's  OPEB Plan Contributions

For the last five years

Fiscal year
ended

Statutorily required
contributions (1)

Contributions in
relation to the

statutorily required
contributions

Contribution
deficiency /

(excess) City's covered payroll

Contributions as a
percentage of its
covered payroll

2016 (2) $ - $ - $ - $ - -%
2017 (2) - - - - -%
2018 217,236 (217,236) - 46,751,374 0.46%
2019 215,341 (215,341) - 50,507,661 0.43%
2020 232,794 (232,794) - 52,405,828 0.44%

(1) Actuarial information was provided by the actuary for OPERS

(2) Actuarial information not available

Note: Information prior to 2016 does not exist.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Health Insurance Continuation and Stand Alone Plans (HIC)

Schedule of Changes in the City's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
For the last three years

2018 2019 2020

Total OPEB liability - beginning $38,246,251 $40,298,039 $42,922,536

Service cost 1,509,570 1,562,405 1,634,918

Interest 1,350,885 1,450,435 1,984,877

Differences between expected and actual experience - (237,439) -

Changes of assumption or other input - 687,979 11,422,805

Benefit payments (808,667) (838,883) (898,149)

Net change in total OPEB liability 2,051,788 2,624,497 14,144,451

Total OPEB liability - ending $40,298,039 $42,922,536 $57,066,987

Covered employee payroll 46,751,374 50,507,661 52,405,828

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll %86.20 %84.98 %108.89
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City of Bend, Oregon
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Required Supplementary Information includes budgetary comparisons for the General Fund, the Transportation
Operations Fund, the Fire/EMS Fund, and the System Development Charges Fund. The budgetary comparison
information for all other funds can be found in Other Supplementary Information which follows this section.

Note 1 -  Budgetary Information

Municipal budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 294 – Local Budget Law)
and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The City Manager is responsible for submitting a proposed
budget to the Budget Committee comprised of the City Council and an equal number of citizens of the City. The City
is required to prepare a budget for each fund that is balanced in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes. Each
fund is budgeted on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The Budget Committee conducts public hearings for the purpose of obtaining citizens’ comments, and then
approves a budget and submits it to the City Council for final adoption. The approved expenditures for each fund
may not be increased by more than 10 percent by Council without returning to the Budget Committee for a second
approval. After the Council adopts the budget and certifies the total ad valorem taxes to be levied, no additional tax
levy may be made for that budget period.

The City Council legally adopts the biennial budget by resolution before July 1 of odd numbered years. The
resolution establishes appropriations for each fund and sets the level by which expenditures and other uses cannot
legally exceed appropriations. In the General Fund and the Internal Service Fund, the levels of budgetary control
established by resolution are set at the program/division level. For all other funds, the levels of budgetary control are
personal services, materials and services, debt service, capital outlay, transfers and operating contingency. 

Appropriations lapse at of the end of the biennium for goods or services not yet received. The City Council may
modify the budget by transferring appropriations between levels of control and by adopting supplemental budgets.
Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget. Some
supplemental budgets require hearings before the public, publications in newspapers and approval by the City
Council. Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by the use of appropriation transfers between the
levels of control. Such transfers require approval by the City Council. Supplemental appropriations were approved
by the City Council for the 2019-21 biennium. All appropriations terminate on June 30, 2021.
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City of Bend, Oregon
General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

General Fund
Code enforcement program $ 1,168,200 $ 589,939 $ 578,261
Community projects program 4,568,450 1,568,669 2,999,781
Growth management program 2,487,100 1,156,304 1,330,796
Accessibility program 426,100 192,640 233,460
Municipal court program 1,299,000 650,688 648,312
Police program 50,455,300 24,462,645 25,992,655
Transfers 55,552,000 27,709,199 27,842,801
Contingency 4,623,600 - 4,623,600
Reserves 1,679,300 - 1,679,300

Total General Fund $ 122,259,050 $ 56,330,084 $ 65,928,966

Streets & Operations Fund
Infrastructure program $ 29,025,300 $ 14,325,880 $ 14,699,420
Debt service 641,000 343,443 297,557
Transfers 6,309,500 3,086,694 3,222,806
Contingency 351,200 - 351,200

Total Streets & Operations Fund $ 36,327,000 $ 17,756,017 $ 18,570,983

Fire/EMS Fund
Public Safety program $ 49,394,800 $ 24,628,795 $ 24,766,005
Debt service 1,262,000 575,561 686,439
Transfers 7,023,900 3,882,549 3,141,351
Contingency 3,402,400 - 3,402,400
Reserves 100,000 - 100,000

Total Fire/EMS Fund $ 61,183,100 $ 29,086,905 $ 32,096,195

System Development Charges (SDC) Fund
Transfers $ 38,401,400 $ 13,453,814 $ 24,947,586
Reserves 3,973,800 - 3,973,800

Total System Development Charges (SDC) Fund $ 42,375,200 $ 13,453,814 $ 28,921,386
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MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water Fund
This fund accounts for the maintenance, operation and construction of the City's water intake, purification and
delivery systems. Primary revenues are user fees and system development charges.

Water Reclamation Fund
This fund accounts for the maintenance, operation and construction of the City's wastewater collection and
treatment system. Primary revenues are user fees, system development charges, and proceeds from the
issuance of debt.





City of Bend, Oregon
Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 70,200 $ 70,200 $ 23,819 $ - $ 23,819 $ (46,381)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 42,102,600 42,102,600 19,777,901 - 19,777,901 (22,324,699)
Charges to other City funds 444,800 444,800 147,118 - 147,118 (297,682)

Contributions - - 60,341 - 60,341 60,341
Loan repayments 218,000 218,000 91,000 - 91,000 (127,000)
Investment income 1,973,000 1,973,000 647,821 - 647,821 (1,325,179)
Miscellaneous 61,200 61,200 20,063 - 20,063 (41,137)

Total Revenues 44,869,800 44,869,800 20,768,063 - 20,768,063 (24,101,737)

Expenses
Current:
   Infrastructure 36,704,400 33,511,200 14,440,791 - 14,440,791 19,070,409

Interfund charges 6,415,000 5,738,000 3,261,256 - 3,261,256 2,476,744
Debt service 8,389,000 8,389,000 4,138,824 - 4,138,824 4,250,176
Contingency 4,853,600 4,853,600 - - - 4,853,600
Reserved for rate stabilization 1,500,000 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Reserved for construction 41,554,800 45,464,200 - - - 45,464,200
Reserved for maintenance 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000

Total Expenses 104,416,800 104,456,000 21,840,871 - 21,840,871 82,615,129

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (59,547,000) (59,586,200) (1,072,808) - (1,072,808) 58,513,392

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 55,460 - 55,460 55,460
Issuance of long-term debt 1,295,400 1,295,400 1,118,882 - 1,118,882 (176,518)
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - 163,349 - 163,349 163,349
Transfers in 5,984,200 6,023,400 3,126,416 - 3,126,416 (2,896,984)
Transfers out (228,400) (228,400) (114,200) - (114,200) 114,200

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 7,051,200 7,090,400 4,349,907 - 4,349,907 (2,740,493)

Net changes in fund balance (52,495,800) (52,495,800) 3,277,099 - 3,277,099 55,772,899

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 52,495,800 52,495,800 54,997,254 - 54,997,254 2,501,454

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 58,274,353 $ - $ 58,274,353 $ 58,274,353

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 58,274,353
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 1,635,209
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 176,850,196
Deferred outflows from pensions 1,830,138
Deferred outflows from OPEB 627,987
Compensated absences (355,471)
Long-term debt (57,607,766)
Other post-employment benefits payable (3,229,266)
Net pension liability (4,223,093)
Deferred inflows from pensions (160,820)
Deferred Inflow from OPEB (21,495)
Deferred inflows from debt refunding (292,399)
Insurance claims (1,411)

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ 173,326,162
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City of Bend, Oregon
Water Reclamation Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 319,800 $ 319,800 $ 93,238 $ - $ 93,238 $ (226,562)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 64,726,300 64,726,300 30,968,594 - 30,968,594 (33,757,706)
Charges to other City funds 59,000 59,000 22,234 - 22,234 (36,766)

Loan repayments - - 1,381 - 1,381 1,381
Investment income 1,610,400 1,610,400 566,481 - 566,481 (1,043,919)
Miscellaneous 24,800 24,800 50,194 - 50,194 25,394

Total Revenues 66,740,300 66,740,300 31,702,122 - 31,702,122 (35,038,178)

Expenses
Current:
   Infrastructure 114,875,800 119,147,200 49,459,803 - 49,459,803 69,687,397

Interfund charges 15,408,100 13,327,100 7,732,073 - 7,732,073 5,595,027
Debt service 22,978,000 22,978,000 8,753,277 - 8,753,277 14,224,723
Contingency 3,128,600 3,128,600 - - - 3,128,600
Reserved for maintenance 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Reserved for rate stabilization 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Reserved for debt service 4,611,500 4,611,500 - - - 4,611,500
Reserved for construction 25,338,200 25,535,500 - - - 25,535,500

Total Expenses 192,340,200 194,727,900 65,945,153 - 65,945,153 128,782,747

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (125,599,900) (127,987,600) (34,243,031) - (34,243,031) 93,744,569

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 19,880 - 19,880 19,880
Issuance of long-term debt 50,671,000 50,671,000 4,068,875 - 4,068,875 (46,602,125)
Transfers in 9,292,100 11,680,000 6,242,286 - 6,242,286 (5,437,714)
Transfers out (227,400) (227,600) (118,500) - (118,500) 109,100

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 59,735,700 62,123,400 10,212,541 - 10,212,541 (51,910,859)

Net changes in fund balance (65,864,200) (65,864,200) (24,030,490) - (24,030,490) 41,833,710

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 65,864,200 65,864,200 67,628,774 - 67,628,774 1,764,574

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 43,598,284 $ - $ 43,598,284 $ 43,598,284

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 43,598,284
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 1,692,451
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 326,281,649
Deferred outflows from pensions 2,056,122
Deferred outflows from OPEB 705,530
Compensated absences (444,174)
Long-term debt (127,704,658)
Other post-employment benefits payable (3,628,009)
Net pension liability (4,744,552)
Deferred inflows from pensions (180,678)
Deferred Inflow from OPEB (24,149)
Insurance claims (2,539)

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ 237,605,277
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City of Bend, Oregon
Other Major Funds

Schedule of Expenses and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenses

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Water Fund
Infrastructure program $ 33,511,200 $ 14,440,791 $ 19,070,409
Debt service 8,389,000 4,138,824 4,250,176
Transfers 5,966,400 3,375,456 2,590,944
Contingency 4,853,600 - 4,853,600
Reserves 51,964,200 - 51,964,200

Total Water Fund $ 104,684,400 $ 21,955,071 $ 82,729,329

Water Reclamation Fund
Infrastructure program $ 119,147,200 $ 49,459,803 $ 69,687,397
Debt service 22,978,000 8,753,277 14,224,723
Transfers 13,554,700 7,850,573 5,704,127
Contingency 3,128,600 - 3,128,600
Reserves 36,147,000 - 36,147,000

Total Water Reclamation Fund $ 194,955,500 $ 66,063,653 $ 128,891,847
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MAJOR AND NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS





City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Special
Revenue

Funds
Debt Service

Funds

Capital
Projects
Funds

Cemetery
Permanent

Maintenance
Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 26,149,025 $ 596,852 $ 1,995,777 $ - $ 28,741,654
Restricted cash and investments 1,183,871 6,492,446 1,272,580 697,596 9,646,493
Receivables:

Taxes 257,333 99,974 - - 357,307
Accounts, net 23,652 - 60,814 - 84,466
Assessments receivable, net 128,403 - - - 128,403
Loans and notes receivable, net 12,983,243 - - - 12,983,243

Due from other governments 69,485 - 1,894 - 71,379

Total Assets $ 40,795,012 $ 7,189,272 $ 3,331,065 $ 697,596 $ 52,012,945

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits)

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 345,182 $ - $ 172,452 $ 234 $ 517,868
Salaries and benefits payable 138,272 - 3,493 - 141,765
Retainage payable - - 7,216 - 7,216
Deposits - restricted 492,521 - - - 492,521
Unearned revenue 288 - - - 288

Total Liabilities 976,263 - 183,161 234 1,159,658

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes - 70,521 - - 70,521
Unavailable revenue - assessments & loans 13,119,280 - - - 13,119,280

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,119,280 70,521 - - 13,189,801

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Nonspendable:

Permanent maintenance funds - - - 697,362 697,362
Restricted for:

External grantor covenant 474,612 - - - 474,612
Outside debt covenant - 6,521,899 - - 6,521,899
Outside construction covenant - - 1,260,055 - 1,260,055
State law revenue restriction 3,641,046 - - - 3,641,046

Committed:
Planning support services 8,068,576 - - - 8,068,576

Assigned:
Construction activities - - 1,887,849 - 1,887,849
Building support services 13,694,982 - - - 13,694,982
Community development operations 120,517 - - - 120,517
Debt service - 596,852 - - 596,852
Reserves for police operations 699,736 - - - 699,736

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 26,699,469 7,118,751 3,147,904 697,362 37,663,486

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 40,795,012 $ 7,189,272 $ 3,331,065 $ 697,596 $ 52,012,945
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Special
Revenue

Funds
Debt Service

Funds

Capital
Projects
Funds

Cemetery
Permanent

Maintenance
Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

Revenues
Property taxes $ - $ 3,823,927 $ - $ - $ 3,823,927
Room taxes 2,745,973 - - - 2,745,973
Franchise fees - - 825,238 - 825,238
Intergovernmental 1,284,615 246,210 15,474 - 1,546,299
Assessments 131,601 - - - 131,601
Licenses and permits 6,522,915 - - - 6,522,915
Charges for services 8,734,962 3,401,528 - - 12,136,490
Contributions 33,030 - - - 33,030
Loan repayments 566,332 - - - 566,332
Permanent maintenance fees - - - 6,546 6,546
Investment income 1,159,448 340,624 138,759 36,349 1,675,180
Miscellaneous 1,958 - - - 1,958

Total Revenues 21,180,834 7,812,289 979,471 42,895 30,015,489

Expenditures
Current:

General government - 11,254,338 - - 11,254,338
Infrastructure - 500 323,797 - 324,297
Community and economic development 20,612,698 - - - 20,612,698
Permanent maintenance - - - 5,303 5,303
Urban renewal 332,804 - 267,218 - 600,022

Debt service:
Principal - 2,952,257 240,000 - 3,192,257
Interest - 1,420,860 64,138 - 1,484,998

Capital outlay - - 585,077 - 585,077

Total Expenditures 20,945,502 15,627,955 1,480,230 5,303 38,058,990

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 235,332 (7,815,666) (500,759) 37,592 (8,043,501)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt - - 202,340 - 202,340
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - 27,868 - 27,868
Transfers in 518,000 6,962,339 140,000 - 7,620,339
Transfers out (292,633) (153,521) (18,827) (20,594) (485,575)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 225,367 6,808,818 351,381 (20,594) 7,364,972

Net change in fund balances 460,699 (1,006,848) (149,378) 16,998 (678,529)

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 26,238,770 8,125,599 3,297,282 680,364 38,342,015

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 26,699,469 $ 7,118,751 $ 3,147,904 $ 697,362 $ 37,663,486
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

BURA General Fund
This fund accounts for the operation and general service related to Urban Renewal.

Energy American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Grant Fund
This fund accounts for grant revenues and expenditures received for energy efficient related projects.

Helen Lorenz Estate Fund
This fund accounts for earnings received from the Helen Lorenz estate and expenditures to fund Public Safety
purposes.

Building Fund
This fund accounts for the City's building permitting, inspection and compliance operations. The principal
sources of revenues are permit fees and other fees charged for services provided.

Planning Fund
This fund accounts for the City's current planning activities. Revenues include plan review fees and transfers
from other City Funds.

Private Development Engineering Fund
This fund is responsible for ensuring that all public improvements made in conjunction with community
development are constructed to development standards so they can be accepted into the inventory of public
assets in perpetuity. Revenue is mainly generated by user fees. 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund
This fund accounts for monies received from federal Community Development Block Grants. Revenues include
grant receipts, as well as loan repayments from prior loan recipients. Expenditures are for the distribution of
grants for qualified projects and/or loans to qualified recipients.

Affordable Housing Fund
This fund accounts for the affordable housing program. Funding is provided by a fee of 1/3 of 1% of the total
building permit valuation for all building permits issued. Expenditures are for housing opportunities for residents
at or below 80% of the median income.

Business Advocacy Fund
This fund accounts for business license revenues and expenditures for the purpose of providing a liaison
function between businesses and the City.

Tourism Fund
This fund accounts for tourism promotion sponsored by the City. The principal source of revenue is transient
room tax allocations. Expenditures are to other agencies to promote tourism and economic development
efforts.

Economic Improvement District (EID) Fund
This fund accounts for the collection and disbursement of assessments from the Downtown Economic
Improvement District.

Police Reserves Fund
This fund accounts for the reserves of the police department.





City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2020

BURA General
Fund

Energy ARRA
Grant Fund

Helen Lorenz
Estate Fund

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ - $ - $ -
Restricted cash and investments 142,304 497 38,810
Receivables:

Taxes - - -
Accounts, net - - 7,634
Assessments receivable, net - - -
Loans and notes receivable, net - 133,067 -

Due from other governments - - -

Total Assets $ 142,304 $ 133,564 $ 46,444

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits)

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 2,489 $ - $ -
Salaries and benefits payable 736 - -
Deposits - restricted - - 38,810
Unearned revenue - - -

Total Liabilities 3,225 - 38,810

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - assessments & loans - 133,067 7,634

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - 133,067 7,634

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted for:

External grantor covenant - 497 -
State law revenue restriction 139,079 - -

Committed:
Planning support services - - -

Assigned:
Building support services - - -
Community development operations - - -
Reserves for police operations - - -

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 139,079 497 -

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
(Deficits) $ 142,304 $ 133,564 $ 46,444

Continued on next page
82



City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2020

Building Fund Planning Fund

Private
Development
Engineering

Fund

Community
Development
Block Grant

(CDBG) Fund
Affordable

Housing Fund

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 13,766,988 $ 4,493,525 $ 3,657,146 $ - $ 3,313,196
Restricted cash and investments - 106,586 347,125 468,795 -
Receivables:

Taxes - - - - -
Accounts, net 288 - 15,730 - -
Assessments receivable, net - - - - -
Loans and notes receivable, net - - - 5,914,815 6,935,361

Due from other governments 9,070 6,313 67 18,863 43

Total Assets $ 13,776,346 $ 4,606,424 $ 4,020,068 $ 6,402,473 $ 10,248,600

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits)

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 5,673 $ 17,989 $ 31,733 $ 10,180 $ 12,208
Salaries and benefits payable 75,403 31,592 22,891 3,363 1,506
Deposits - restricted - 106,586 347,125 - -
Unearned revenue 288 - - - -

Total Liabilities 81,364 156,167 401,749 13,543 13,714

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - assessments & loans - - - 5,914,815 6,935,361

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - 5,914,815 6,935,361

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted for:

External grantor covenant - - - 474,115 -
State law revenue restriction - - - - 3,299,525

Committed:
Planning support services - 4,450,257 3,618,319 - -

Assigned:
Building support services 13,694,982 - - - -
Community development operations - - - - -
Reserves for police operations - - - - -

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 13,694,982 4,450,257 3,618,319 474,115 3,299,525

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 13,776,346 $ 4,606,424 $ 4,020,068 $ 6,402,473 $ 10,248,600

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2020

Business
Advocacy

Fund
Tourism

Fund

Economic
Improvement
District (EID)

Fund

Police
Reserves

Fund
Total Special

Revenue Funds

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 98,408 $ - $ 120,026 $ 699,736 $ 26,149,025
Restricted cash and investments - 79,754 - - 1,183,871
Receivables:

Taxes - 257,333 - - 257,333
Accounts, net - - - - 23,652
Assessments receivable, net - - 128,403 - 128,403
Loans and notes receivable, net - - - - 12,983,243

Due from other governments 35,129 - - - 69,485

Total Assets $ 133,537 $ 337,087 $ 248,429 $ 699,736 $ 40,795,012

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits)

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 10,239 $ 134,645 $ 120,026 $ - $ 345,182
Salaries and benefits payable 2,781 - - - 138,272
Deposits - restricted - - - - 492,521
Unearned revenue - - - - 288

Total Liabilities 13,020 134,645 120,026 - 976,263

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - assessments & loans - - 128,403 - 13,119,280

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - 128,403 - 13,119,280

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted for:

External grantor covenant - - - - 474,612
State law revenue restriction - 202,442 - - 3,641,046

Committed:
Planning support services - - - - 8,068,576

Assigned:
Building support services - - - - 13,694,982
Community development operations 120,517 - - - 120,517
Reserves for police operations - - - 699,736 699,736

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 120,517 202,442 - 699,736 26,699,469

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 133,537 $ 337,087 $ 248,429 $ 699,736 $ 40,795,012

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

BURA General
Fund

Energy ARRA
Grant Fund

Helen Lorenz
Estate Fund

Revenues
Room taxes $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - -
Assessments - - -
Licenses and permits - - -
Charges for services - - -
Contributions - - 33,030
Loan repayments - 16,823 -
Investment income 12,855 710 -
Miscellaneous - - -

Total Revenues 12,855 17,533 33,030

Expenditures
Current:

Community and economic development - - -
Urban renewal 332,804 - -

Total Expenditures 332,804 - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (319,949) 17,533 33,030

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out - (31,038) (33,030)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (31,038) (33,030)

Net change in fund balances (319,949) (13,505) -

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 459,028 14,002 -

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 139,079 $ 497 $ -

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) (Continued)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Building Fund Planning Fund

Private
Development
Engineering

Fund

Community
Development
Block Grant

(CDBG) Fund
Affordable

Housing Fund

Revenues
Room taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 9,595 6,959 136 1,232,753 43
Assessments - - - - -
Licenses and permits 5,666,211 83,398 471,156 - -
Charges for services 1,538,141 2,934,529 2,751,698 - 1,510,594
Contributions - - - - -
Loan repayments - - - 385,565 163,944
Investment income 605,213 209,643 143,803 - 148,096
Miscellaneous 970 96 76 - 816

Total Revenues 7,820,130 3,234,625 3,366,869 1,618,318 1,823,493

Expenditures
Current:

Community and economic development 8,105,161 3,648,506 2,407,371 1,469,912 1,559,812
Urban renewal - - - - -

Total Expenditures 8,105,161 3,648,506 2,407,371 1,469,912 1,559,812

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (285,031) (413,881) 959,498 148,406 263,681

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - 280,000 179,000 -
Transfers out (300) (27,166) (21,557) - (179,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (300) (27,166) 258,443 179,000 (179,000)

Net change in fund balances (285,331) (441,047) 1,217,941 327,406 84,681

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 13,980,313 4,891,304 2,400,378 146,709 3,214,844

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 13,694,982 $ 4,450,257 $ 3,618,319 $ 474,115 $ 3,299,525

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) (Continued)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Business
Advocacy

Fund Tourism Fund

Economic
Improvement
District (EID)

Fund
Police

Reserves Fund
Total Special

Revenue Funds

Revenues
Room taxes $ - $ 2,745,973 $ - $ - $ 2,745,973
Intergovernmental 35,129 - - - 1,284,615
Assessments - - 131,601 - 131,601
Licenses and permits 302,150 - - - 6,522,915
Charges for services - - - - 8,734,962
Contributions - - - - 33,030
Loan repayments - - - - 566,332
Investment income 5,047 4,665 315 29,101 1,159,448
Miscellaneous - - - - 1,958

Total Revenues 342,326 2,750,638 131,916 29,101 21,180,834

Expenditures
Current:

Community and economic development 409,157 2,880,863 131,916 - 20,612,698
Urban renewal - - - - 332,804

Total Expenditures 409,157 2,880,863 131,916 - 20,945,502

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (66,831) (130,225) - 29,101 235,332

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 59,000 - - - 518,000
Transfers out (542) - - - (292,633)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 58,458 - - - 225,367

Net change in fund balances (8,373) (130,225) - 29,101 460,699

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 128,890 332,667 - 670,635 26,238,770

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 120,517 $ 202,442 $ - $ 699,736 $ 26,699,469

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Bend Urban Renewal Agency (BURA) General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Investment income $ - $ - $ 1,729 $ - $ 1,729 $ 1,729

Total Revenues - - 1,729 - 1,729 1,729

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 659,100 608,600 332,804 - 332,804 275,796
Contingency - 50,500 - - - 50,500

Total Expenditures 659,100 659,100 332,804 - 332,804 326,296

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (659,100) (659,100) (331,075) - (331,075) 328,025

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 225,700 225,700 - - - (225,700)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 225,700 225,700 - - - (225,700)

Net changes in fund balance (433,400) (433,400) (331,075) - (331,075) 102,325

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 433,400 433,400 459,028 - 459,028 25,628

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 127,953 $ - $ 127,953 $ 127,953

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 127,953
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 11,126

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 139,079
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City of Bend, Oregon
Energy ARRA Grant Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Loan repayments $ - $ - $ 16,823 $ - $ 16,823 $ 16,823
Investment income 70,200 70,200 213 - 213 (69,987)

Total Revenues 70,200 70,200 17,036 - 17,036 (53,164)

Expenditures
Current:
   General government 83,900 - - - - -

Total Expenditures 83,900 - - - - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (13,700) 70,200 17,036 - 17,036 (53,164)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out - (83,900) (31,038) - (31,038) 52,862

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (83,900) (31,038) - (31,038) 52,862

Net changes in fund balance (13,700) (13,700) (14,002) - (14,002) (302)

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 13,700 13,700 14,002 - 14,002 302

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ -
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 497

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 497
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City of Bend, Oregon
Helen Lorenz Estate Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Contributions $ 180,000 $ 180,000 $ 33,030 $ - $ 33,030 $ (146,970)

Total Revenues 180,000 180,000 33,030 - 33,030 (146,970)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 180,000 180,000 33,030 - 33,030 (146,970)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (180,000) (180,000) (33,030) - (33,030) 146,970

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (180,000) (180,000) (33,030) - (33,030) 146,970

Net changes in fund balance - - - - - -

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) - - - - - -

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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City of Bend, Oregon
Building Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 9,595 $ - $ 9,595 $ 9,595
Licenses and permits 10,554,900 10,554,900 5,666,211 - 5,666,211 (4,888,689)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 2,747,900 2,747,900 1,538,141 - 1,538,141 (1,209,759)
Investment income 344,000 344,000 162,322 - 162,322 (181,678)
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000 970 - 970 (1,030)

Total Revenues 13,648,800 13,648,800 7,377,239 - 7,377,239 (6,271,561)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 11,777,400 11,321,800 5,546,763 - 5,546,763 5,775,037

Interfund charges 4,980,700 4,615,100 2,558,398 - 2,558,398 2,056,702
Contingency 8,961,300 9,782,500 - - - 9,782,500
Reserves 1,200,000 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000

Total Expenditures 26,919,400 26,919,400 8,105,161 - 8,105,161 18,814,239

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (13,270,600) (13,270,600) (727,922) - (727,922) 12,542,678

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (600) (600) (300) - (300) 300

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (600) (600) (300) - (300) 300

Net changes in fund balance (13,271,200) (13,271,200) (728,222) - (728,222) 12,542,978

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 13,271,200 13,271,200 13,980,313 - 13,980,313 709,113

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 13,252,091 $ - $ 13,252,091 $ 13,252,091

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 13,252,091
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 442,891

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 13,694,982

91



City of Bend, Oregon
Planning Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 6,959 $ - $ 6,959 $ 6,959
Licenses and permits 175,500 175,500 83,398 - 83,398 (92,102)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 5,560,000 5,560,000 2,934,529 - 2,934,529 (2,625,471)
Investment income 130,400 130,400 54,132 - 54,132 (76,268)
Miscellaneous 400 400 96 - 96 (304)

Total Revenues 5,866,300 5,866,300 3,079,114 - 3,079,114 (2,787,186)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 5,370,600 5,089,100 2,425,083 - 2,425,083 2,664,017

Interfund charges 2,385,400 2,177,400 1,223,423 - 1,223,423 953,977
Contingency 3,069,300 3,558,800 - - - 3,558,800

Total Expenditures 10,825,300 10,825,300 3,648,506 - 3,648,506 7,176,794

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (4,959,000) (4,959,000) (569,392) - (569,392) 4,389,608

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (65,400) (65,400) (27,166) - (27,166) 38,234

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (65,400) (65,400) (27,166) - (27,166) 38,234

Net changes in fund balance (5,024,400) (5,024,400) (596,558) - (596,558) 4,427,842

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 5,024,400 5,024,400 4,891,304 - 4,891,304 (133,096)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 4,294,746 $ - $ 4,294,746 $ 4,294,746

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 4,294,746
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 155,511

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 4,450,257
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City of Bend, Oregon
Private Development Engineering Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 136 $ - $ 136 $ 136
Licenses and permits 885,000 885,000 471,156 - 471,156 (413,844)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 4,029,100 4,029,100 2,751,698 - 2,751,698 (1,277,402)
Investment income 93,200 93,200 42,714 - 42,714 (50,486)
Miscellaneous - - 76 - 76 76

Total Revenues 5,007,300 5,007,300 3,265,780 - 3,265,780 (1,741,520)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 4,060,300 3,620,400 1,632,022 - 1,632,022 1,988,378

Interfund charges 1,501,600 1,382,800 775,349 - 775,349 607,451
Contingency 2,300,700 2,859,400 - - - 2,859,400

Total Expenditures 7,862,600 7,862,600 2,407,371 - 2,407,371 5,455,229

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,855,300) (2,855,300) 858,409 - 858,409 3,713,709

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 560,000 560,000 280,000 - 280,000 (280,000)
Transfers out (47,000) (47,000) (21,557) - (21,557) 25,443

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 513,000 513,000 258,443 - 258,443 (254,557)

Net changes in fund balance (2,342,300) (2,342,300) 1,116,852 - 1,116,852 3,459,152

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 2,342,300 2,342,300 2,400,378 - 2,400,378 58,078

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 3,517,230 $ - $ 3,517,230 $ 3,517,230

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 3,517,230
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 101,089

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 3,618,319
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City of Bend, Oregon
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 1,884,600 $ 1,884,600 $ 1,232,753 $ - $ 1,232,753 $ (651,847)
Loan repayments 260,000 260,000 385,565 - 385,565 125,565
Investment income 90,000 90,000 - - - (90,000)

Total Revenues 2,234,600 2,234,600 1,618,318 - 1,618,318 (616,282)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 2,493,900 2,496,100 1,398,012 - 1,398,012 1,098,088

Interfund charges 139,100 118,300 71,900 - 71,900 46,400
Reserves 190,000 190,000 - - - 190,000

Total Expenditures 2,823,000 2,804,400 1,469,912 - 1,469,912 1,334,488

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (588,400) (569,800) 148,406 - 148,406 718,206

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund loan proceeds 200,000 200,000 - - - (200,000)
Interfund loan repayments (200,000) (200,000) - - - 200,000
Transfers in 400,000 381,400 179,000 - 179,000 (202,400)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 400,000 381,400 179,000 - 179,000 (202,400)

Net changes in fund balance (188,400) (188,400) 327,406 - 327,406 515,806

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 188,400 188,400 146,709 - 146,709 (41,691)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 474,115 $ - $ 474,115 $ 474,115
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City of Bend, Oregon
Affordable Housing Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 43 $ - $ 43 $ 43
Charges for services:

Charges to others 2,580,600 2,580,600 1,510,594 - 1,510,594 (1,070,006)
Loan repayments 127,400 127,400 163,944 - 163,944 36,544
Investment income 98,200 98,200 41,845 - 41,845 (56,355)
Miscellaneous - - 816 - 816 816

Total Revenues 2,806,200 2,806,200 1,717,242 - 1,717,242 (1,088,958)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 5,069,300 4,995,000 1,402,312 - 1,402,312 3,592,688

Interfund charges 306,600 270,400 157,500 - 157,500 112,900
Contingency 120,000 249,100 - - - 249,100

Total Expenditures 5,495,900 5,514,500 1,559,812 - 1,559,812 3,954,688

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,689,700) (2,708,300) 157,430 - 157,430 2,865,730

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (400,000) (381,400) (179,000) - (179,000) 202,400

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (400,000) (381,400) (179,000) - (179,000) 202,400

Net changes in fund balance (3,089,700) (3,089,700) (21,570) - (21,570) 3,068,130

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 3,089,700 3,089,700 3,214,844 - 3,214,844 125,144

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 3,193,274 $ - $ 3,193,274 $ 3,193,274

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 3,193,274
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 106,251

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 3,299,525
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City of Bend, Oregon
Business Advocacy Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 35,129 $ - $ 35,129 $ 35,129
Licenses and permits 724,400 724,400 302,150 - 302,150 (422,250)
Investment income 4,400 4,400 1,084 - 1,084 (3,316)

Total Revenues 728,800 728,800 338,363 - 338,363 (390,437)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 717,600 691,000 329,257 - 329,257 361,743

Interfund charges 155,400 137,800 79,900 - 79,900 57,900
Contingency 96,600 140,800 - - - 140,800

Total Expenditures 969,600 969,600 409,157 - 409,157 560,443

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (240,800) (240,800) (70,794) - (70,794) 170,006

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 120,000 120,000 59,000 - 59,000 (61,000)
Transfers out (2,200) (2,200) (542) - (542) 1,658

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 117,800 117,800 58,458 - 58,458 (59,342)

Net changes in fund balance (123,000) (123,000) (12,336) - (12,336) 110,664

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 123,000 123,000 128,890 - 128,890 5,890

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 116,554 $ - $ 116,554 $ 116,554

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 116,554
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 3,963

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 120,517
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City of Bend, Oregon
Tourism Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Room taxes $ 6,718,700 $ 6,718,700 $ 2,745,973 $ - $ 2,745,973 $ (3,972,727)
Investment income 1,000 1,000 651 - 651 (349)

Total Revenues 6,719,700 6,719,700 2,746,624 - 2,746,624 (3,973,076)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 6,585,300 6,585,300 2,822,115 - 2,822,115 3,763,185

Interfund charges 134,400 134,400 58,748 - 58,748 75,652
Contingency 210,600 210,600 - - - 210,600

Total Expenditures 6,930,300 6,930,300 2,880,863 - 2,880,863 4,049,437

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (210,600) (210,600) (134,239) - (134,239) 76,361

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 210,600 210,600 332,667 - 332,667 122,067

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 198,428 $ - $ 198,428 $ 198,428

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 198,428
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 4,014

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 202,442
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City of Bend, Oregon
Economic Improvement District (EID) Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Assessments $ 480,000 $ 480,000 $ 131,601 $ - $ 131,601 $ (348,399)
Investment income 400 400 315 - 315 (85)

Total Revenues 480,400 480,400 131,916 - 131,916 (348,484)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 456,400 456,400 125,336 - 125,336 331,064

Interfund charges 24,000 24,000 6,580 - 6,580 17,420

Total Expenditures 480,400 480,400 131,916 - 131,916 348,484

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures - - - - - -

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) - - - - - -

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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City of Bend, Oregon
Police Reserves Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Investment income $ 11,600 $ 11,600 $ 7,858 $ - $ 7,858 $ (3,742)

Total Revenues 11,600 11,600 7,858 - 7,858 (3,742)

Expenditures
Reserves 668,500 568,500 - - - 568,500

Total Expenditures 668,500 568,500 - - - 568,500

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (656,900) (556,900) 7,858 - 7,858 564,758

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out - (100,000) - - - 100,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (100,000) - - - 100,000

Net changes in fund balance (656,900) (656,900) 7,858 - 7,858 664,758

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 656,900 656,900 670,635 - 670,635 13,735

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 678,493 $ - $ 678,493 $ 678,493

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 678,493
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 21,243

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 699,736
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City of Bend, Oregon
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

BURA General Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 608,600 $ 332,804 $ 275,796
Contingency 50,500 - 50,500

Total BURA General Fund $ 659,100 $ 332,804 $ 326,296

Energy ARRA Grant Fund
Transfers $ 83,900 $ 31,038 $ 52,862

Total Energy ARRA Grant Fund $ 83,900 $ 31,038 $ 52,862

Helen Lorenz Estate Fund
Transfers $ 180,000 $ 33,030 $ 146,970

Total Helen Lorenz Estate Fund $ 180,000 $ 33,030 $ 146,970

Building Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 11,321,800 $ 5,546,763 $ 5,775,037
Transfers 4,615,700 2,558,698 2,057,002
Contingency 9,782,500 - 9,782,500
Reserves 1,200,000 - 1,200,000

Total Building Fund $ 26,920,000 $ 8,105,461 $ 18,814,539

Planning Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 5,089,100 $ 2,425,083 $ 2,664,017
Transfers 2,242,800 1,250,589 992,211
Contingency 3,558,800 - 3,558,800

Total Planning Fund $ 10,890,700 $ 3,675,672 $ 7,215,028

Private Development Engineering Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 3,620,400 $ 1,632,022 $ 1,988,378
Transfers 1,429,800 796,906 632,894
Contingency 2,859,400 - 2,859,400

Total Private Development Engineering Fund $ 7,909,600 $ 2,428,928 $ 5,480,672

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 2,496,100 $ 1,398,012 $ 1,098,088
Transfers 118,300 71,900 46,400
Reserves 190,000 - 190,000

Total Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund $ 2,804,400 $ 1,469,912 $ 1,334,488

Affordable Housing Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 4,995,000 $ 1,402,312 $ 3,592,688
Transfers 651,800 336,500 315,300
Contingency 249,100 - 249,100

Total Affordable Housing Fund $ 5,895,900 $ 1,738,812 $ 4,157,088

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels (Continued)
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Business Advocacy Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 691,000 $ 329,257 $ 361,743
Transfers 140,000 80,442 59,558
Contingency 140,800 - 140,800

Total Business Advocacy Fund $ 971,800 $ 409,699 $ 562,101

Tourism Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 6,585,300 $ 2,822,115 $ 3,763,185
Transfers 134,400 58,748 75,652
Contingency 210,600 - 210,600

Total Tourism Fund $ 6,930,300 $ 2,880,863 $ 4,049,437

Economic Improvement District (EID) Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 456,400 $ 125,336 $ 331,064
Transfers 24,000 6,580 17,420

Total Economic Improvement District (EID) Fund $ 480,400 $ 131,916 $ 348,484

Police Reserves Fund
Transfers $ 100,000 $ - $ 100,000
Reserves 568,500 - 568,500

Total Police Reserves Fund $ 668,500 $ - $ 668,500

Concluded
101



NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

BURA Murphy Crossing Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for the debt-related activities of the Bend Urban Renewal Agency's Murphy Crossing urban
renewal district. The principal source of revenue is property taxes which will be used to pay the principal and
interest on outstanding tax increment bonds.

Fire Station Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for the servicing of bonds issued to fund construction of new fire stations. The principal
source of revenue is payments from the Deschutes County Rural Fire Protection District. Expenditures are for
principal and interest payments on the outstanding debt.

PERS Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for the servicing of pension obligation bonds issued to reduce the City's unfunded actuarial
liability.

BURA Juniper Ridge Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for the debt-related activities of the Bend Urban Renewal Agency's Juniper Ridge urban
renewal district. The principal source of revenue is property taxes which will be used to pay principal and
interest on outstanding tax increment bonds.

General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for the collection of property taxes and the servicing of the related general obligation bonds.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
June 30, 2020

BURA Murphy
Crossing Debt
Service Fund

Fire Station
Debt Service

Fund
PERS Debt

Service Fund

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ - $ 12,323 $ 584,529
Restricted cash and investments 1,167,369 - -
Receivables:

Taxes 12,538 - -

Total Assets $ 1,179,907 $ 12,323 $ 584,529

Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits)
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenue - property taxes $ 8,935 $ - $ -

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,935 - -

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted for:

Outside debt covenant 1,170,972 - -
Assigned:

Debt service - 12,323 584,529

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 1,170,972 12,323 584,529

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
(Deficits) $ 1,179,907 $ 12,323 $ 584,529

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
June 30, 2020

BURA Juniper
Ridge Debt

Service Fund

General
Obligation
Bond Debt

Service Fund
Total Debt

Service Funds

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ - $ - $ 596,852
Restricted cash and investments 3,627,463 1,697,614 6,492,446
Receivables:

Taxes 34,018 53,418 99,974

Total Assets $ 3,661,481 $ 1,751,032 $ 7,189,272

Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficits)
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenue - property taxes $ 23,943 $ 37,643 $ 70,521

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 23,943 37,643 70,521

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted for:

Outside debt covenant 3,637,538 1,713,389 6,521,899
Assigned:

Debt service - - 596,852

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 3,637,538 1,713,389 7,118,751

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
(Deficits) $ 3,661,481 $ 1,751,032 $ 7,189,272

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

BURA Murphy
Crossing Debt
Service Fund

Fire Station
Debt Service

Fund
PERS Debt

Service Fund

Revenues
Property taxes $ 504,052 $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - 246,210 -
Charges for services - - 3,401,528
Investment income 47,327 2,211 40,413

Total Revenues 551,379 248,421 3,441,941

Expenditures
Current:

General government - - 11,254,338
Infrastructure - - -

Debt service:
Principal 194,883 205,000 750,000
Interest 48,799 41,210 624,629

Total Expenditures 243,682 246,210 12,628,967

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 307,697 2,211 (9,187,026)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - 5,000 6,957,339
Transfers out (10,000) (5,521) (8,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (10,000) (521) 6,949,339

Net change in fund balances 297,697 1,690 (2,237,687)

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 873,275 10,633 2,822,216

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 1,170,972 $ 12,323 $ 584,529

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) (Continued)

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

BURA Juniper
Ridge Debt

Service Fund

General
Obligation
Bond Debt

Service Fund
Total Debt

Service Funds

Revenues
Property taxes $ 1,350,302 $ 1,969,573 $ 3,823,927
Intergovernmental - - 246,210
Charges for services - - 3,401,528
Investment income 149,835 100,838 340,624

Total Revenues 1,500,137 2,070,411 7,812,289

Expenditures
Current:

General government - - 11,254,338
Infrastructure - 500 500

Debt service:
Principal 597,374 1,205,000 2,952,257
Interest 72,322 633,900 1,420,860

Total Expenditures 669,696 1,839,400 15,627,955

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 830,441 231,011 (7,815,666)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - 6,962,339
Transfers out (130,000) - (153,521)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (130,000) - 6,808,818

Net change in fund balances 700,441 231,011 (1,006,848)

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 2,937,097 1,482,378 8,125,599

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 3,637,538 $ 1,713,389 $ 7,118,751

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
BURA Murphy Crossing Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Property taxes:

Current year's property tax levy $ 983,000 $ 983,000 $ 489,471 $ - $ 489,471 $ (493,529)
Delinquent property taxes 11,500 11,500 14,581 - 14,581 3,081

Investment income 80,000 80,000 15,151 - 15,151 (64,849)

Total Revenues 1,074,500 1,074,500 519,203 - 519,203 (555,297)

Expenditures
Debt service 548,100 548,100 253,682 - 253,682 294,418
Reserved for debt service 1,374,900 1,374,900 - - - 1,374,900

Total Expenditures 1,923,000 1,923,000 253,682 - 253,682 1,669,318

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (848,500) (848,500) 265,521 - 265,521 1,114,021

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 848,500 848,500 873,275 - 873,275 24,775

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 1,138,796 $ - $ 1,138,796 $ 1,138,796

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 1,138,796
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 32,176
Reclass debt service for budgetary reporting 10,000
Transfers out to Construction Fund for debt service (10,000)

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 1,170,972
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City of Bend, Oregon
Fire Station Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 496,000 $ 496,000 $ 246,210 $ - $ 246,210 $ (249,790)
Investment income 4,800 4,800 1,042 - 1,042 (3,758)

Total Revenues 500,800 500,800 247,252 - 247,252 (253,548)

Expenditures
Current:
   Public safety 600 600 - - - 600
Debt service 496,000 496,000 246,210 - 246,210 249,790
Reserved for debt service 10,800 10,800 - - - 10,800

Total Expenditures 507,400 507,400 246,210 - 246,210 261,190

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (6,600) (6,600) 1,042 - 1,042 7,642

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 10,000 10,000 5,000 - 5,000 (5,000)
Transfers out (12,400) (12,400) (5,521) - (5,521) 6,879

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,400) (2,400) (521) - (521) 1,879

Net changes in fund balance (9,000) (9,000) 521 - 521 9,521

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 9,000 9,000 10,633 - 10,633 1,633

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 11,154 $ - $ 11,154 $ 11,154

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 11,154
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 1,169

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 12,323
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City of Bend, Oregon
PERS Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Charges for services:

Charges to others $ 4,784,500 $ 2,497,000 $ 9,500 $ - $ 9,500 $ (2,487,500)
Charges to other City funds - 2,287,500 3,392,028 - 3,392,028 1,104,528

Investment income 159,600 159,600 (4,080) - (4,080) (163,680)

Total Revenues 4,944,100 4,944,100 3,397,448 - 3,397,448 (1,546,652)

Expenditures
Current:
   Administration & central services 4,297,000 11,254,400 11,254,338 - 11,254,338 62
Debt service 2,808,000 2,808,000 1,374,629 - 1,374,629 1,433,371
Reserved for debt service 615,600 615,600 - - - 615,600

Total Expenditures 7,720,600 14,678,000 12,628,967 - 12,628,967 2,049,033

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,776,500) (9,733,900) (9,231,519) - (9,231,519) 502,381

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - 6,957,400 6,957,339 - 6,957,339 (61)
Transfers out (95,800) (95,800) (8,000) - (8,000) 87,800

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (95,800) 6,861,600 6,949,339 - 6,949,339 87,739

Net changes in fund balance (2,872,300) (2,872,300) (2,282,180) - (2,282,180) 590,120

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 2,872,300 2,872,300 2,822,216 - 2,822,216 (50,084)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 540,036 $ - $ 540,036 $ 540,036

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 540,036
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 44,493

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 584,529
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City of Bend, Oregon
BURA Juniper Ridge Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Property taxes:

Current year's property tax levy $ 2,399,500 $ 2,399,500 $ 1,304,650 $ - $ 1,304,650 $ (1,094,850)
Delinquent property taxes 28,400 28,400 45,652 - 45,652 17,252

Investment income 171,500 171,500 46,090 - 46,090 (125,410)

Total Revenues 2,599,400 2,599,400 1,396,392 - 1,396,392 (1,203,008)

Expenditures
Debt service 1,478,200 1,666,500 799,696 - 799,696 866,804
Reserved for debt service 4,003,400 3,815,100 - - - 3,815,100

Total Expenditures 5,481,600 5,481,600 799,696 - 799,696 4,681,904

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,882,200) (2,882,200) 596,696 - 596,696 3,478,896

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 2,882,200 2,882,200 2,937,097 - 2,937,097 54,897

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 3,533,793 $ - $ 3,533,793 $ 3,533,793

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 3,533,793
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 103,745
Reclass debt service for budgetary reporting 130,000
Transfers out to Construction Fund for debt service (130,000)

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 3,637,538
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City of Bend, Oregon
General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Property taxes:

Current year's property tax levy $ 3,680,000 $ 3,680,000 $ 1,889,483 $ - $ 1,889,483 $ (1,790,517)
Delinquent property taxes 80,600 80,600 80,090 - 80,090 (510)

Investment income 89,100 89,100 36,597 - 36,597 (52,503)

Total Revenues 3,849,700 3,849,700 2,006,170 - 2,006,170 (1,843,530)

Expenditures
Current:
   Infrastructure 1,000 1,000 500 - 500 500
Debt service 3,677,000 3,677,000 1,838,900 - 1,838,900 1,838,100
Reserved for debt service 1,583,900 1,583,900 - - - 1,583,900

Total Expenditures 5,261,900 5,261,900 1,839,400 - 1,839,400 3,422,500

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (1,412,200) (1,412,200) 166,770 - 166,770 1,578,970

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 1,412,200 1,412,200 1,482,378 - 1,482,378 70,178

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 1,649,148 $ - $ 1,649,148 $ 1,649,148

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 1,649,148
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 64,241

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 1,713,389
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City of Bend, Oregon
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

BURA Murphy Crossing Debt Service Fund
Debt service $ 548,100 $ 253,682 $ 294,418
Reserves 1,374,900 - 1,374,900

Total BURA Murphy Crossing Debt Service Fund $ 1,923,000 $ 253,682 $ 1,669,318

Fire Station Debt Service Fund
Public Safety Program $ 600 $ - $ 600
Debt service 496,000 246,210 249,790
Transfers 12,400 5,521 6,879
Reserves 10,800 - 10,800

Total Fire Station Debt Service Fund $ 519,800 $ 251,731 $ 268,069

PERS Debt Service Fund
Administration & Central Services Program $ 11,254,400 $ 11,254,338 $ 62
Debt service 2,808,000 1,374,629 1,433,371
Transfers 95,800 8,000 87,800
Reserves 615,600 - 615,600

Total PERS Debt Service Fund $ 14,773,800 $ 12,636,967 $ 2,136,833

BURA Juniper Ridge Debt Service Fund
Debt service $ 1,666,500 $ 799,696 $ 866,804
Reserves 3,815,100 - 3,815,100

Total BURA Juniper Ridge Debt Service Fund $ 5,481,600 $ 799,696 $ 4,681,904

General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund
Infrastructure Program $ 1,000 $ 500 $ 500
Debt service 3,677,000 1,838,900 1,838,100
Reserves 1,583,900 - 1,583,900

Total General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund $ 5,261,900 $ 1,839,400 $ 3,422,500

111



This page intentionally left blank



MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Transportation Construction Fund
This fund accounts for the construction of streets, bridges, and trails. The principal sources of revenue are
franchise fees, transfers from the System Development Charges (SDC) Fund, and proceeds from borrowings.





City of Bend, Oregon
Transportation Construction Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Franchise fees $ 3,317,900 $ 3,317,900 $ 1,919,939 $ - $ 1,919,939 $ (1,397,961)
Intergovernmental 370,000 5,070,000 246,285 - 246,285 (4,823,715)
Charges for services:

Charges to other City funds 22,200 22,200 8,686 - 8,686 (13,514)
Contributions - - 204,242 - 204,242 204,242
Investment income 610,900 610,900 208,980 - 208,980 (401,920)
Miscellaneous 1,400 1,400 99 - 99 (1,301)

Total Revenues 4,322,400 9,022,400 2,588,231 - 2,588,231 (6,434,169)

Expenditures
Current:
   Infrastructure 57,824,100 58,145,800 23,524,852 - 23,524,852 34,620,948

Interfund charges 3,514,600 2,869,800 1,692,600 - 1,692,600 1,177,200
Debt service 2,608,000 2,608,000 1,298,718 - 1,298,718 1,309,282
Contingency 614,400 614,400 - - - 614,400
Reserved for construction 5,561,800 7,350,400 - - - 7,350,400
Reserved for debt service 4,598,800 4,598,800 - - - 4,598,800
Reserves 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Reserved for developer exaction 1,091,300 1,062,700 - - - 1,062,700

Total Expenditures 78,813,000 80,249,900 26,516,170 - 26,516,170 53,733,730

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (74,490,600) (71,227,500) (23,927,939) - (23,927,939) 47,299,561

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt 44,382,000 44,382,000 45,052,660 - 45,052,660 670,660
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - 6,205,091 - 6,205,091 6,205,091
Transfers in 21,353,400 18,118,900 3,920,510 - 3,920,510 (14,198,390)
Transfers out (1,733,300) (1,761,900) (358,764) - (358,764) 1,403,136

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 64,002,100 60,739,000 54,819,497 - 54,819,497 (5,919,503)

Net changes in fund balance (10,488,500) (10,488,500) 30,891,558 - 30,891,558 41,380,058

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 10,488,500 10,488,500 9,886,252 - 9,886,252 (602,248)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 40,777,810 $ - $ 40,777,810 $ 40,777,810

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 40,777,810
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 279,708

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 41,057,518
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City of Bend, Oregon
Major Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Expenses and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Transportation Construction Fund
Infrastructure Program $ 58,145,800 $ 23,524,852 $ 34,620,948
Debt service 2,608,000 1,298,718 1,309,282
Transfers 4,631,700 2,051,364 2,580,336
Contingency 614,400 - 614,400
Reserves 16,011,900 - 16,011,900

Total transportation construction fund $ 82,011,800 $ 26,874,934 $ 55,136,866
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Local Improvement District Construction Fund
This fund accounts for the cost of construction and related interim financing for public improvements which
primarily benefit the property owners against whose properties are levied a special assessment. Construction
period financing is obtained through short-term borrowing or interfund loans.

BURA Murphy Crossing Construction Fund
This fund accounts for the cost of construction and related interim financing for transportation and public utility
improvements and other land use development. The principal source of revenue is proceeds from borrowings.

BURA Juniper Ridge Construction Fund
This fund accounts for the cost of construction and related interim financing for transportation and public utility
improvements and other land use development. The principal source of revenue is contributions from other
funds and proceeds from borrowings.

Accessibility Construction Fund
This fund accounts for construction and debt service activities related to improving accessibility. Funding is
provided from the General Fund and franchise fees.

General Obligation Bond Construction Fund
This fund accounts for the construction of transportation improvements funded by general obligation bonds in
the City's Capital Improvement Program.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 2020

Local
Improvement

District
Construction
(LID) Fund

BURA Murphy
Crossing

Construction
Fund

BURA Juniper
Ridge

Construction
Fund

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 648,019 $ - $ -
Restricted cash and investments - 1,401 1,271,179

Receivables:
Accounts, net - - -

Due from other governments - - 1,894

Total Assets $ 648,019 $ 1,401 $ 1,273,073

Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits)

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 11,914
Salaries and benefits payable - - 2,505
Retainage payable - - -

Total Liabilities - - 14,419

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted for:

Outside construction covenant - 1,401 1,258,654
Assigned:

Construction activities 648,019 - -

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 648,019 1,401 1,258,654

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 648,019 $ 1,401 $ 1,273,073

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 2020

Accessibility
Construction

Fund

General
Obligation

Bond
Construction

Fund
Total Capital

Projects Funds

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 1,347,758 $ - $ 1,995,777
Restricted cash and investments - - 1,272,580

Receivables:
Accounts, net 60,814 - 60,814

Due from other governments - - 1,894

Total Assets $ 1,408,572 $ - $ 3,331,065

Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits)

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 160,538 $ - $ 172,452
Salaries and benefits payable 988 - 3,493
Retainage payable 7,216 - 7,216

Total Liabilities 168,742 - 183,161

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted for:

Outside construction covenant - - 1,260,055
Assigned:

Construction activities 1,239,830 - 1,887,849

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 1,239,830 - 3,147,904

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 1,408,572 $ - $ 3,331,065

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Local
Improvement

District
Construction
(LID) Fund

BURA Murphy
Crossing

Construction
Fund

BURA Juniper
Ridge

Construction
Fund

Revenues
Franchise fees $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - 1,894
Investment income 27,126 190 55,645

Total Revenues 27,126 190 57,539

Expenditures
Current:

Infrastructure - - -
Urban renewal - 15,581 251,637

Debt service:
Principal - - -
Interest - - -

Capital outlay - - -

Total Expenditures - 15,581 251,637

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 27,126 (15,391) (194,098)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund loan proceeds - - -
Issuance of long-term debt - - -
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - -
Transfers in - 10,000 130,000
Transfers out (3,638) - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,638) 10,000 130,000

Net change in fund balances 23,488 (5,391) (64,098)

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 624,531 6,792 1,322,752

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 648,019 $ 1,401 $ 1,258,654

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) (Continued)

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Accessibility
Construction

Fund

General
Obligation

Bond
Construction

Fund
Total Capital

Projects Funds

Revenues
Franchise fees $ 825,238 $ - $ 825,238
Intergovernmental 13,580 - 15,474
Investment income 55,798 - 138,759

Total Revenues 894,616 - 979,471

Expenditures
Current:

Infrastructure 323,797 - 323,797
Urban renewal - - 267,218

Debt service:
Principal 240,000 - 240,000
Interest 64,138 - 64,138

Capital outlay 585,077 - 585,077

Total Expenditures 1,213,012 - 1,480,230

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (318,396) - (500,759)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund loan proceeds - - -
Issuance of long-term debt 202,340 - 202,340
Premium on issuance of long-term debt 27,868 - 27,868
Transfers in - - 140,000
Transfers out (6,661) (8,528) (18,827)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 223,547 (8,528) 351,381

Net change in fund balances (94,849) (8,528) (149,378)

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 1,334,679 8,528 3,297,282

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 1,239,830 $ - $ 3,147,904

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Local Improvement District Construction (LID) Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Investment income $ 25,600 $ 25,600 $ 7,276 $ - $ 7,276 $ (18,324)

Total Revenues 25,600 25,600 7,276 - 7,276 (18,324)

Expenditures
Current:
   Infrastructure 12,800 - - - - -
Reserved for construction 624,300 624,300 - - - 624,300

Total Expenditures 637,100 624,300 - - - 624,300

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (611,500) (598,700) 7,276 - 7,276 605,976

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out - (12,800) (3,638) - (3,638) 9,162

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (12,800) (3,638) - (3,638) 9,162

Net changes in fund balance (611,500) (611,500) 3,638 - 3,638 615,138

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 611,500 611,500 624,531 - 624,531 13,031

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 628,169 $ - $ 628,169 $ 628,169

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 628,169
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 19,850

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 648,019
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City of Bend, Oregon
BURA Murphy Crossing Construction Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development $ 57,100 $ 57,100 $ 15,581 $ - $ 15,581 $ 41,519
Contingency 4,100 4,100 - - - 4,100

Total Expenditures 61,200 61,200 15,581 - 15,581 45,619

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (61,200) (61,200) (15,581) - (15,581) 45,619

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund loan proceeds 57,100 57,100 10,000 - 10,000 (47,100)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 57,100 57,100 10,000 - 10,000 (47,100)

Net changes in fund balance (4,100) (4,100) (5,581) - (5,581) (1,481)

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 4,100 4,100 6,792 - 6,792 2,692

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 1,211 $ - $ 1,211 $ 1,211

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 1,211
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 190
Transfers in to Construction Fund for debt service 10,000
Reclass loan proceeds for budgetary reporting (10,000)

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 1,401
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City of Bend, Oregon
BURA Juniper Ridge Construction Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 1,894 $ - $ 1,894 $ 1,894
Investment income 132,500 132,500 14,602 - 14,602 (117,898)

Total Revenues 132,500 132,500 16,496 - 16,496 (116,004)

Expenditures
Current:
   Community and economic development 911,900 911,900 251,637 - 251,637 660,263

Interfund charges 4,900 4,900 - - - 4,900
Contingency 399,600 399,600 - - - 399,600

Total Expenditures 1,316,400 1,316,400 251,637 - 251,637 1,064,763

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (1,183,900) (1,183,900) (235,141) - (235,141) 948,759

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund loan proceeds 132,200 132,200 130,000 - 130,000 (2,200)
Transfers out (225,700) (225,700) - - - 225,700

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (93,500) (93,500) 130,000 - 130,000 223,500

Net changes in fund balance (1,277,400) (1,277,400) (105,141) - (105,141) 1,172,259

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 1,277,400 1,277,400 1,322,752 - 1,322,752 45,352

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 1,217,611 $ - $ 1,217,611 $ 1,217,611

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 1,217,611
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 41,043
Transfers in to Construction Fund for debt service 130,000
Reclass loan proceeds for budgetary reporting (130,000)

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 1,258,654
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City of Bend, Oregon
Accessibility Construction Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Franchise fees $ 1,389,400 $ 1,389,400 $ 825,238 $ - $ 825,238 $ (564,162)
Intergovernmental 49,600 49,600 13,580 - 13,580 (36,020)
Investment income 4,200 4,200 13,322 - 13,322 9,122

Total Revenues 1,443,200 1,443,200 852,140 - 852,140 (591,060)

Expenditures
Current:
   Infrastructure 2,151,300 1,989,400 654,366 - 654,366 1,335,034

Interfund charges 567,100 483,900 254,508 - 254,508 229,392
Debt service 700,000 700,000 304,138 - 304,138 395,862
Contingency 10,000 10,000 - - - 10,000
Reserved for construction 531,800 435,900 - - - 435,900

Total Expenditures 3,960,200 3,619,200 1,213,012 - 1,213,012 2,406,188

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,517,000) (2,176,000) (360,872) - (360,872) 1,815,128

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt 885,700 885,700 202,340 - 202,340 (683,360)
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - 27,868 - 27,868 27,868
Transfers in 346,000 5,000 - - - (5,000)
Transfers out (2,100) (2,100) (6,661) - (6,661) (4,561)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,229,600 888,600 223,547 - 223,547 (665,053)

Net changes in fund balance (1,287,400) (1,287,400) (137,325) - (137,325) 1,150,075

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 1,287,400 1,287,400 1,334,679 - 1,334,679 47,279

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 1,197,354 $ - $ 1,197,354 $ 1,197,354

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 1,197,354
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 42,476

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 1,239,830
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City of Bend, Oregon
General Obligation Bond Construction Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out $ - $ (8,600) $ (8,528) $ - $ (8,528) $ 72

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (8,600) (8,528) - (8,528) 72

Net changes in fund balance - (8,600) (8,528) - (8,528) 72

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) - 8,600 8,528 - 8,528 (72)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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City of Bend, Oregon
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Local Improvement District Construction (LID) Fund
Transfers $ 12,800 $ 3,638 $ 9,162
Reserves 624,300 - 624,300

Total Local Improvement District Construction (LID) Fund $ 637,100 $ 3,638 $ 633,462

BURA Murphy Crossing Construction Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 57,100 $ 15,581 $ 41,519
Contingency 4,100 - 4,100

Total BURA Murphy Crossing Construction Fund $ 61,200 $ 15,581 $ 45,619

BURA Juniper Ridge Construction Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 911,900 $ 251,637 $ 660,263
Transfers 230,600 - 230,600
Contingency 399,600 - 399,600

Total BURA Juniper Ridge Construction Fund $ 1,542,100 $ 251,637 $ 1,290,463

Accessibility Construction Fund
Infrastructure Program $ 1,989,400 $ 654,366 $ 1,335,034
Debt service 700,000 304,138 395,862
Transfers 486,000 261,169 224,831
Contingency 10,000 - 10,000
Reserves 435,900 - 435,900

Total Accessibility Construction Fund $ 3,621,300 $ 1,219,673 $ 2,401,627

General Obligation Bond Construction Fund
Transfers $ 8,600 $ 8,528 $ 72

Total General Obligation Bond Construction Fund $ 8,600 $ 8,528 $ 72
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NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

Cemetery Permanent Maintenance Fund
This fund accounts for the collection of cemetery permanent maintenance revenues. The earnings, not
principal, from the permanent maintenance collections are used to support Cemetery Fund operations.





City of Bend, Oregon
Cemetery Permanent Maintenance Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Permanent maintenance fees $ 13,400 $ 13,400 $ 6,546 $ - $ 6,546 $ (6,854)
Investment income 45,000 45,000 (20,996) - (20,996) (65,996)

Total Revenues 58,400 58,400 (14,450) - (14,450) (72,850)

Expenditures
Current:
   Infrastructure 10,800 10,800 5,303 - 5,303 5,497
Reserved for permanent maintenance 658,100 658,100 - - - 658,100

Total Expenditures 668,900 668,900 5,303 - 5,303 663,597

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (610,500) (610,500) (19,753) - (19,753) 590,747

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (45,000) (45,000) (20,594) - (20,594) 24,406

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (45,000) (45,000) (20,594) - (20,594) 24,406

Net changes in fund balance (655,500) (655,500) (40,347) - (40,347) 615,153

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 655,500 655,500 680,364 - 680,364 24,864

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 640,017 $ - $ 640,017 $ 640,017

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 640,017
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 57,345

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 697,362
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City of Bend, Oregon
Nonmajor Permanent Funds

Schedule of Expenses and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Cemetery Permanent Maintenance Fund
Infrastructure Program $ 10,800 $ 5,303 $ 5,497
Transfers 45,000 20,594 24,406
Reserves 658,100 - 658,100

Total Cemetery Permanent Maintenance Fund $ 713,900 $ 25,897 $ 688,003
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Airport Fund
This fund accounts for the operations of the City's municipal airport. The principal sources of revenue are
grants, and hangar, ground and operator leases. Expenses are for maintenance and improvements of airport
facilities.

Cemetery Fund
This fund accounts for the operations of the City cemetery. The principal sources of revenues are user charges
and interest income which are used to fund maintenance and capital improvements at the cemetery.

Parking & Downtown Fund
This fund accounts for the operation of City-owned parking facilities. Revenue sources include parking fees,
fines and rental charges. The revenue is used for program administration and management.

Stormwater Fund
This fund accounts for the operation of the City's stormwater facilities. The primary revenue source is user fees.





City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Fund Net Position

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2020

Airport Fund
Cemetery

Fund
Parking &

Downtown Fund
Stormwater

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Assets
Current assets:

Pooled cash and investments $ 6,207 $ 37,611 $ 1,141,899 $ 3,576,708 $ 4,762,425
Receivables:

Accounts, net 20,432 - 42,541 708,578 771,551
Due from other governments 260,717 - 507 114 261,338

Total Current Assets 287,356 37,611 1,184,947 4,285,400 5,795,314

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments 21,953 - 1,286,793 - 1,308,746
Capital assets, net 30,420,614 121,693 12,123,240 37,978,728 80,644,275
Net OPEB asset 2,174 1,449 725 11,051 15,399

Total Noncurrent Assets 30,444,741 123,142 13,410,758 37,989,779 81,968,420

Total Assets 30,732,097 160,753 14,595,705 42,275,179 87,763,734

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows from pensions 76,388 50,926 25,463 388,307 541,084
Deferred outflows from OPEB 26,212 17,474 8,737 133,242 185,665

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 102,600 68,400 34,200 521,549 726,749

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 12,081 3,380 58,122 378,950 452,533
Salaries and benefits payable 3,851 2,129 2,568 18,036 26,584
Retainage payable - - 9,257 1,364 10,621
Other accrued liabilities:

Compensated absences 13,654 17,312 8,841 72,013 111,820
Interest payable 3,811 - 3,707 1,573 9,091
Insurance claims 165 - - 291 456
Other 29,135 - - - 29,135

Deposits - restricted 21,953 - 16,793 - 38,746
Due to other funds 250,000 - - - 250,000
Current portion of advances from other

funds 100,000 - - - 100,000
Current portion of long term debt, net 30,445 - 7,573 75,282 113,300

Total Current Liabilities 465,095 22,821 106,861 547,509 1,142,286

Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds 800,000 - - - 800,000
Net pension liability 176,268 117,512 58,757 896,031 1,248,568
Net OPEB liability 136,961 91,307 45,653 696,218 970,139
Long-term debt, net 437,802 - 786,165 587,129 1,811,096

Total Noncurrent liabilities 1,551,031 208,819 890,575 2,179,378 4,829,803

Total Liabilities 2,016,126 231,640 997,436 2,726,887 5,972,089

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows from pensions 6,712 4,475 2,237 34,122 47,546
Deferred inflows from OPEB 897 598 299 4,560 6,354

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,609 5,073 2,536 38,682 53,900

Net Position (Deficit)
Net investment in capital assets 29,952,367 121,693 11,339,194 37,316,317 78,729,571
Restricted for:

Debt - - 9,692 - 9,692
Capital projects - - 1,270,000 - 1,270,000

Unrestricted (deficit) (1,141,405) (129,253) 1,011,047 2,714,842 2,455,231

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ 28,810,962 $ (7,560) $ 13,629,933 $ 40,031,159 $ 82,464,494
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Airport Fund
Cemetery

Fund

Parking &
Downtown

Fund
Stormwater

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Operating Revenues
Licenses and permits $ - $ - $ 540,900 $ - $ 540,900
Charges for services 950,276 85,415 8,515 4,190,569 5,234,775
Fines and forfeitures - - 232,999 - 232,999
Rental income - - 236,922 - 236,922
Miscellaneous 6,642 - 4,296 804 11,742

Total Operating Revenues 956,918 85,415 1,023,632 4,191,373 6,257,338

Operating Expenses
Salaries and benefits 190,225 164,703 46,147 1,245,888 1,646,963
Materials and supplies 196,042 48,746 610,602 308,100 1,163,490
Internal services 413,650 97,228 219,519 751,113 1,481,510
Depreciation 847,393 13,385 414,567 1,190,882 2,466,227

Total Operating Expenses 1,647,310 324,062 1,290,835 3,495,983 6,758,190

Operating income (loss) (690,392) (238,647) (267,203) 695,390 (500,852)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income - - 80,798 224,527 305,325
Interest expense (49,877) - (3,707) (20,272) (73,856)
Amortization - - 1,743 - 1,743
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 80 9,094 - - 9,174
Noncapital grants and contributions 383 - 507 116 1,006

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (49,414) 9,094 79,341 204,371 243,392

Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers (739,806) (229,553) (187,862) 899,761 (257,460)

Contributions and Transfers
Capital grants and contributions 210,983 - - 2,766,991 2,977,974
Transfers in - 188,094 - - 188,094
Transfers out (9,200) (1,300) (67,000) (217,600) (295,100)

Total Contributions and Transfers 201,783 186,794 (67,000) 2,549,391 2,870,968

Change in net position (538,023) (42,759) (254,862) 3,449,152 2,613,508

Net Position (Deficit), July 1, 2019 29,348,985 35,199 13,884,795 36,582,007 79,850,986

Net Position (Deficit), June 30, 2020 $ 28,810,962 $ (7,560) $ 13,629,933 $ 40,031,159 $ 82,464,494

127



City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Airport Fund
Cemetery

Fund

Parking &
Downtown

Fund
Stormwater

Fund Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 932,979 $ 85,415 $ 1,050,574 $ 4,149,722 $ 6,218,690
Cash received from interfund services

provided - - - 25,279 25,279
Cash paid to employees for services (243,349) (122,974) (149,122) (1,181,343) (1,696,788)
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (195,518) (50,355) (604,231) (332,213) (1,182,317)
Cash paid for interfund services used (413,650) (97,230) (219,519) (751,113) (1,481,512)

Net Cash from Operating Activities 80,462 (185,144) 77,702 1,910,332 1,883,352

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing
Activities
Transfers from other funds - 188,094 - - 188,094
Transfers to other funds (9,200) (1,300) (67,000) (217,600) (295,100)
Interfund loan proceeds 250,000 - - - 250,000
Interfund loan repayments (915,000) - - - (915,000)
Noncapital grants and contributions 383 - - 2 385

Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities (673,817) 186,794 (67,000) (217,598) (771,621)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Issuance of debt - - 706,511 - 706,511
Premium on issuance of debt - - 88,970 - 88,970
Principal payments on capital debt (30,228) - - (73,182) (103,410)
Interest payments on capital debt (24,079) - - (20,446) (44,525)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (274,694) (38,056) (225,037) (3,390,249) (3,928,036)
Repayment to/from other funds for capital

activities (100,000) - - - (100,000)
Interest paid/received for advances to/from

other funds for capital activities (26,000) - - - (26,000)
Capital grants and contributions 941,916 - - - 941,916
Proceeds from retirement of assets 80 9,094 - - 9,174

Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing
Activities 486,995 (28,962) 570,444 (3,483,877) (2,455,400)

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income - - 22,561 38,852 61,413

Net change in pooled cash and investments (106,360) (27,312) 603,707 (1,752,291) (1,282,256)

Pooled Cash and Investments, July 1, 2019 134,520 64,923 1,766,748 5,143,324 7,109,515

Pooled Cash and Investments, June 30, 2020 $ 28,160 $ 37,611 $ 2,370,455 $ 3,391,033 $ 5,827,259

Reconciliation of Pooled Cash and
Investments to Statement of Net Position:

Pooled cash and investments 6,207 37,611 1,141,899 3,576,708 4,762,425
Restricted cash and investments 21,953 - 1,286,793 - 1,308,746
less unrealized (gain) loss on investments - - (58,237) (185,675) (243,912)

Pooled Cash and Investments 28,160 37,611 2,370,455 3,391,033 5,827,259

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Airport Fund
Cemetery

Fund

Parking &
Downtown

Fund
Stormwater

Fund Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities

Operating income (loss) $ (690,392) $ (238,647) $ (267,203) $ 695,390 $ (500,852)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

(loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Depreciation 847,393 13,385 414,567 1,190,882 2,466,227
Change in:

Accounts receivable 4,155 - 26,942 (16,372) 14,725
Accounts payable 524 (1,611) 6,371 (24,113) (18,829)
Salaries and benefits payable (722) 543 (1,429) 1,358 (250)
Pension benefits (37,857) 6,531 (40,984) (49,753) (122,063)
Other post-employment benefits (13,689) 30,467 (39,916) 108,232 85,094
Compensated absences payable (858) 4,188 (20,646) 5,001 (12,315)
Insurance claims payable 2 - - (293) (291)
Prepaids and deposits payable (28,094) - - - (28,094)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities $ 80,462 $ (185,144) $ 77,702 $ 1,910,332 $ 1,883,352

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities   

The City received donated stormwater infrastructure totaling $2,766,991 in the current year.

Acquisition of capital assets financed through accounts payable or retainage payable for the current year totaled $940 in the
Airport Fund, $9,257 in the Parking & Downtown Fund, and $349,641 in the Stormwater Fund.

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Airport Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 486,600 $ 521,100 $ 211,366 $ - $ 211,366 $ (309,734)

Charges to others 1,959,600 1,855,900 888,408 - 888,408 (967,492)
Rental income:

Rental income from others 127,700 131,300 61,868 - 61,868 (69,432)
Investment income (400) (15,900) - - - 15,900
Miscellaneous 6,000 9,600 6,642 - 6,642 (2,958)

Total Revenues 2,579,500 2,502,000 1,168,284 - 1,168,284 (1,333,716)

Expenses
Current:
   Community and economic development 1,710,700 1,596,900 617,370 - 617,370 979,530

Interfund charges 794,000 734,200 413,650 - 413,650 320,550
Debt service 1,834,700 1,847,700 1,095,105 - 1,095,105 752,595
Contingency 467,900 425,000 - - - 425,000

Total Expenses 4,807,300 4,603,800 2,126,125 - 2,126,125 2,477,675

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (2,227,800) (2,101,800) (957,841) - (957,841) 1,143,959

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 80 - 80 80
Issuance of long-term debt 122,400 122,400 - - - (122,400)
Issuance of short-term debt 1,000,000 1,000,000 250,000 - 250,000 (750,000)
Transfers in 130,000 72,200 - - - (72,200)
Transfers out (18,400) (48,300) (9,200) - (9,200) 39,100

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,234,000 1,146,300 240,880 - 240,880 (905,420)

Net changes in fund balance (993,800) (955,500) (716,961) - (716,961) 238,539

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 993,800 955,500 955,439 - 955,439 (61)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 238,478 $ - $ 238,478 $ 238,478

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 238,478

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 30,420,614

Deferred outflows from pensions 76,388

Deferred outflows from OPEB 26,212

Compensated absences (13,654)

Advance from other funds (900,000)

Long-term debt (718,247)

Other post-employment benefits payable (134,787)

Net pension liability (176,268)

Deferred inflows from pensions (6,712)

Deferred Inflow from OPEB (897)

Insurance claims (165)

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ 28,810,962
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City of Bend, Oregon
Cemetery Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Burial and lot fees $ 244,000 $ 169,800 $ 85,415 $ - $ 85,415 $ (84,385)
Investment income 1,000 (1,100) - - - 1,100

Total Revenues 245,000 168,700 85,415 - 85,415 (83,285)

Expenses
Current:
   Infrastructure 495,400 489,300 197,194 - 197,194 292,106

Interfund charges 254,500 255,700 97,228 - 97,228 158,472
Contingency 16,800 16,800 - - - 16,800

Total Expenses 766,700 761,800 294,422 - 294,422 467,378

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (521,700) (593,100) (209,007) - (209,007) 384,093

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 9,094 - 9,094 9,094
Issuance of long-term debt 40,800 40,800 - - - (40,800)
Transfers in 452,900 509,400 188,094 - 188,094 (321,306)
Transfers out (2,600) (2,400) (1,300) - (1,300) 1,100

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 491,100 547,800 195,888 - 195,888 (351,912)

Net changes in fund balance (30,600) (45,300) (13,119) - (13,119) 32,181

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 30,600 45,300 45,221 - 45,221 (79)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 32,102 $ - $ 32,102 $ 32,102

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 32,102

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 121,693

Deferred outflows from pensions 50,926

Deferred outflows from OPEB 17,474

Compensated absences (17,312)

Other post-employment benefits payable (89,858)

Net pension liability (117,512)

Deferred inflows from pensions (4,475)

Deferred Inflow from OPEB (598)

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ (7,560)
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City of Bend, Oregon
Parking & Downtown Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ 8,500 $ 9,022 $ - $ 9,022 $ 522
Licenses and permits 1,359,500 994,300 540,900 - 540,900 (453,400)
Charges for services:
Rental income 473,300 426,100 236,922 - 236,922 (189,178)
Fines and lot rental fees 724,300 380,900 232,999 - 232,999 (147,901)
Investment income 123,400 69,300 22,561 - 22,561 (46,739)
Miscellaneous 800 800 4,296 - 4,296 3,496

Total Revenues 2,681,300 1,879,900 1,046,700 - 1,046,700 (833,200)

Expenses
Current:
   Community and economic development 2,717,300 2,141,300 901,863 - 901,863 1,239,437

Interfund charges 434,000 385,400 219,519 - 219,519 165,881
Debt service 103,000 103,000 3,707 - 3,707 99,293
Contingency 281,100 281,100 - - - 281,100
Reserved for construction 1,270,000 1,270,000 - - - 1,270,000
Reserved for maintenance 200,000 200,000 - - - 200,000

Total Expenses 5,005,400 4,380,800 1,125,089 - 1,125,089 3,255,711

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (2,324,100) (2,500,900) (78,389) - (78,389) 2,422,511

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt 855,800 695,500 706,511 - 706,511 11,011
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - 96,100 88,970 - 88,970 (7,130)
Transfers in 121,500 170,300 - - - (170,300)
Transfers out (134,000) (134,000) (67,000) - (67,000) 67,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 843,300 827,900 728,481 - 728,481 (99,419)

Net changes in fund balance (1,480,800) (1,673,000) 650,092 - 650,092 2,323,092

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 1,480,800 1,673,000 1,672,964 - 1,672,964 (36)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 2,323,056 $ - $ 2,323,056 $ 2,323,056

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 2,323,056

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 58,237

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 12,123,240

Deferred outflows from pensions 25,463

Deferred outflows from OPEB 8,737

Compensated absences (8,841)

Long-term debt (793,738)

Other post-employment benefits payable (44,928)

Net pension liability (58,757)

Deferred inflows from pensions (2,237)

Deferred Inflow from OPEB (299)

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ 13,629,933
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City of Bend, Oregon
Stormwater Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 5,116 $ - $ 5,116 $ 5,116
Charges for services:

Charges to others 8,532,600 8,532,600 4,160,290 - 4,160,290 (4,372,310)
Charges to other City funds 53,200 53,200 25,279 - 25,279 (27,921)

Investment income 67,200 67,200 38,852 - 38,852 (28,348)
Miscellaneous - - 804 - 804 804

Total Revenues 8,653,000 8,653,000 4,230,341 - 4,230,341 (4,422,659)

Expenses
Current:
   Infrastructure 10,403,200 12,052,100 5,130,651 - 5,130,651 6,921,449

Interfund charges 1,544,600 1,422,200 774,713 - 774,713 647,487
Debt service 190,000 190,000 93,454 - 93,454 96,546
Contingency 684,700 1,166,700 - - - 1,166,700
Reserved for construction 6,396,600 6,396,600 - - - 6,396,600

Total Expenses 19,219,100 21,227,600 5,998,818 - 5,998,818 15,228,782

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (10,566,100) (12,574,600) (1,768,477) - (1,768,477) 10,806,123

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt 5,610,000 7,618,500 - - - (7,618,500)
Transfers out (446,300) (446,300) (217,600) - (217,600) 228,700

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,163,700 7,172,200 (217,600) - (217,600) (7,389,800)

Net changes in fund balance (5,402,400) (5,402,400) (1,986,077) - (1,986,077) 3,416,323

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 5,402,400 5,402,400 5,685,879 - 5,685,879 283,479

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 3,699,802 $ - $ 3,699,802 $ 3,699,802

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 3,699,802

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 185,675

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 37,978,728

Deferred outflows from pensions 388,307

Deferred outflows from OPEB 133,242

Compensated absences (72,013)

Long-term debt (662,411)

Other post-employment benefits payable (685,167)

Net pension liability (896,031)

Deferred inflows from pensions (34,122)

Deferred Inflow from OPEB (4,560)

Insurance claims (291)

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ 40,031,159
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City of Bend, Oregon
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Schedule of Expenses and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation Actual Expenses

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Airport Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 1,596,900 $ 617,370 $ 979,530
Debt service 1,847,700 1,095,105 752,595
Transfers 782,500 422,850 359,650
Contingency 425,000 - 425,000

Total Airport Fund $ 4,652,100 $ 2,135,325 $ 2,516,775

Cemetery Fund
Infrastructure Program $ 489,300 $ 197,194 $ 292,106
Transfers 258,100 98,528 159,572
Contingency 16,800 - 16,800

Total Cemetery Fund $ 764,200 $ 295,722 $ 468,478

Parking & Downtown Fund
Community & Economic Development Program $ 2,141,300 $ 901,863 $ 1,239,437
Debt service 103,000 3,707 99,293
Transfers 519,400 286,519 232,881
Contingency 281,100 - 281,100
Reserves 1,470,000 - 1,470,000

Total Parking & Downtown Fund $ 4,514,800 $ 1,192,089 $ 3,322,711

Stormwater Fund
Infrastructure Program $ 12,052,100 $ 5,130,651 $ 6,921,449
Debt service 190,000 93,454 96,546
Transfers 1,868,500 992,313 876,187
Contingency 1,166,700 - 1,166,700
Reserves 6,396,600 - 6,396,600

Total Stormwater Fund $ 21,673,900 $ 6,216,418 $ 15,457,482
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Fund - City Wide Administration

Administration and Central Services Program
To account for the general government and finance functions. User charges are generated to cover the full cost
of operations of the City Council, City Manager's office, Volunteer Program, Communications, Human
Resources, Purchasing and Finance.

Internal Service Fund - Department Administration

Administration and Central Services Program
To account for the maintenance and service of all City vehicles and heavy equipment, excluding the police
department fleet. Revenue is generated by charges to the departments receiving service.

Community and Economic Development Program
To account for the support services provided to the operational divisions within the Community Development
Department: Building, Planning, and Private Development Engineering.

Infrastructure Program
The Utilities Laboratory and Engineering & Infrastructure Planning activities provide services to the other City
departments or function. Revenue is generated from overhead allocation through the City’s cost allocation plan
to the departments or funds receiving services.

Internal Service Fund - OPEB 

Administration and Central Services Program
To account for the accumulation of reserves for future payments of OPEB liabilities. Revenue is from charges
to other funds.





City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Fund Net Position

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2020

Internal
Service Fund -

City Wide
Administration

Internal
Service Fund -
Departmental
Administration

Internal
Service Fund -

OPEB
Total Internal

Service Funds

Assets
Current assets:

Pooled cash and investments $ 10,864,822 $ 3,015,046 $ 4,598,290 $ 18,478,158
Receivables:

Accounts, net 15,013 - - 15,013
Due from other governments 125,776 28,598 - 154,374
Current portion of advances to other funds 100,000 - - 100,000
Other assets - 348 - 348
Prepaids and deposits 1,417,678 - - 1,417,678

Total Current Assets 12,523,289 3,043,992 4,598,290 20,165,571

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments 2,500 4,188 - 6,688
Advances to other funds 800,000 - - 800,000
Capital assets, net 24,104,148 639,109 - 24,743,257
Net OPEB asset 99,645 66,039 - 165,684

Total Noncurrent Assets 25,006,293 709,336 - 25,715,629

Total Assets 37,529,582 3,753,328 4,598,290 45,881,200

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows from pensions 3,501,137 2,320,298 - 5,821,435
Deferred outflows from OPEB 1,201,366 796,177 - 1,997,543
Deferred outflows from debt refunding 6,748 - - 6,748

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,709,251 3,116,475 - 7,825,726

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 345,559 98,055 - 443,614
Salaries and benefits payable 180,108 107,490 - 287,598
Retainage payable 12,754 - - 12,754
Other accrued liabilities:

Compensated absences 945,403 561,296 - 1,506,699
Interest payable 31,950 - - 31,950
Insurance claims 2,501 2,335 - 4,836

Deposits - restricted 2,500 4,188 - 6,688
Current portion of long term debt, net 3,632,045 - - 3,632,045

Total Current Liabilities 5,152,820 773,364 - 5,926,184

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 8,078,959 5,354,147 - 13,433,106
Net OPEB liability 6,277,369 4,160,183 - 10,437,552
Long-term debt, net 10,458,883 - - 10,458,883

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 24,815,211 9,514,330 - 34,329,541

Total Liabilities 29,968,031 10,287,694 - 40,255,725

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows from pensions 307,655 203,891 - 511,546
Deferred inflows from OPEB 41,121 27,252 - 68,373
Deferred inflows from debt refunding 30,116 - - 30,116

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 378,892 231,143 - 610,035

Net Position (Deficit)
Net investment in capital assets 10,003,271 639,109 - 10,642,380
Restricted for:

Debt 13,419 - - 13,419
Unrestricted (deficit) 1,875,220 (4,288,143) 4,598,290 2,185,367

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ 11,891,910 $ (3,649,034) $ 4,598,290 $ 12,841,166
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Internal Service Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Internal
Service Fund -

City Wide
Administration

Internal
Service Fund -
Departmental
Administration

Internal
Service Fund -

OPEB
Total Internal

Service Funds

Operating Revenues
Licenses and permits $ - $ 256,536 $ - $ 256,536
Charges for services 19,680,155 9,199,507 1,596,055 30,475,717
Rental income:

Rental income from others 56,648 - - 56,648
Rental income from other City funds 2,146,600 - - 2,146,600

Miscellaneous 570,032 1,726 - 571,758

Total Operating Revenues 22,453,435 9,457,769 1,596,055 33,507,259

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 11,934,985 5,803,232 - 17,738,217
Materials and supplies 4,238,630 1,944,952 - 6,183,582
Internal services 1,180,786 2,261,666 - 3,442,452
Insurance premiums and claims 2,052,757 132 - 2,052,889
Depreciation 1,427,028 105,498 - 1,532,526

Total Expenses 20,834,186 10,115,480 - 30,949,666

Operating income (loss) 1,619,249 (657,711) 1,596,055 2,557,593

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 396,332 99,374 437,726 933,432
Insurance proceeds 16,270 - - 16,270
Interest expense (331,420) - - (331,420)
Amortization 25,695 - - 25,695
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - 6,994 - 6,994
Noncapital grants and contributions 182,278 28,880 - 211,158

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 289,155 135,248 437,726 862,129

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 1,908,404 (522,463) 2,033,781 3,419,722

Contributions and Transfers
Transfers in 728,147 235,892 - 964,039
Transfers out (385,540) (14,948) (7,018,913) (7,419,401)

Total Contributions and Transfers 342,607 220,944 (7,018,913) (6,455,362)

Change in net position 2,251,011 (301,519) (4,985,132) (3,035,640)

Net Position (Deficit), July 1, 2019 9,640,899 (3,347,515) 9,583,422 15,876,806

Net Position (Deficit), June 30, 2020 $ 11,891,910 $ (3,649,034) $ 4,598,290 $ 12,841,166
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Internal Service
Fund - City Wide

Administration

Internal Service
Fund -

Departmental
Administration

Internal
Service Fund -

OPEB Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 155,379 $ 358,788 $ - $ 514,167
Cash received from interfund services provided 21,581,340 9,099,736 1,596,055 32,277,131
Cash paid to employees for services (10,094,576) (4,489,959) - (14,584,535)
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (6,524,834) (1,934,577) - (8,459,411)
Cash paid for interfund services used (1,180,786) (2,261,666) - (3,442,452)

Net Cash from Operating Activities 3,936,523 772,322 1,596,055 6,304,900

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds 728,147 235,892 - 964,039
Transfers to other funds (385,540) (14,948) (7,018,913) (7,419,401)
Noncapital grants and contributions 99,762 282 - 100,044

Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities 442,369 221,226 (7,018,913) (6,355,318)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Issuance of debt 1,132,946 - - 1,132,946
Principal payments on capital debt (1,099,175) - - (1,099,175)
Interest payments on capital debt (370,429) - - (370,429)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,732,138) (269,324) - (3,001,462)
Repayment to/from other funds for capital activities 100,000 - - 100,000
Interest paid/received for advances to/from other funds

for capital activities 26,000 - - 26,000
Insurance proceeds 16,270 - - 16,270
Proceeds from retirement of assets - 6,994 - 6,994
Premium on issuance of debt 35,242 - - 35,242

Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities (2,891,284) (262,330) - (3,153,614)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment income 108,648 28,496 123,147 260,291

Net Cash from Investing Activities 108,648 28,496 123,147 260,291

Net change in pooled cash and investments 1,596,256 759,714 (5,299,711) (2,943,741)

Pooled Cash and Investments, July 1, 2019 8,983,382 2,188,642 9,583,422 20,755,446

Pooled Cash and Investments, June 30, 2020 $ 10,579,638 $ 2,948,356 $ 4,283,711 $ 17,811,705

Reconciliation of Pooled Cash and Investments to
Statement of Net Position:

Pooled cash and investments 10,864,822 3,015,046 4,598,290 18,478,158
Restricted cash and investments 2,500 4,188 - 6,688
less unrealized (gain) loss on investments (287,684) (70,878) (314,579) (673,141)

Pooled Cash and Investments 10,579,638 2,948,356 4,283,711 17,811,705

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Internal Service Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Internal Service
Fund - City Wide

Administration

Internal Service
Fund -

Departmental
Administration

Internal
Service Fund -

OPEB Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) $ 1,619,249 $ (657,711) $ 1,596,055 $ 2,557,593
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 1,427,028 105,498 - 1,532,526
Change in:

Accounts receivable 401,447 73 - 401,520
Prepaids and deposits (1,115,663) - - (1,115,663)
Accounts payable (233,447) 10,509 - (222,938)
Salaries and benefits payable 20,290 (246) - 20,044
Pension benefits 25,289 72,530 - 97,819
Other post-employment benefits 1,566,482 1,107,655 - 2,674,137
Compensated absences payable 245,569 133,334 - 378,903
Insurance claims payable (17,221) - - (17,221)
Prepaids and deposits payable (2,500) 680 - (1,820)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 3,936,523 $ 772,322 $ 1,596,055 $ 6,304,900

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities  

Acquisition of capital assets financed through accounts payable or retainage payable for the current year totaled $85,939 in the
City-Wide Administration Fund and $14,600 in the Departmental Administration Fund.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Internal Service Fund - City Wide Administration

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 115,000 $ 115,000 $ 167,278 $ - $ 167,278 $ 52,278
Charges for services:

Charges to others 1,998,700 1,972,300 245,415 - 245,415 (1,726,885)
Charges to other City funds 37,323,100 33,985,700 19,434,740 - 19,434,740 (14,550,960)

Rental income:
Rental income from others 107,200 107,200 56,648 - 56,648 (50,552)
Rental income from other City funds 4,293,200 3,176,600 2,146,600 - 2,146,600 (1,030,000)

Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 15,000
Investment income 1,067,600 776,500 108,648 - 108,648 (667,852)
Miscellaneous 545,600 583,500 570,032 - 570,032 (13,468)

Total Revenues 45,450,400 40,716,800 22,744,361 - 22,744,361 (17,972,439)

Expenses
Current:
   Administration & Central Services 49,369,900 45,837,100 18,404,981 - 18,404,981 27,432,119

Interfund charges 2,063,200 1,640,600 1,180,786 - 1,180,786 459,814
Debt service 9,383,000 9,383,000 1,456,595 - 1,456,595 7,926,405
Contingency 599,600 565,200 - - - 565,200
Reserves 5,090,600 5,090,600 - - - 5,090,600

Total Expenses 66,506,300 62,516,500 21,042,362 - 21,042,362 41,474,138

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (21,055,900) (21,799,700) 1,701,999 - 1,701,999 23,501,699

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Insurance proceeds 50,000 50,000 16,270 - 16,270 (33,730)
Issuance of long-term debt 11,279,300 11,355,600 1,132,946 - 1,132,946 (10,222,654)
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - 35,242 - 35,242 35,242
Interfund loan repayments 224,700 224,700 126,000 - 126,000 (98,700)
Transfers in 2,063,200 2,063,200 728,147 - 728,147 (1,335,053)
Transfers out (1,308,400) (1,308,400) (385,540) - (385,540) 922,860

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 12,308,800 12,385,100 1,653,065 - 1,653,065 (10,732,035)

Net changes in fund balance (8,747,100) (9,414,600) 3,355,064 - 3,355,064 12,769,664

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 8,747,100 9,414,600 8,210,170 - 8,210,170 (1,204,430)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 11,565,234 $ - $ 11,565,234 $ 11,565,234

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Internal Service Fund - City Wide Administration

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 11,565,234

Advance to other funds 900,000

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 287,684

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 24,104,148

Deferred outflows from pensions 3,501,137

Deferred outflows from OPEB 1,201,366

Deferred outflows from debt refunding 6,748

Compensated absences (945,403)

Long-term debt (14,090,928)

Other post-employment benefits payable (6,177,724)

Net pension liability (8,078,959)

Deferred inflows from pensions (307,655)

Deferred Inflow from OPEB (41,121)

Deferred inflows from debt refunding (30,116)

Insurance claims (2,501)

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ 11,891,910
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City of Bend, Oregon
Internal Service Fund - Departmental Administration

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 28,880 $ - $ 28,880 $ 28,880
Licenses and permits 473,600 473,600 256,536 - 256,536 (217,064)
Charges for services:

Charges to others 224,800 224,800 99,771 - 99,771 (125,029)
Charges to other City funds 24,473,400 22,291,000 11,901,236 - 11,901,236 (10,389,764)

Investment income 42,600 42,600 28,496 - 28,496 (14,104)
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000 1,726 - 1,726 (274)

Total Revenues 25,216,400 23,034,000 12,316,645 - 12,316,645 (10,717,355)

Expenses
Current:
   Administration & Central Services 6,318,000 6,035,300 2,853,541 - 2,853,541 3,181,759
   Community and economic development 3,581,800 3,287,600 1,447,499 - 1,447,499 1,840,101
   Infrastructure 13,465,500 11,411,900 4,788,958 - 4,788,958 6,622,942

Interfund charges 4,303,400 3,745,200 2,261,666 - 2,261,666 1,483,534
Contingency 589,800 1,372,100 - - - 1,372,100

Total Expenses 28,258,500 25,852,100 11,351,664 - 11,351,664 14,500,436

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (3,042,100) (2,818,100) 964,981 - 964,981 3,783,081

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 6,994 - 6,994 6,994
Transfers in 1,265,900 1,266,100 235,892 - 235,892 (1,030,208)
Transfers out (22,700) (22,900) (14,948) - (14,948) 7,952

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,243,200 1,243,200 227,938 - 227,938 (1,015,262)

Net changes in fund balance (1,798,900) (1,574,900) 1,192,919 - 1,192,919 2,767,819

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 1,798,900 1,574,900 1,536,141 - 1,536,141 (38,759)

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 2,729,060 $ - $ 2,729,060 $ 2,729,060

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis

Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 2,729,060

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 70,878

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 639,109

Deferred outflows from pensions 2,320,298

Deferred outflows from OPEB 796,177

Compensated absences (561,296)

Insurance claims (2,335)

Other post-employment benefits payable (4,094,144)

Net pension liability (5,354,147)

Deferred inflows from pensions (203,891)

Deferred Inflow from OPEB (27,252)

Transfer GAAP vacation accrual to governmental fund 38,509

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ (3,649,034)
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City of Bend, Oregon
Internal Service Fund - OPEB

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget
- Over/Under

Revenues
Charges for services:

Charges to other City funds $ 3,410,400 $ 3,410,400 $ 1,596,055 $ - $ 1,596,055 $ (1,814,345)
Investment income 318,000 318,000 123,147 - 123,147 (194,853)

Total revenues 3,728,400 3,728,400 1,719,202 - 1,719,202 (2,009,198)

Expenses
Current: 
Reserves for Future Liability 12,941,400 5,984,000 - - - 5,984,000

Total expenses 12,941,400 5,984,000 - - - 5,984,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (9,213,000) (2,255,600) 1,719,202 - 1,719,202 3,974,802

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (159,000) (7,116,400) (7,018,913) - (7,018,913) 97,487

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (159,000) (7,116,400) (7,018,913) - (7,018,913) 97,487

Net changes in fund balance (9,372,000) (9,372,000) (5,299,711) - (5,299,711) 4,072,289
Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 9,372,000 9,372,000 9,583,422 - 9,583,422 211,422

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 4,283,711 $ - $ 4,283,711 $ 4,283,711

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 4,283,711
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 314,579

Net Position - GAAP Basis $ 4,598,290
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City of Bend, Oregon
Internal Service Funds

Schedule of Expenses and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenses

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Internal Service Fund - City Wide Administration
Administrative & Central Services Program $ 45,837,100 $ 18,404,981 $ 27,432,119
Debt service 9,383,000 1,456,595 7,926,405
Transfers 2,949,000 1,566,326 1,382,674
Contingency 565,200 - 565,200
Reserves 5,090,600 - 5,090,600

Total Internal Service Fund - City Wide Administration $ 63,824,900 $ 21,427,902 $ 42,396,998

Internal Service Fund - Departmental Administration
Administration & Central Services Program $ 6,035,300 $ 2,853,541 $ 3,181,759
Community & Economic Development Program 3,287,600 1,447,499 1,840,101
Infrastructure Program 11,411,900 4,788,958 6,622,942
Transfers 3,768,100 2,276,614 3,768,100
Contingency 1,372,100 - 1,372,100

Total Internal Service Fund - Departmental Administration $ 25,875,000 $ 11,366,612 $ 14,508,388

Internal Service Fund - OPEB
Reserves $ 5,984,000 $ - $ 5,984,000

Total Internal Service Fund - OPEB $ 5,984,000 $ - $ 5,984,000
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AGENCY FUND

Agency Fund
The agency fund accounts for the assets and liabilities of various monies received primarily on behalf of the
Bend Park and Recreation District and the State of Oregon. Agency activities are custodial in nature and do not
involve the measurement of results of operations.





City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Balance
July 01, 2019 Additions Deductions

Balance
June 30, 2020

Assets
Cash and investments $ 471,687 $ 8,245,049 $ (7,462,941) $ 1,253,795
Taxes receivable 22,457 3,042 (25,499) -

Total Assets $ 494,144 $ 8,248,091 $ (7,488,440) $ 1,253,795

Liabilities
Amounts held for others $ 494,144 $ 16,469,191 $ (15,709,540) $ 1,253,795

Total Liabilities $ 494,144 $ 16,469,191 $ (15,709,540) $ 1,253,795
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Balance Sheet

General Fund
June 30, 2020

General Fund

General Fund
Revenue

Stabilization
Fund

Total General
Fund

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 7,032,644 $ 3,965,709 $ 10,998,353
Restricted cash and investments 1,471,516 - 1,471,516
Receivables:

Taxes 1,448,737 - 1,448,737
Accounts, net 2,193,198 - 2,193,198
Loans and notes receivable, net 639,656 - 639,656
Interest 1,307,432 - 1,307,432

Due from other funds 250,000 - 250,000
Due from other governments 921,132 - 921,132
Assets held for resale 4,487,276 - 4,487,276

Total Assets $ 19,751,591 $ 3,965,709 $ 23,717,300

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficit)
Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 1,029,111 $ - $ 1,029,111
Salaries and benefits payable 326,714 - 326,714
Other accrued liabilities 699,619 - 699,619
Deposits - restricted 237,080 - 237,080

Total Liabilities 2,292,524 - 2,292,524

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 635,681 - 635,681
Unavailable revenue - assessments & loans 1,844,815 - 1,844,815

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,480,496 - 2,480,496

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Nonspendable:

Assets held for resale 4,487,276 - 4,487,276
Restricted 1,234,436 - 1,234,436
Unassigned 9,256,859 3,965,709 13,222,568

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 14,978,571 3,965,709 18,944,280

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund
Balances (Deficit) $ 19,751,591 $ 3,965,709 $ 23,717,300
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City of Bend, Oregon
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

General Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

General Fund

General Fund
Revenue

Stabilization
Fund

Total General
Fund

Revenues
Taxes $ 40,919,305 $ - $ 40,919,305
Franchise fees 8,186,174 - 8,186,174
Intergovernmental 3,810,586 - 3,810,586
Licenses and permits 91,288 - 91,288
Charges for services 683,514 - 683,514
Contributions 6,000 - 6,000
Fines and forfeitures 1,081,436 - 1,081,436
Investment income 588,359 149,834 738,193
Miscellaneous 10,631 - 10,631

Total Revenues 55,377,293 149,834 55,527,127

Expenditures
Current:

General government 283,740 - 283,740
Public safety 28,665,442 - 28,665,442
Community and economic development 3,797,301 - 3,797,301

Capital outlay 916,547 - 916,547

Total Expenditures 33,663,030 - 33,663,030

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 21,714,263 149,834 21,864,097

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Insurance proceeds 6,335 - 6,335
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 215,302 - 215,302
Transfers in 78,249 313,848 392,097
Transfers out (22,220,029) - (22,220,029)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (21,920,143) 313,848 (21,606,295)

Net change in fund balances (205,880) 463,682 257,802

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2019 15,184,451 3,502,027 18,686,478

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2020 $ 14,978,571 $ 3,965,709 $ 18,944,280
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City of Bend, Oregon
General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Biennium Budget

Original Final
FY2019-20

Actual
FY2020-21

Actual
Total Actual

Budget Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

Revenues
Investment income $ 154,700 $ 154,700 $ 44,902 $ - $ 44,902 $ (109,798)

Total Revenues 154,700 154,700 44,902 - 44,902 (109,798)

Expenditures
Reserves 4,794,800 4,794,800 - - - 4,794,800

Total Expenditures 4,794,800 4,794,800 - - - 4,794,800

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (4,640,100) (4,640,100) 44,902 - 44,902 4,685,002

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,220,900 1,220,900 313,848 - 313,848 (907,052)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,220,900 1,220,900 313,848 - 313,848 (907,052)

Net changes in fund balance (3,419,200) (3,419,200) 358,750 - 358,750 3,777,950

Beginning Fund Balance (Deficit) 3,419,200 3,419,200 3,502,027 - 3,502,027 82,827

Ending Fund Balance (Deficit) $ - $ - $ 3,860,777 $ - $ 3,860,777 $ 3,860,777

Reconciliation of Budgetary basis to GAAP basis
Ending Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 3,860,777
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 104,932

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 3,965,709
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City of Bend, Oregon
General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Uses by Appropriation Levels
For the biennium ended June 30, 2021

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -
Over/Under

General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund
Reserves $ 4,794,800 $ - $ 4,794,800

Total General Fund Revenue Stabilization Fund $ 4,794,800 $ - $ 4,794,800

148



OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES





City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Property Tax Collections

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Fiscal Year

Uncollected
Balances June

30, 2019
Current Year's

Levy

Adjustments,
Interest and
Discounts Net Collections

Uncollected
Balances June

30, 2020

Prior $ 5,727 $ - $ 9,125 $ (9,174) $ 5,678
2010-11 1,179 - 10,353 (10,368) 1,164
2011-12 1,166 - 11,349 (11,481) 1,034
2012-13 1,957 - 19,593 (20,456) 1,094
2013-14 2,556 - 28,441 (29,390) 1,607
2014-15* 10,572 - 31,202 (34,650) 7,124
2015-16* 55,882 - 225,230 (276,341) 4,771
2016-17 118,607 - 92,170 (156,715) 54,062
2017-18 214,001 - 91,490 (189,566) 115,925
2018-19 583,276 - 204,301 (541,393) 246,184
2019-20 - 40,645,900 (1,088,363) (38,934,368) 623,169

Totals $ 994,923 $ 40,645,900 $ (365,109) $ (40,213,902) $ 1,061,812

Reconciliation to revenues:
Collections $ 40,213,902
Change in accrued revenue 30,660

Property Tax Revenues Governmental Funds 40,244,562
Change in unavailable revenue 36,230

Total Property Tax Revenues Governmental Activities $ 40,280,792

Summary by fund: Revenues
Property Tax
Receivable

General Fund $ 33,973,636 $ 897,780
Fire/EMS Fund 2,446,999 64,058
BURA Juniper Ridge Debt Service Fund 1,350,302 34,018
BURA Murphy Crossing Debt Service Fund 504,052 12,538
General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund 1,969,573 53,418

Totals $ 40,244,562 $ 1,061,812

* This schedule includes corrections to prior year amounts.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Outstanding Long-Term Debt

June 30, 2020

Repayment Source
Issued
Date

Maturity
Date Amount Issued

Amount
Outstanding

June 30, 2020

General Obligation Bonds:
General obligation refunding bonds, series 2012 Ad valorem taxes 09/20/12 06/01/32 $ 26,805,000 $ 18,170,000

Total General Obligation Bonds 26,805,000 18,170,000

Debt Secured by the General Fund(1): 
Pension obligation bonds, series 2004 Department Budgets 05/27/04 06/01/28 $ 13,725,000 $ 9,565,000
Oregon Business Development Department:

Airport eastside improvements 2007 Airport revenues 01/31/07 12/01/31 867,335 468,247
Accesibility, series 2010A General Fund 11/22/13 06/01/24 3,265,000 1,090,000
Transportation system, series 2010B, refinance

2000 Transportation SDCs 02/18/10 06/01/21 5,160,000 430,000
Fire stations, series 2010B, refinance series 1999 Intergovernmental revenues 02/18/10 06/01/24 3,225,000 1,050,000
Water & Sewer RZEDB, series 2010C Water and Sewer revenues 11/30/10 11/01/30 13,030,000 8,645,000
Street equipment, Sewer, Police facilities, series

2012, refinance 2002
General Fund/Street operations
revenues/Sewer 04/19/12 12/01/26 9,280,000 3,510,000

Transportation, series 2013, refinance 2003 Transportation SDCs 11/22/13 12/01/23 6,283,391 1,267,487
Juniper Ridge, series 2013, refinance 2003 Urban renewal taxes 11/22/13 12/01/23 3,700,000 1,358,699
Murphy Crossing urban renewal, series 2015 Urban renewal taxes 01/29/15 12/01/29 3,000,000 1,834,421
Fire equipment, series 2015B Fire/EMS revenues 06/19/15 06/01/25 3,000,000 1,671,949
Fire equipment and facilities, Police expansion,

Cooley road, series 2016 
General Fund/Fire/EMS
revenues/Urban renewal
taxes/Interfund transfers 12/20/16 12/01/31 9,865,000 8,000,000

Streets & Stormwater, ERP refunding, series 2018 Street operations
revenues/Stormwater revenues 04/19/18 06/01/28 7,035,850 5,796,099

Enterprise resource project, series 2018 Interfund transfers 04/19/18 06/01/21 7,000,000 2,476,504
Fire engine and energy projects, Transportation

system improvements, Parking improvements,
series 2020

General Fund/Fire/EMS
revenues/Parking
revenues/Transportation
SDCs/Interfund transfers/Streets
operations revenues 04/07/20 06/01/50 49,845,000 49,845,000

Total Debt Secured by the General Fund 138,281,576 97,008,406

Debt Secured by System Revenues:
Water System Revenue Bonds

Water, series 2016 07/07/16 12/01/36 49,910,000 45,100,000

Total Debt Secured by System Revenues 49,910,000 45,100,000

DEQ Loans:
Oregon Department of Enviromental Quality:

Clean water revolving fund loan R14510 Sewer revenues 06/10/11 12/01/33 5,482,336 4,167,501
Clean water revolving fund loan R14511 Sewer revenues 11/01/11 06/01/39 14,484,130 13,898,421
Clean water revolving fund loan R14512 Sewer revenues 10/02/12 12/01/37 18,833,534 17,285,540
Clean water revolving fund loan R14513 Sewer revenues 02/09/15 06/01/22 3,939,246 1,316,614
Clean water revolving fund loan R14514 Sewer revenues 12/11/15 TBD 21,000,000 9,524,996
Clean water revolving fund loan R14515 Sewer revenues 03/03/16 06/01/38 13,620,000 12,190,660
Clean water revolving fund loan R14516 Sewer revenues 12/11/15 12/01/38 59,349,742 45,494,778
Clean water revolving fund loan R14517 Sewer revenues 11/29/16 12/01/38 5,450,000 6,989,483
Clean water revolving fund loan R14518 Sewer revenues 12/29/16 TBD 7,895,000 5,660,198
Clean water revolving fund loan R14519 Sewer revenues 04/08/19 TBD 8,000,000 1,680,654
Clean water revolving fund loan R14520 Sewer revenues 07/16/19 TBD 2,620,000 1,249,641

Total DEQ Loans 160,673,988 119,458,486

Total Long-Term Debt $ 375,670,564 $ 279,736,892

(1) The City has loans outstanding with Oregon Department of Environmental Quality ("DEQ") in total amount not to exceed $176.7 million, of
which the City had drawn $119.5 million as of June 30, 2020 as shown above. The repayment source of the loans is sewer system revenues.
The DEQ loans are secured by the City's allocation of state shared revenues, which are recorded in the General Fund.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Full Faith & Credit Obligations

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Total Requirements
Pension Obligation Bonds

Series 2004 Fire Stations Series 2010

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 3,090,000 $ 4,095,596 $ 7,185,596 $ 850,000 $ 580,667 $ 240,000 $ 37,463
2021-22 3,795,000 3,583,983 7,378,983 965,000 529,539 260,000 29,363
2022-23 4,030,000 3,404,811 7,434,811 1,085,000 471,495 265,000 19,938
2023-24 3,895,000 3,218,913 7,113,913 1,215,000 406,232 285,000 10,331
2024-25 3,545,000 3,025,333 6,570,333 1,360,000 332,178 - -
2025-26 3,775,000 2,843,206 6,618,206 1,515,000 249,286 - -
2026-27 4,040,000 2,635,874 6,675,874 1,680,000 156,946 - -
2027-28 2,935,000 2,420,303 5,355,303 895,000 54,553 - -
2028-29 2,130,000 2,255,115 4,385,115 - - - -
2029-30 2,220,000 2,138,723 4,358,723 - - - -
2030-31 2,245,000 2,016,615 4,261,615 - - - -
2031-32 1,395,000 1,921,750 3,316,750 - - - -
2032-33 1,465,000 1,852,000 3,317,000 - - - -
2033-34 1,535,000 1,778,750 3,313,750 - - - -
2034-35 1,615,000 1,702,000 3,317,000 - - - -
2035-36 1,695,000 1,621,250 3,316,250 - - - -
2036-37 1,785,000 1,536,500 3,321,500 - - - -
2037-38 1,875,000 1,447,250 3,322,250 - - - -
2038-39 1,965,000 1,353,500 3,318,500 - - - -
2039-40 2,065,000 1,255,250 3,320,250 - - - -
2040-41 1,830,000 1,152,000 2,982,000 - - - -
2041-42 1,925,000 1,060,500 2,985,500 - - - -
2042-43 2,020,000 964,250 2,984,250 - - - -
2043-44 2,120,000 863,250 2,983,250 - - - -
2044-45 2,225,000 757,250 2,982,250 - - - -
2045-46 2,340,000 646,000 2,986,000 - - - -
2046-47 2,455,000 529,000 2,984,000 - - - -
2047-48 2,580,000 406,250 2,986,250 - - - -
2048-49 2,705,000 277,250 2,982,250 - - - -
2049-50 2,840,000 142,000 2,982,000 - - - -

Total $ 74,135,000 $ 52,904,472 $127,039,472 $ 9,565,000 $ 2,780,896 $ 1,050,000 $ 97,095

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Full Faith & Credit Obligations (Continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Accessibility Series 2010
Transportation System

Series 2010
Water & Sewer RZEDB

Series 2010C

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 255,000 $ 53,338 $ 430,000 $ 14,513 $ 675,000 $ 461,985
2021-22 265,000 41,353 - - 695,000 430,128
2022-23 280,000 28,500 - - 715,000 396,278
2023-24 290,000 14,500 - - 735,000 359,650
2024-25 - - - - 755,000 320,155
2025-26 - - - - 780,000 278,320
2026-27 - - - - 805,000 233,928
2027-28 - - - - 830,000 186,500
2028-29 - - - - 855,000 136,365
2029-30 - - - - 885,000 83,723
2030-31 - - - - 915,000 28,365
2031-32 - - - - - -
2032-33 - - - - - -
2033-34 - - - - - -
2034-35 - - - - - -
2035-36 - - - - - -
2036-37 - - - - - -
2037-38 - - - - - -
2038-39 - - - - - -
2039-40 - - - - - -
2040-41 - - - - - -
2041-42 - - - - - -
2042-43 - - - - - -
2043-44 - - - - - -
2044-45 - - - - - -
2045-46 - - - - - -
2046-47 - - - - - -
2047-48 - - - - - -
2048-49 - - - - - -
2049-50 - - - - - -

Total $ 1,090,000 $ 137,691 $ 430,000 $ 14,513 $ 8,645,000 $ 2,915,397

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Full Faith & Credit Obligations (Continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Street, Sewer, Police,
Facilities Series 2012

Energy, Fire, Parking, and
Transportation System

Improvements, Series 2020

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 640,000 $ 127,600 $ - $ 2,820,030
2021-22 670,000 101,400 940,000 2,452,200
2022-23 700,000 74,000 985,000 2,414,600
2023-24 350,000 53,000 1,020,000 2,375,200
2024-25 370,000 38,600 1,060,000 2,334,400
2025-26 380,000 23,600 1,100,000 2,292,000
2026-27 400,000 8,000 1,155,000 2,237,000
2027-28 - - 1,210,000 2,179,250
2028-29 - - 1,275,000 2,118,750
2029-30 - - 1,335,000 2,055,000
2030-31 - - 1,330,000 1,988,250
2031-32 - - 1,395,000 1,921,750
2032-33 - - 1,465,000 1,852,000
2033-34 - - 1,535,000 1,778,750
2034-35 - - 1,615,000 1,702,000
2035-36 - - 1,695,000 1,621,250
2036-37 - - 1,785,000 1,536,500
2037-38 - - 1,875,000 1,447,250
2038-39 - - 1,965,000 1,353,500
2039-40 - - 2,065,000 1,255,250
2040-41 - - 1,830,000 1,152,000
2041-42 - - 1,925,000 1,060,500
2042-43 - - 2,020,000 964,250
2043-44 - - 2,120,000 863,250
2044-45 - - 2,225,000 757,250
2045-46 - - 2,340,000 646,000
2046-47 - - 2,455,000 529,000
2047-48 - - 2,580,000 406,250
2048-49 - - 2,705,000 277,250
2049-50 - - 2,840,000 142,000

Total $ 3,510,000 $ 426,200 $ 49,845,000 $ 46,532,680
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Revenue Bonds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Total Requirements Series 2016

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 1,735,000 $ 2,202,950 $ 3,937,950 $ 1,735,000 $ 2,202,950
2021-22 1,815,000 2,122,875 3,937,875 1,815,000 2,122,875
2022-23 1,905,000 2,029,875 3,934,875 1,905,000 2,029,875
2023-24 2,005,000 1,932,125 3,937,125 2,005,000 1,932,125
2024-25 2,110,000 1,829,250 3,939,250 2,110,000 1,829,250
2025-26 2,215,000 1,721,125 3,936,125 2,215,000 1,721,125
2026-27 2,330,000 1,607,500 3,937,500 2,330,000 1,607,500
2027-28 2,450,000 1,488,000 3,938,000 2,450,000 1,488,000
2028-29 2,575,000 1,362,375 3,937,375 2,575,000 1,362,375
2029-30 2,705,000 1,230,375 3,935,375 2,705,000 1,230,375
2030-31 2,845,000 1,091,625 3,936,625 2,845,000 1,091,625
2031-32 2,990,000 945,750 3,935,750 2,990,000 945,750
2032-33 3,145,000 792,375 3,937,375 3,145,000 792,375
2033-34 3,305,000 631,125 3,936,125 3,305,000 631,125
2034-35 3,475,000 461,625 3,936,625 3,475,000 461,625
2035-36 3,655,000 283,375 3,938,375 3,655,000 283,375
2036-37 3,840,000 96,000 3,936,000 3,840,000 96,000

Total $ 45,100,000 $ 21,828,325 $ 66,928,325 $ 45,100,000 $ 21,828,325
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of General Obligation Bonds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Total Requirements
GO Bond Construction

Series 2012

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 1,240,000 $ 597,750 $ 1,837,750 $ 1,240,000 $ 597,750
2021-22 1,290,000 548,150 1,838,150 1,290,000 548,150
2022-23 1,340,000 496,550 1,836,550 1,340,000 496,550
2023-24 1,395,000 442,950 1,837,950 1,395,000 442,950
2024-25 1,450,000 387,150 1,837,150 1,450,000 387,150
2025-26 1,495,000 343,650 1,838,650 1,495,000 343,650
2026-27 1,540,000 298,800 1,838,800 1,540,000 298,800
2027-28 1,585,000 252,600 1,837,600 1,585,000 252,600
2028-29 1,635,000 205,050 1,840,050 1,635,000 205,050
2029-30 1,680,000 156,000 1,836,000 1,680,000 156,000
2030-31 1,735,000 105,600 1,840,600 1,735,000 105,600
2031-32 1,785,000 53,550 1,838,550 1,785,000 53,550

Total $ 18,170,000 $ 3,887,800 $ 22,057,800 $ 18,170,000 $ 3,887,800
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Total Requirements
Airport Eastside

Improvements 2007

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14510

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 10,910,339 $ 2,848,845 $ 13,759,184 $ 30,445 $ 22,863 $ 247,831 $ 157,159
2021-22 8,654,529 4,095,390 12,749,919 30,673 21,385 256,127 147,623
2022-23 8,034,158 2,801,605 10,835,763 30,914 19,894 264,701 137,769
2023-24 8,019,332 2,559,597 10,578,929 36,166 18,392 273,562 127,584
2024-25 7,979,213 2,372,530 10,351,743 36,430 16,627 282,720 117,058
2025-26 7,779,379 2,184,832 9,964,211 36,711 14,846 292,185 106,180
2026-27 7,934,522 2,000,587 9,935,109 42,006 13,052 301,965 94,939
2027-28 8,087,714 1,812,174 9,899,888 42,312 10,996 312,073 83,321
2028-29 6,985,091 1,630,415 8,615,506 42,632 8,926 322,521 71,313
2029-30 6,992,903 1,471,379 8,464,282 42,966 6,842 333,317 58,904
2030-31 7,127,088 1,311,393 8,438,481 48,314 4,743 344,475 46,079
2031-32 7,263,624 1,147,841 8,411,465 48,678 2,380 356,007 32,825
2032-33 6,793,502 987,256 7,780,758 - - 367,924 19,128
2033-34 6,746,354 831,806 7,578,160 - - 212,093 4,581
2034-35 6,645,032 683,689 7,328,721 - - - -
2035-36 6,757,934 537,469 7,295,403 - - - -
2036-37 6,873,009 388,509 7,261,518 - - - -
2037-38 6,380,523 236,745 6,617,268 - - - -
2038-39 3,233,520 113,664 3,347,184 - - - -
2039-40 1,450,165 60,265 1,510,430 - - - -
2040-41 1,092,618 31,115 1,123,733 - - - -
2041-42 543,930 8,291 552,221 - - - -
2042-43 47,410 538 47,948 - - - -

Total $142,331,889 $ 30,115,935 $172,447,824 $ 468,247 $ 160,946 $ 4,167,501 $ 1,204,463

* Total Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations include preliminary repayment
schedules for Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans and the LEAP ERP FF&C note that are based on current amounts
outstanding.  Final repayment schedules will be determined when the final loan amount is drawn down.

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations

(Continued)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14511

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14512

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14513

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 600,325 $ 410,473 $ 802,613 $ 503,329 $ 654,829 $ 12,225
2021-22 615,305 392,491 822,316 479,613 661,786 5,265
2022-23 630,658 374,062 842,504 455,313 - -
2023-24 646,397 355,170 863,186 430,419 - -
2024-25 662,526 335,809 884,376 404,913 - -
2025-26 679,058 315,964 906,086 378,781 - -
2026-27 696,004 295,623 928,330 352,006 - -
2027-28 713,372 274,775 951,119 324,576 - -
2028-29 731,173 253,407 974,468 296,471 - -
2029-30 749,418 231,506 998,390 267,677 - -
2030-31 768,119 209,058 1,022,900 238,175 - -
2031-32 787,287 186,049 1,048,010 207,950 - -
2032-33 806,932 162,468 1,073,738 176,982 - -
2033-34 827,068 138,297 1,100,096 145,256 - -
2034-35 847,707 113,523 1,127,103 112,748 - -
2035-36 868,860 88,131 1,154,772 79,444 - -
2036-37 890,542 62,105 1,183,120 45,322 - -
2037-38 912,764 35,430 602,413 10,361 - -
2038-39 464,906 8,090 - - - -
2039-40 - - - - - -
2040-41 - - - - - -
2041-42 - - - - - -
2042-43 - - - - - -

Total $ 13,898,421 $ 4,242,431 $ 17,285,540 $ 4,909,336 $ 1,316,615 $ 17,490

* Total Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations include preliminary repayment
schedules for Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans and the LEAP ERP FF&C note that are based on current amounts
outstanding.  Final repayment schedules will be determined when the final loan amount is drawn down.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations

(Continued)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14514 *

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14515

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14516

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14517

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ - $ - $ 568,828 $ 300,521 $ 2,250,452 $ 676,810 $ 153,421 $ 259,857
2021-22 196,249 1,004,908 580,260 286,215 2,273,014 642,996 310,535 141,546
2022-23 398,198 223,786 591,923 271,622 2,295,799 608,846 315,523 134,993
2023-24 405,920 214,053 603,822 256,735 2,318,815 574,351 320,591 128,335
2024-25 413,792 204,132 615,958 241,549 2,342,061 539,510 325,741 121,569
2025-26 421,817 194,018 628,339 226,058 2,365,541 504,320 330,974 114,694
2026-27 429,997 183,709 640,968 210,255 2,389,255 468,778 336,290 107,710
2027-28 438,336 173,199 653,851 194,136 2,413,208 432,879 341,693 100,612
2028-29 446,837 162,485 666,994 177,691 2,437,401 396,620 347,181 93,402
2029-30 455,503 151,564 680,401 160,916 2,461,834 360,000 352,759 86,074
2030-31 464,336 140,431 694,077 143,803 2,486,515 323,010 358,426 78,629
2031-32 473,341 129,082 708,028 126,347 2,511,443 285,649 364,183 71,066
2032-33 482,521 117,513 722,259 108,541 2,536,619 247,916 370,034 63,379
2033-34 491,878 105,719 736,777 90,375 2,562,049 209,803 375,978 55,570
2034-35 501,417 93,697 751,586 71,845 2,587,733 171,309 382,018 47,636
2035-36 511,142 81,442 766,693 52,943 2,613,676 132,427 388,154 39,574
2036-37 521,054 68,949 782,103 33,661 2,639,878 93,157 394,389 31,383
2037-38 531,159 56,213 797,793 13,990 2,666,342 53,493 400,725 23,059
2038-39 541,460 43,231 - - 1,343,141 13,432 407,162 14,602
2039-40 551,960 29,997 - - - - 413,706 6,009
2040-41 562,665 16,507 - - - - - -
2041-42 285,411 4,181 - - - - - -
2042-43 - - - - - - - -

Total $ 9,524,993 $ 3,398,816 $ 12,190,660 $ 2,967,203 $ 45,494,776 $ 6,735,306 $ 6,989,483 $ 1,719,699

* Total Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations include preliminary repayment
schedules for Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans and the LEAP ERP FF&C note that are based on current amounts
outstanding.  Final repayment schedules will be determined when the final loan amount is drawn down.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations

(Continued)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14518 *

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14519 *

Clean Water State
Revolving Loan Fund Loan

R14520 *
Transportation System

Series 2013

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 841,924 $ 15,881
2021-22 120,630 465,725 - - 25,562 115,405 425,562 3,535
2022-23 244,163 114,750 37,038 97,551 51,894 30,215 - -
2023-24 248,085 109,597 74,784 28,669 52,937 28,910 - -
2024-25 252,071 104,362 75,737 27,340 54,001 27,578 - -
2025-26 256,120 99,042 76,702 25,994 55,086 26,220 - -
2026-27 260,234 93,637 77,679 24,631 56,193 24,835 - -
2027-28 264,414 88,145 78,669 23,250 57,323 23,421 - -
2028-29 268,662 82,565 79,671 21,852 58,475 21,980 - -
2029-30 272,978 76,895 80,686 20,436 59,651 20,509 - -
2030-31 277,363 71,134 81,714 19,002 60,849 19,009 - -
2031-32 281,819 65,281 82,755 17,550 62,073 17,479 - -
2032-33 286,346 59,333 83,809 16,079 63,320 15,917 - -
2033-34 290,945 53,290 84,877 14,590 64,593 14,325 - -
2034-35 295,619 47,150 85,958 13,081 65,891 12,700 - -
2035-36 300,368 40,911 87,053 11,554 67,216 11,043 - -
2036-37 305,193 34,572 88,163 10,007 68,567 9,353 - -
2037-38 310,096 28,131 89,286 8,440 69,945 7,628 - -
2038-39 315,077 21,587 90,423 6,853 71,351 5,869 - -
2039-40 320,139 14,938 91,575 5,246 72,785 4,075 - -
2040-41 325,281 8,181 92,742 3,618 111,930 2,809 - -
2041-42 164,595 2,140 93,924 1,970 - - - -
2042-43 - - 47,410 538 - - - -

Total $ 5,660,198 $ 1,681,366 $ 1,680,655 $ 398,251 $ 1,249,642 $ 439,280 $ 1,267,486 $ 19,416

* Total Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations include preliminary repayment
schedules for Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans and the LEAP ERP FF&C note that are based on current amounts
outstanding.  Final repayment schedules will be determined when the final loan amount is drawn down.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations

(Continued)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Juniper Ridge Series 2013
Murphy Crossing Urban
Renewal Series 2015

Fire Equipment Series
2015B

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 381,025 $ 18,964 $ 196,339 $ 47,342 $ 317,084 $ 42,235
2021-22 386,762 13,227 201,577 42,105 325,542 33,777
2022-23 392,585 7,404 206,954 36,728 334,226 25,093
2023-24 198,327 1,666 212,393 31,289 343,104 16,215
2024-25 - - 218,140 25,541 351,994 7,355
2025-26 - - 223,959 19,722 - -
2026-27 - - 229,933 13,748 - -
2027-28 - - 236,050 7,631 - -
2028-29 - - 109,076 2,139 - -
2029-30 - - - - - -
2030-31 - - - - - -
2031-32 - - - - - -
2032-33 - - - - - -
2033-34 - - - - - -
2034-35 - - - - - -
2035-36 - - - - - -
2036-37 - - - - - -
2037-38 - - - - - -
2038-39 - - - - - -
2039-40 - - - - - -
2040-41 - - - - - -
2041-42 - - - - - -
2042-43 - - - - - -

Total $ 1,358,699 $ 41,261 $ 1,834,421 $ 226,245 $ 1,671,950 $ 124,675

* Total Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations include preliminary repayment
schedules for Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans and the LEAP ERP FF&C note that are based on current amounts
outstanding.  Final repayment schedules will be determined when the final loan amount is drawn down.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Schedule of Future Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations

(Continued)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Fire, Police, Cooley,
Facilities Series 2016

Streets & Stormwater
equipment, ERP refunding,

Series 2018 LEAP ERP FF&C 2018

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020-21 $ 730,000 $ 174,842 $ 658,720 $ 160,529 $ 2,476,503 $ 45,815
2021-22 745,000 157,953 677,629 141,621 - -
2022-23 700,000 141,408 697,078 122,171 - -
2023-24 715,000 125,206 706,243 113,006 - -
2024-25 735,000 108,603 728,666 90,584 - -
2025-26 755,000 91,543 751,801 67,450 - -
2026-27 770,000 74,082 775,668 43,582 - -
2027-28 785,000 56,277 800,294 18,956 - -
2028-29 500,000 41,564 - - - -
2029-30 505,000 30,056 - - - -
2030-31 520,000 18,320 - - - -
2031-32 540,000 6,183 - - - -
2032-33 - - - - - -
2033-34 - - - - - -
2034-35 - - - - - -
2035-36 - - - - - -
2036-37 - - - - - -
2037-38 - - - - - -
2038-39 - - - - - -
2039-40 - - - - - -
2040-41 - - - - - -
2041-42 - - - - - -
2042-43 - - - - - -

Total $ 8,000,000 $ 1,026,037 $ 5,796,099 $ 757,899 $ 2,476,503 $ 45,815

* Total Debt Service Requirements of Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations include preliminary repayment
schedules for Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans and the LEAP ERP FF&C note that are based on current amounts
outstanding.  Final repayment schedules will be determined when the final loan amount is drawn down.
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Statistical Section





STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Bend's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information
says about the City's overall financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help readers understand how the City's financial performance and well-
being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help readers assess the City's most significant local revenue source, property
tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels of
outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help readers understand the environment within
which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help readers understand how the information in the City's
financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial
reports for the relevant year.





City of Bend, Oregon
Net Position by Component

Last ten fiscal years
(accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands)

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013
Restated

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Governmental Activities
Net investment in capital assets $ 484,814 $ 474,505 $ 474,356 $ 472,258 $ 477,809 $ 476,817 $ 468,971 $ 461,728 $ 481,503 $ 476,852
Restricted 13,915 13,637 16,565 29,652 29,319 42,451 52,371 51,169 29,193 61,435
Unrestricted 27,398 30,167 29,610 4,056 18,412 11,632 12,839 6,672 11,566 (5,083)

Total governmental activities net position $ 526,127 $ 518,309 $ 520,531 $ 505,966 $ 525,540 $ 530,900 $ 534,181 $ 519,569 $ 522,262 $ 533,204

Business-type Activities
Net investment in capital assets $ 241,176 $ 256,230 $ 263,975 $ 278,857 $ 293,753 $ 321,457 $ 306,517 $ 321,740 $ 346,275 $ 396,321
Restricted - 676 1,289 1,265 1,678 3,536 3,784 4,613 4,509 6,211
Unrestricted 32,522 33,405 38,215 36,565 45,677 43,822 92,608 105,771 114,247 90,864

Total business-type activities net position $ 273,698 $ 290,311 $ 303,479 $ 316,687 $ 341,108 $ 368,815 $ 402,909 $ 432,124 $ 465,031 $ 493,396

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets $ 725,990 $ 730,735 $ 738,331 $ 751,115 $ 771,562 $ 798,274 $ 775,488 $ 783,468 $ 827,778 $ 873,173
Restricted 13,915 14,313 17,854 30,917 30,997 45,987 56,155 55,782 33,702 67,646
Unrestricted 59,920 63,572 67,825 40,621 64,089 55,454 105,447 112,443 125,813 85,781

Total primary government net position $ 799,825 $ 808,620 $ 824,010 $ 822,653 $ 866,648 $ 899,715 $ 937,090 $ 951,693 $ 987,293 $ 1,026,600
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City of Bend, Oregon
Changes in Net Position

Last ten fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Expenses
Governmental Activities:

General government $ 18,530 $ 21,164 $ 15,300 $ 17,436 $ 17,185
Public safety 27,958 28,952 30,695 30,873 26,332
Infrastructure 16,042 17,318 18,208 19,733 19,550
Community and economic development 8,012 7,031 7,771 8,720 7,249
Permanent maintenance - - 4 5 5
Urban renewal 192 1,567 30 64 41
Transit 1,800 - - - -
Interest on long-term debt 1,973 1,772 2,335 2,321 2,171

Total governmental activities expenses 74,507 77,804 74,343 79,152 72,533

Business-Type Activities:
Water $ 12,757 $ 11,701 $ 12,576 $ 14,032 $ 12,821
Water reclamation 12,045 12,528 13,968 14,427 13,196
Airport 951 1,010 1,053 1,243 1,279
Cemetery 75 85 83 134 125
Parking & downtown 878 875 869 875 924
Stormwater 2,425 2,216 2,400 2,843 2,648

Total business-type activities expenses 29,131 28,415 30,949 33,554 30,993

Total primary government expenses $ 103,638 $ 106,219 $ 105,292 $ 112,706 $ 103,526

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:

Charges for Services:
General government $ 9,661 $ 5,404 $ 6,475 $ 7,827 $ 8,279
Public safety 3,389 3,615 3,285 3,255 5,052
Public ways and facilities 1,052 1,736 2,507 3,652 2,722
Community and economic development 4,015 3,853 5,957 8,843 9,525
Permanent maintenance 11 4 6 3 5
Urban renewal 35 18 - - -
Transit 74 - - - -

Operating grants and contributions 15,714 12,175 13,359 12,963 11,952
Capital grants and contributions 6,659 7,075 11,720 12,725 15,661

Total governmental activities program revenues 40,610 33,880 43,309 49,268 53,196

Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:

Water $ 14,068 $ 14,809 $ 15,815 $ 17,296 $ 17,768
Water reclamation 13,920 15,973 17,092 18,487 20,327
Airport 777 833 794 879 911
Cemetery 45 58 66 44 79
Downtown parking 643 569 639 753 825
Stormwater 2,515 2,519 2,534 2,540 2,599
Other business activities 139 10 - - -

Operating grants and contributions - - - - -
Capital grants and contributions 2,670 7,815 2,767 3,809 6,548

Total business-type activities 34,777 42,586 39,707 43,808 49,057

Total primary government program revenues $ 75,387 $ 76,466 $ 83,016 $ 93,076 $ 102,253

Net Revenues (Expenses)
Governmental Activities $ (33,897) $ (43,924) $ (31,034) $ (29,884) $ (19,337)
Business-Type Activities 5,646 14,171 8,758 10,254 18,064

Total primary government net revenues (expenses) $ (28,251) $ (29,753) $ (22,276) $ (19,630) $ (1,273)

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Changes in Net Position (Continued)

Last ten fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Expenses
Governmental Activities:

General government $ 23,006 $ 18,459 $ 20,484 $ 26,145 $ 20,015
Public safety 44,350 41,593 49,030 47,115 54,578
Infrastructure 20,631 23,640 28,526 29,455 33,834
Community and economic development 14,248 15,083 16,172 16,512 21,964
Permanent maintenance 5 5 5 5 5
Urban renewal 40 53 45 310 929
Transit - - - - -
Interest on long-term debt 2,164 2,055 1,888 1,747 2,265

Total governmental activities expenses 104,444 100,888 116,150 121,289 133,590

Business-Type Activities:
Water $ 14,889 $ 19,998 $ 16,815 $ 19,487 $ 19,730
Water reclamation 17,197 14,196 18,393 22,717 27,527
Airport 1,359 1,394 1,357 1,625 1,691
Cemetery 149 139 212 176 294
Parking & downtown 1,091 1,134 1,290 1,522 1,287
Stormwater 3,256 3,214 3,544 3,432 3,516

Total business-type activities expenses 37,941 40,075 41,611 48,959 54,045

Total primary government expenses $ 142,385 $ 140,963 $ 157,761 $ 170,248 $ 187,635

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:

Charges for Services:
General government $ 9,516 $ 8,855 $ 10,756 $ 11,073 $ 11,953
Public safety 4,865 5,181 5,997 6,381 4,469
Public ways and facilities 3,091 3,629 329 5,110 1,783
Community and economic development 11,192 11,134 15,851 13,117 15,545
Permanent maintenance 13 5 5 6 7
Urban renewal - - - - -
Transit - - - - -

Operating grants and contributions 13,350 14,684 18,194 15,664 24,261
Capital grants and contributions 27,301 19,299 20,791 20,313 28,418

Total governmental activities program revenues 69,328 62,787 71,923 71,664 86,436

Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:

Water $ 18,708 $ 21,280 $ 19,775 $ 21,099 $ 20,051
Water reclamation 21,543 24,062 26,930 29,532 31,058
Airport 953 858 923 893 957
Cemetery 107 70 61 73 95
Downtown parking 919 996 1,100 1,097 1,024
Stormwater 3,228 3,478 3,770 4,077 4,179
Other business activities - - - - -

Operating grants and contributions - - - - 118
Capital grants and contributions 10,916 12,930 11,143 10,422 11,052

Total business-type activities 56,374 63,674 63,702 67,193 68,534

Total primary government program revenues $ 125,702 $ 126,461 $ 135,625 $ 138,857 $ 154,970

Net Revenues (Expenses)
Governmental Activities $ (35,116) $ (38,101) $ (44,227) $ (49,625) $ (47,154)
Business-Type Activities 18,433 23,599 22,091 18,234 14,489

Total primary government net revenues (expenses) $ (16,683) $ (14,502) $ (22,136) $ (31,391) $ (32,665)

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Changes in Net Position (Continued)

Last ten fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities:

Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose $ 25,979 $ 25,751 $ 25,649 $ 26,753 $ 30,179
Room taxes 3,407 3,575 3,945 4,710 6,397
Marijuana taxes - - - - -

Franchise fees 7,241 7,204 7,170 7,645 7,834
Unrestricted investment income 425 338 546 703 636
Other revenues 15 1,456 43 - -
Transfers (2,035) (2,216) (4,169) (5,246) (6,135)

Total governmental activities 35,032 36,108 33,184 34,565 38,911

Business-type Activities:
Unrestricted investment income 322 225 243 290 221
Transfers 2,035 2,216 4,169 5,246 6,135

Total business-type activities 2,357 2,441 4,412 5,536 6,356

Total primary government $ 37,389 $ 38,549 $ 37,596 $ 40,101 $ 45,267

Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities $ 1,135 $ (7,816) $ 2,150 $ 4,681 $ 19,574
Business-type Activities 8,003 16,612 13,170 15,790 24,420

Total primary government $ 9,138 $ 8,796 $ 15,320 $ 20,471 $ 43,994

Continued on next page
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City of Bend, Oregon
Changes in Net Position (Continued)

Last ten fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities:

Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose $ 31,971 $ 33,316 $ 35,340 $ 37,574 $ 40,281
Room taxes 7,931 8,990 9,700 10,239 8,801
Marijuana taxes - - - - 1,066

Franchise fees 8,280 8,794 9,035 9,650 11,791
Unrestricted investment income 1,118 556 737 4,797 5,185
Other revenues - - - - -
Transfers (8,821) (10,273) (10,122) (9,944) (9,029)

Total governmental activities 40,479 41,383 44,690 52,316 58,095

Business-type Activities:
Unrestricted investment income 453 222 449 4,726 4,847
Transfers 8,821 10,273 10,122 9,944 9,029

Total business-type activities 9,274 10,495 10,571 14,670 13,876

Total primary government $ 49,753 $ 51,878 $ 55,261 $ 66,986 $ 71,971

Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities $ 5,363 $ 3,282 $ 463 $ 2,691 $ 10,941
Business-type Activities 27,707 34,094 32,662 32,904 28,365

Total primary government $ 33,070 $ 37,376 $ 33,125 $ 35,595 $ 39,306
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City of Bend, Oregon
Fund Balances (Deficits), Governmental Funds

Last ten fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

General Fund
Nonspendable $ 4,639 $ 4,594 $ 4,581 $ 4,562 $ 4,555 $ 4,555 $ 4,555 $ 4,487 $ 4,487 $ 4,487
Restricted - - - - - - - 411 839 1,234
Committed 1,263 1,483 1,709 1,855 2,092 2,281 2,519 2,823 - -
Assigned - - - - 4,232 5,411 6,651 - - -
Unassigned 9,251 10,669 10,325 11,030 10,775 9,378 9,463 10,446 13,360 13,223

Total general fund $ 15,153 $ 16,746 $ 16,615 $ 17,447 $ 21,654 $ 21,625 $ 23,188 $ 18,167 $ 18,686 $ 18,944

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable $ 621 $ 591 $ 596 $ 599 $ 605 $ 629 $ 633 $ 627 $ 633 $ 697
Restricted 7,644 6,903 26,669 29,413 23,189 22,551 41,099 38,897 27,721 59,490
Committed 10,869 11,032 12,997 11,792 12,342 18,947 7,630 6,797 11,623 12,940
Assigned 2,553 5,642 6,587 8,254 16,794 21,925 21,420 24,081 28,392 33,298
Unassigned (316) (340) (360) (360) (360) (360) - 1,433 - -
Reserved for:
Designations reported in:

Total all other governmental funds $ 21,371 $ 23,828 $ 46,489 $ 49,698 $ 52,570 $ 63,692 $ 70,782 $ 71,835 $ 68,369 $ 106,425

Note: The City of Bend implemented GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits), Governmental Funds

Last ten fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting, amounts expressed in thousands)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Revenues
Taxes $ 29,446 $ 29,684 $ 29,990 $ 31,612 $ 36,686
Franchise fees 7,211 7,188 7,154 7,641 7,973
Intergovernmental 14,439 12,444 12,745 12,471 11,715
Assessments 154 145 158 175 165
Licenses and permits 2,850 2,991 4,274 5,860 6,946
Charges for services 6,159 6,136 6,779 8,568 9,315
System development charges 3,341 4,133 7,113 9,091 10,239
Contributions 55 261 104 153 415
Fines and forfeitures 1,231 1,108 955 927 900
Loan repayments 476 1,131 1,189 1,223 1,502
Permanent maintenance fees 11 4 6 3 5
Investment income 341 269 473 615 545
Miscellaneous 126 83 47 89 99

Total revenues 65,840 65,577 70,987 78,428 86,506

Expenditures
General government $ 1,993 $ 2,208 $ 2,266 $ 2,253 $ 2,319
Public safety 29,925 31,307 31,848 33,924 36,474
Infrastructure 6,458 7,714 7,771 8,118 10,960
Community and economic development 8,948 8,039 8,309 9,505 9,880
Permanent maintenance - - 4 5 5
Urban renewal 405 871 32 66 60
Transit 1,744 - - - -
Debt service:

Principal 5,993 5,372 5,606 13,466 3,917
Interest 1,981 1,755 2,275 2,340 2,174

Capital outlay 4,231 6,078 13,376 9,814 12,922

Total expenditures 61,678 63,344 71,487 79,491 78,711

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Insurance proceeds 40 25 17 16 31
Issuance of long-term debt - 1,425 26,805 9,983 3,055
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - 103 1,550 - -
Discount on issuance of long-term debt - - - - (3)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 15 816 43 565 -
Issuance of short-term debt - 3,000 - - -
Interfund loan proceeds 1 1 1 - -
Transfers in 15,527 15,040 16,744 15,723 17,992
Transfers out (18,783) (18,591) (22,131) (21,772) (24,351)

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,200) 1,819 23,029 4,515 (3,276)

Net changes in fund balances (deficits) $ 962 $ 4,052 $ 22,529 $ 3,452 $ 4,519

Debt services as a percentage of non-capital expenditures %14.0 %12.0 %14.0 %23.0 %9.0

Continued on next page
168



City of Bend, Oregon
Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits), Governmental Funds (Continued)

Last ten fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Revenues
Taxes $ 39,917 $ 42,257 $ 45,084 $ 47,832 $ 50,112
Franchise fees 8,280 8,794 9,035 9,650 11,791
Intergovernmental 12,515 12,185 17,122 14,745 20,490
Assessments 171 151 242 218 132
Licenses and permits 8,247 5,798 6,390 6,001 6,614
Charges for services 10,234 12,556 13,146 13,724 17,328
System development charges 18,414 16,828 15,221 16,392 18,516
Contributions 158 249 134 1,740 244
Fines and forfeitures 947 1,038 1,089 1,301 1,081
Loan repayments 738 1,717 429 258 576
Permanent maintenance fees 13 5 5 6 7
Investment income 968 419 684 3,953 4,226
Miscellaneous 94 187 128 81 246

Total revenues 100,696 102,185 108,708 115,901 131,362

Expenditures
General government $ 2,240 $ 2,589 $ 2,525 $ 2,512 $ 11,538
Public safety 39,357 42,008 47,520 48,490 55,921
Infrastructure 8,835 10,159 10,564 11,855 14,994
Community and economic development 14,504 16,180 18,362 18,635 24,410
Permanent maintenance 5 5 5 5 5
Urban renewal 41 59 99 227 600
Transit - - - - -
Debt service:

Principal 4,252 4,555 4,699 5,187 5,226
Interest 2,168 2,079 1,947 1,838 1,669

Capital outlay 11,967 9,147 14,268 20,213 30,809

Total expenditures 83,369 86,781 99,989 108,962 145,172

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Insurance proceeds 14 52 12 - 6
Issuance of long-term debt 2,945 4,297 1,206 - 47,778
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - - - - 6,601
Discount on issuance of long-term debt - - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 53 270 1,945 47 313
Issuance of short-term debt - - - - -
Interfund loan proceeds - - - - -
Transfers in 23,217 21,335 30,069 32,629 33,852
Transfers out (32,464) (30,031) (45,918) (42,562) (36,426)

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,235) (4,077) (12,686) (9,887) 52,125

Net changes in fund balances (deficits) $ 11,092 $ 11,327 $ (3,967) $ (2,948) $ 38,315

Debt services as a percentage of non-capital expenditures %9.0 %8.5 %7.8 %7.9 %6.0

Concluded
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City of Bend, Oregon
Taxable Property Values

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 
Real Market
Valuation(1)

Total Assessed
Valuation

Urban Renewal
Excess

Assessed Value
Used to Calculate

Rates(3)

AV as % of
RMV

Total Direct
Tax Rate

2011 $ 10,705,630,057 $ 8,206,573,484 $ 120,571,324 $ 8,086,002,160 %76 $ 3.24
2012(2) 9,814,582,275 8,181,021,182 138,616,120 8,042,405,062 %82 3.23
2013(2) 9,745,467,924 8,325,527,874 82,348,340 8,243,179,534 %85 3.16
2014 10,551,368,975 8,766,651,445 87,551,264 8,679,100,181 %82 3.12
2015 12,409,417,619 9,331,010,777 100,012,150 9,230,998,627 %74 3.32
2016 14,324,209,631 9,991,920,678 108,639,719 9,883,280,959 %69 3.30
2017 16,026,167,867 10,439,007,017 107,657,138 10,331,349,879 %64 3.28
2018 18,293,572,585 11,057,097,220 115,049,200 10,942,048,020 %60 3.28
2019 20,557,554,789 11,736,052,767 136,146,487 11,599,906,280 %56 3.28
2020 22,306,374,380 12,362,179,543 145,845,139 12,216,334,404 %55 3.28

Source:
Deschutes County Assessor's Office

(1) Value represents the real market value of taxable properties, including special assessed properties such as farms. This value is also commonly
referred to as the "Measure 5 value" by county assessors.

(2) The drop in RMV in 2011-2013 is due to market decline in real estate as an aftermath of the 2008 recession.

(3) Assessed value of property in the City on which the lower rate is applied to derive ad valorem property taxes, excluding urban renewal and any
other offsets.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last ten fiscal years
(amounts expressed per $1,000 of assessed value)

City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates

Fiscal Year City of Bend

Bend Urban
Renewal
District Total Direct

Bend Metro
Park and

Recreation
District

Deschutes
County (1)

County
Library

Education
Service
District

Central
Oregon

Community
College

Bend La-Pine
Administrative

School
District #1 Total

2011 $ 2.76 $ 0.48 $ 3.24 $ 1.45 $ 2.94 $ 0.54 $ 0.09 $ 0.72 $ 6.49 $ 15.47
2012 3.00 0.23 3.23 1.45 2.92 0.54 0.10 0.74 6.26 15.24
2013 3.04 0.12 3.16 1.46 2.96 0.54 0.10 0.75 6.18 15.15
2014 3.00 0.12 3.12 1.66 2.84 0.54 0.10 0.74 6.16 15.16
2015 3.19 0.13 3.32 1.65 2.72 0.54 0.10 0.73 6.20 15.26
2016 3.17 0.13 3.30 1.63 2.78 0.54 0.10 0.73 6.18 15.26
2017 3.16 0.12 3.28 1.63 2.78 0.54 0.10 0.74 6.17 15.24
2018 3.15 0.13 3.28 1.62 2.63 0.54 0.10 0.73 6.62 15.52
2019 3.14 0.14 3.28 1.61 2.65 0.54 0.10 0.72 6.61 15.51
2020 3.13 0.15 3.28 1.59 2.65 0.54 0.10 0.72 6.62 15.50

Source:
Deschutes County Assessor's Office

Notes:
(1) Property tax rates are for a representative tax code area (1-001) within the City and include operating and debt service levies. Deschutes County
includes the following: Deschutes County $1.2040, Countywide Law Enforcement $1.0674, County Extension/4H $0.0223, and 9-1-1 $0.3577.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Principle Taxpayers

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2020 2011

Taxpayer Type of Business Rank
Net Assessed

Valuation

Percentage of
Total Net
Assessed

Valuation (1) Rank
Net Assessed

Valuation

Percentage of
Total Net
Assessed

Valuation (1)

TDS Baja Broadband LLC Cable utility 1 $ 64,615 %0.5 $ - %0.0
Suterra LLC Biorational products 2 51,795 %0.4 - %0.0
Touchmark at Mount Bachelor Village LLC Retirement community 3 50,047 %0.4 3 35,099 %0.4
Deschutes Brewery Microbrewery 4 46,974 %0.4 4 29,555 %0.4
CVSC LLC Shopping center 5 44,415 %0.4 1 36,382 %0.4
Pacificcorp (PP&L) Electric utiliy 6 45,062 %0.4 2 35,751 %0.4
Cascade Natural Gas Corp Gas Utility 7 37,765 %0.3 8 23,319 %0.3
Forum Holdings LLC Shopping center 8 29,636 %0.2 9 23,240 %0.3
CenturyLink Property Tax Telephone utility 9 30,138 %0.2 - %0.0
SP/LLU Farmington LLC Real estate 10 29,029 %0.2 - %0.0
Qwest Corporation Telephone Utility - %- 5 26,846 %0.3
Rivers Edge Investments, LLC Real estate developer - %- 6 24,764 %0.3
Bend Cable Communications LLC Cable Utility - %- 7 23,361 %0.3
Bend Millwork Systems, Inc Destination resort - %- 10 19,549 %0.2

Total $ 429,476 %3.4 $ 277,866 %3.3

Source:

Deschutes County Assessor's Office

Notes:

(1) Percent of total net assessed valuation represents percent of taxpayer's net assessed value to City's total assessed value of $12,362,179,543 for
2020 and $8,218,386,000 for 2011.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Property Taxes Levies and Collections

Last ten fiscal years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Collected within the Fiscal
Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date

Fiscal Year
Total Tax

Levy Amount

Percentage
of Levy

Collected

Collections in
Subsequent

Years Amount

Percentage
of Levy

Collected

2011 $ 26,642 $ 24,690 %92.7 $ 1,114 $ 25,804 %96.9
2012 26,393 24,843 %94.1 1,001 25,844 %97.9
2013 26,356 24,849 %94.3 727 25,576 %97.0
2014 27,457 26,065 %94.9 700 26,765 %97.5
2015 30,965 29,504 %95.3 655 30,159 %97.4
2016 33,014 31,341 %94.9 829 32,170 %97.4
2017 34,323 32,669 %95.2 721 33,390 %97.3
2018 36,280 34,702 %95.7 588 35,290 %97.3
2019 38,622 36,951 %95.7 541 37,492 %97.1
2020 40,646 38,934 %95.8 - 38,934 %95.8

Source:
Deschutes County Assessor's Office
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City of Bend, Oregon
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Fiscal Year

Full Faith &
Credit

Obligation
Bonds

General
Obligations

Urban
Renewal

Tax
Increment

Bonds
Notes

Payable
Line of
Credit

Premiums/
Discounts

Full Faith &
Credit

Obligation
Bonds

Revenue
Bonds

Notes
Payable

Line of
Credit

Premiums/
Discounts

Total
Primary

Government

Total Debt
Percentage
of Personal

Income

Total
Debt per
Capita

2011 $ 48,097 $ - $ 1,710 $ - $ 5,209 $ 275 $ 16,303 $ 19,490 $ 6,778 $ - $ 92 $ 97,954 %3.56 $ 1,273
2012 46,809 - - - 5,209 669 18,621 14,960 5,568 - 241 92,077 %3.34 1,185
2013 43,203 25,950 - - 3,709 2,087 17,622 13,686 9,630 - 217 116,104 %3.90 1,469
2014 33,803 24,920 - 9,591 - 1,949 15,907 12,625 27,928 - 199 126,922 %4.29 1,594
2015 31,783 23,860 - 11,434 403 1,815 14,902 11,530 41,830 30,000 180 167,737 %5.32 2,072
2016 28,268 22,780 - 12,937 1,332 1,685 13,877 7,365 63,405 30,000 169 181,818 %5.37 2,213
2017 20,803 21,680 - 21,192 3,926 1,486 12,832 56,835 89,434 - 11,629 239,817 %6.01 2,715
2018 18,733 20,545 - 25,916 - 1,360 11,762 54,835 110,391 - 11,015 254,557 %5.78 2,900
2019 16,740 19,375 - 23,837 - 1,235 10,670 46,765 121,666 - 10,397 250,685 %4.97 2,743
2020 62,625 18,170 - 21,743 - 7,693 11,510 45,100 120,589 - 10,037 297,467 %5.68 3,204

Source:
Population and personal income data can be found in the Demographic and Economic Statistics schedule. Per capita income figures are for the Bend Metropolitan Statistical Area and are obtained from
the US. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Notes:
Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita amounts)

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Year

Full Faith &
Credit

Obligation
Bonds

General
Obligations Total

Amounts
Restricted for
Debt Service

Net General
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

Assessed
Value

Ratio of Bonded
Debt to

Assessed Value Population

General
Bonded Debt
Per Capita

2011 $ 64,400 $ - $ 64,400 $ 1,911 $ 62,489 $ 8,218,386 $ 0.78 76,639 840
2012 65,430 - 65,430 1,997 63,433 8,193,497 0.80 76,925 851
2013 60,825 25,950 86,775 1,471 85,304 8,338,066 1.04 77,455 1,120
2014 49,710 24,920 74,630 2,559 72,071 8,779,653 0.85 78,280 953
2015 46,685 23,860 70,545 2,831 67,714 9,345,229 0.75 79,985 882
2016 42,145 22,780 64,925 5,969 58,956 10,007,089 0.65 81,310 798
2017 33,635 21,680 55,315 6,406 48,909 10,454,190 0.53 83,500 662
2018 30,495 20,545 51,040 6,978 44,062 11,073,004 0.46 89,505 570
2019 27,410 19,375 46,785 8,126 38,659 11,752,965 0.40 91,385 512
2020 74,135 18,170 92,305 7,119 85,186 12,380,293 $ 0.75 92,840 994

Source:
Population and personal income data can be found in the Demographic and Economic Statistics schedule. Per capita income figures are for the Bend Metropolitan
Statistical Area and are obtained from the US. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Notes:
Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020

Jurisdiction

Net Property - Tax
Backed Debt

Outstanding (1)

Percentage
Applicable to City

of Bend (2)

Amount
Applicable to City

of Bend

Direct Debt
City of Bend $ 92,305,000 %100.00 $ 92,305,000

Overlapping Debt
Bend Metro Park & Rec District 25,059,675 %95.89 24,030,198
Central Oregon Community College 48,930,000 %42.21 20,655,359
Deschutes County 12,630,000 %49.83 6,293,580
Deschutes Cty SD 1 (Bend-Lapine) 451,323,387 %68.67 309,916,549
High Desert ESD 2,945,002 %45.57 1,342,155

Total overlapping debt 540,888,064 %66.97 362,237,841

Total direct debt and overlapping debt $ 633,193,064 %71.79 $ 454,542,841

Source:

State of Oregon, Treasury Department

Notes:

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents
and businesses of the City of Bend. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and
repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each
overlapping government.

(1) Net property-tax backed debt includes all Full Faith and Credit Obligations,  limited-tax general obligation bonds, and
unlimited-tax general obligation bonds.  $58,120,393 of this total is backed by sources other than taxes.  Total direct
debt reported does not include Revenue Bonds and Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Obligations.

(2) Percent applicable to City of Bend represents the City's real market value as a percent of the real market value of the
respective jurisdictions.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Legal Debt Margin Information

June 30, 2020

Real market value $ 22,366,028,673
%3

General obligation debt limit at 3% of real market value 670,980,860

General obligation debt subject to limit per ORS 287A.050(2) * 18,170,000

Less: Funds applicable to the payment of
General obligation debt service fund (1,713,389)

Net debt subject to 3% limitation 16,456,611

Legal debt margin $ 654,524,249

Debt capacity percent %98

Fiscal Year 3% Debt Limit (1)
Net Debt Subject
to 3% Limit (1)

Legal Debt
Margin (1)

Debt Capacity
Percent

2011 $ 323,776 $ - $ 323,776 %100
2012 295,949 - 295,949 %100
2013 293,805 25,950 268,631 %91
2014 318,074 24,920 294,035 %92
2015 373,925 23,860 351,062 %94
2016 431,489 22,780 354,727 %82
2017 482,684 20,481 462,203 %96
2018 550,806 19,232 531,574 %97
2019 618,615 17,893 600,722 %97
2020 670,981 16,457 654,524 %98

Source:  

Real Market Value obtained from Deschutes County Assessor's Office

Notes:  

(1) Amounts expressed in thousands.  

* Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 287A.050(2) states: "Unless the city charter provides a lesser limitation, a city may not
issue or have outstanding at the time of issuance general obligation bonds in a principal amount that exceeds three
percent of the real market value of the taxable property within its boundaries, calculated as provided in ORS 308.207."
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City of Bend, Oregon
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Population (1)

Area
(Square Miles)

(2)

Average Density
(person /

square miles)

Personal Income
(3) (expressed in

thousands)
Per Capita
Income (3)

School
Enrollment (4)

Unemployment
Rate (5)

2011 76,639 32.5 2,358 2,749,347 35,874 15,818 12.0
2012 76,925 32.5 2,367 2,759,607 35,874 15,519 10.5
2013 77,455 32.5 2,383 2,977,990 38,448 16,473 10.0
2014 78,280 32.5 2,409 2,955,383 37,754 16,863 8.1
2015 79,985 32.5 2,461 3,155,888 39,456 17,163 6.2
2016 81,310 36.2 2,246 3,388,594 41,675 17,517 5.2
2017 83,500 36.2 2,307 3,992,052 47,809 18,375 3.8
2018 89,505 36.2 2,473 4,404,989 49,215 18,428 3.9
2019 91,385 36.2 2,524 5,039,243 55,143 18,587 3.9
2020 92,840 36.2 2,565 5,240,539 56,447 18,672 12.3

Source:

(1) Population figures obtained from Portland State University Population Research Center.

(2) Square milage increased due to the Urban Growth Boundary expansion in 2016.

(3) Per capita personal income figures are for the Bend-Redmond Metropolitan Statistical Area and are obtained from the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of
Economic Analysis. Although the Bureau of Economic Analysis provides annual revisions to prior year data, the City, for consistency, continues to report the data
that was originally reported in prior years.

(4) School enrollment figures obtained from Bend-LaPine Administrative School District No. 1 and does not include alternative schools.

(5) Unemployment rates represent June seasonally adjusted unemployment rates for the Bend Metropolitan Statistical Area obtained from the US Department of
Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Seasonally adjusted data for metropolitan areas and metropolitan divisions based on the 2010 Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) delineations were introduced on July 1, 2015.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Principal Employers

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2011

2020 2011

Employer Product or Service Rank Employees

Percentage of
Total City

Employment (1) Rank Employees

Percentage of
Total City

Employment (1)

St. Charles Medical Center Health care 1 3,510 %4.0 1 2,978 %4.2
Bend La Pine School District Education 2 2,192 %2.5 2 1,741 %2.5
Deschutes County Government 3 1,140 %1.3 4 895 %1.3
Mt. Bachelor Resort 4 1,072 %1.2 6 760 %1.1
City of Bend Government 5 706 %0.8 - %-
Central Oregon Community College Education 6 650 %0.7 - %-
Summit Memorial Group Health care 7 574 %0.7 - %-
Deschutes National Forest Government 8 521 %0.6 - %-
Lonza Pharmaceutical 9 418 %0.5 - %-
Les Schwab Tire manufacturer 10 391 %0.4 3 870 %1.2
Sunriver Resort Resort - %- 5 875 %1.2
T-Mobile Call center - %- 7 640 %0.9
Walmart Retailer - %- 8 591 %0.8
Bend Memorial Clinic Call center - %- 9 558 %0.8
Safeway Grocery chain - %- 10 545 %0.8

Total 11,174 %12.8 10,453 %14.8

Sources:

Economic Development for Central Oregon, 2020 Bend Profile.

Note:

(1) Percent of total city employment represents percent of employer's employees to total employment for the Bend-Redmond Metropolitan Statistical
Area of 87,130 for June 2020 and 70,532 for June 2011 (obtained from Bureau of Labor Statistics)
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City of Bend, Oregon
Full Time Equivalent City Employees by Program

Last ten fiscal years

Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

General Government
Administration, finance & legal 37.3 38.0 38.0 37.5 48.5 51.0 53.3 58.4 51.8 60.0
Information technology 13.0 13.0 14.0 14.0 17.0 22.0 21.0 21.0 23.0 23.0
Public works

administration/laboratory 18.0 14.0 12.0 13.0 13.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 9.0
Facility management 5.0 4.5 3.0 3.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 6.0 7.0 8.0
Garage 8.0 8.0 7.0 6.7 6.7 7.7 7.7 9.0 9.7 11.8
Accessibility program 1.0 1.5 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.5
Economic development

administration 1.8 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 1.0 4.0 4.0

Public Safety
Police 110.0 108.0 108.0 112.0 120.0 122.0 122.0 132.0 135.0 136.0
Fire/EMS 89.8 87.8 87.5 85.5 112.7 129.7 124.7 123.1 123.1 128.6
Municipal Court 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.5 5.5 4.0

Public Ways and Facilities
Street operations 31.0 31.0 31.0 34.5 38.5 41.0 42.0 44.0 46.0 49.0
Engineering 8.0 16.0 18.0 20.0 21.0 22.0 22.0 27.0 29.0 28.0

Community and Economic Development
Community development

administration 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 - - 15.0 13.0 11.0
Planning 13.0 13.0 12.0 15.0 14.0 11.0 15.0 17.0 18.0 17.0
Building 17.0 18.0 21.0 28.0 34.0 41.0 45.0 40.5 40.0 39.0
Private development engineering 2.0 1.0 1.0 4.0 6.0 9.0 8.0 14.0 14.0 13.0
Code enforcement 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0
Growth management - - - - 8.0 8.5 9.0 9.5 10.5 8.0
Business advocacy - - - 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Community development block grant

program 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 1.0 2.0 2.0

Other
Transit 1.0 - - - - - - - - -
Airport 1.6 1.5 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2
Water 26.5 29.5 30.5 29.5 32.0 37.0 40.0 40.5 41.5 40.0
Water reclamation 21.5 34.0 33.0 34.0 36.0 34.0 32.0 32.5 32.5 30.5
Stormwater 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0
Utility support division 32.5 14.5 14.5 7.5 9.5 14.0 14.0 14.0 25.6 25.0
Data support division - - - 5.0 5.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0
Other business-type 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0

Total 453.0 450.3 450.3 472.0 549.7 593.2 601.2 640.5 662.5 672.6
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City of Bend, Oregon
Operating Indicators by Program

Last ten fiscal years

Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Public Safety
Police:

Physical arrest (1) 3,744.0 3,843.0 3,652.0 3,916.0 3,504.0 3,453.0 3,556.0 3,729.0 4,427.0 3,614.0
Traffic violations (1) 13,143.0 10,119.0 12,878.0 11,432.0 11,802.0 10,717.0 9,008.0 8,971.0 11,769.0 10,165.0
Calls for service 55,229.0 53,973.0 49,286.0 48,676.0 46,943.0 48,763.0 51,374.0 50,295.0 51,643.0 51,320.0

Fire/EMS:
Fire responses 2,110.0 1,535.0 1,492.0 1,671.0 1,633.0 1,781.0 1,897.0 1,880.0 1,883.0 1,840.0
Ambulance response 6,649.0 6,484.0 6,755.0 7,292.0 7,585.0 7,928.0 8,514.0 8,924.0 9,260.0 9,134.0
Inspections conducted 2,298.0 2,073.0 1,476.0 1,385.0 1,271.0 2,015.0 1,761.0 1,835.0 1,611.0 1,712.0

Public Ways and Facilities
Streets resurfaced (lane miles) 13.6 39.0 28.0 47.2 41.0 62.5 93.8 83.5 119.5 76.9
Streets cleaned (lane miles) (2) 31,165.0 29,000.0 23,111.0 29,930.0 26,107.0 19,912.0 18,239.0 17,986.0 19,811.0 27,607.0
Street signs repaired/replaced

(3) 559.0 665.0 1,216.0 632.0 777.0 835.0 268.0 836.0 1,952.0 1,046.0

Community and Economic Development
Permits issued 4,901.0 5,919.0 8,894.0 9,799.0 10,963.0 12,959.0 12,938.0 12,408.0 10,978.0 10,546.0
Building inspections performed 17,552.0 20,221.0 30,775.0 33,947.0 43,189.0 44,270.0 53,668.0 53,466.0 49,060.0 45,119.0

Transit (in thousands) (4)
Total miles 416.0 - - - - - - - - -
Total service hours 36.0 - - - - - - - - -
Total rides 434.0 - - - - - - - - -

Water
New connections (5) 419.0 147.0 377.0 667.0 597.0 769.0 668.0 641.0 786.0 540.0
Maximum Day Demand (MDD)

(million gallons) 25.6 21.9 22.0 24.8 25.9 27.1 26.4 28.0 26.3 26.3

Water Reclamation
New connections 260.0 373.0 566.0 555.0 1,146.0 1,423.0 776.0 906.0 682.0 717.0
Daily average treatment

(million gallons) 5.4 5.5 5.4 5.7 5.8 5.8 6.0 6.0 6.1 6.1
Sewerlines cleaned (miles) 105.4 126.7 78.1 94.7 97.7 46.3 61.8 88.9 79.8 103.8

Downtown Parking
Tickets issued 14,813.0 11,194.0 10,378.0 11,574.0 13,671.0 15,271.0 14,586.0 16,924.0 11,365.0 13,614.0
Permits issued 5,669.0 5,004.0 4,779.0 5,337.0 6,923.0 8,009.0 9,483.0 10,645.0 11,648.0 10,477.0

(1) Physical Arrests and Traffic Violation figures were corrected back to 2013 in Fiscal Year 2016

(2) Starting in 2017, street miles swept is being tracked more accurately by job. In previous years, it was based solely on odometer readings, which did
not accurately convey the lane miles swept. A correction for an error for 2017, was made in 2020.

(3) Street signs repaired/replaced decreased due to having less resources available.

(4) All transit assets contributed to the Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council for the operation of transit services.

(5) In FY 2016-17, the City of Bend sold a portion of the water system to two other water providers. This sale affected the number of new connections.
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City of Bend, Oregon
Capital Asset Statistics by Program

Last ten fiscal years

Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Public Safety
Police:

Main station 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Patrol units 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0

Fire/EMS stations 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 7.0

Public Ways and Facilities
Street (lane miles) (1) 825.0 831.0 1,157.0 1,157.0 1,161.0 1,143.0 850.0 850.0 850.0 865.0
Streetlights (2) 2,051.0 2,051.0 2,051.0 2,051.0 2,051.0 2,595.0 2,595.0 2,595.0 2,574.0 2,540.0
Traffic signals (3) 65.0 65.0 65.0 36.0 35.0 35.0 36.0 36.0 36.0 35.0

Transit
Buses (4) 32.0 - - - - - - - - -

Airport
Runway (feet) 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0 5,200.0
Hangars 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0

Water
Water mains (miles)(7) 455.0 461.0 463.0 466.0 475.0 479.0 471.0 474.0 455.0 464.0
Reservoirs 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0
Wells (5) 23.0 22.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 21.0
Fire hydrants 5,061.0 5,073.0 5,108.0 5,168.0 5,245.0 5,285.0 5,327.0 5,313.0 5,326.0 5,368.0
Total Reservoir Capacity

(million gallons) 31.0 31.0 30.4 30.4 30.4 30.5 30.5 30.5 30.5 30.5
Service connections 23,475.0 23,622.0 23,999.0 23,457.0 24,228.0 24,997.0 24,548.0 25,332.0 26,118.0 26,486.0

Water Reclamation
Treatment plant 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Sewerlines (miles)(7) 430.0 430.0 412.0 446.0 453.0 457.0 453.0 457.0 464.0 473.0
Large pump stations 88.0 88.0 88.0 88.0 88.0 88.0 88.0 82.0 74.0 72.0
Small pump stations 325.0 325.0 326.0 326.0 326.0 326.0 326.0 330.0 330.0 330.0
Maximum daily capacity of

plant (million gallons) (6) 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 8.5 8.5
Service connections 27,540.0 27,913.0 28,479.0 27,420.0 28,672.0 30,095.0 30,783.0 31,929.0 32,611.0 33,917.0

Downtown Parking
Parking garages 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

(1) GIS based calculation; includes bike paths and paved shoulders

(2) Includes Cascade Electric Coop (152), Pacific Power & Light (2,184) and City of Bend (204)

(3) 2014-Removed state-owned signals from count.

(4) All transit assets contributed to Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council for the operation of transit services.

(5) In FY 2016-17, the City of Bend sold a portion of the water system to two other water providers, this included two wells.

(6) Amounts in 2016, 2017, and 2018 were corrected for a prior error. 

(7) Amonts in 2017, 2018, and 2019 were corrected for a prior error.
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Compliance Section





Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance and on Internal Control over 

Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Oregon Minimum Audit Standards 
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Bend, Oregon

Bend, Oregon

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Bend, Oregon (the City) as of and for 

the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2020. We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of the Minimum Standards 

for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State. Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic 

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Compliance 

AV�SDUW�RI�REWDLQLQJ�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�DERXW�ZKHWKHU�WKH�&LW\¶V�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�

free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grants, including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in 

Oregon Administrative Rules OAR 162-010-0000 to 162-010-0330, as set forth below, 

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 

statement amounts:

x The use of approved depositories to secure the deposit of public funds.

x The requirements relating to debt.

x The requirements relating to the preparation, adoption and execution of the biennium budget for 

the biennium period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021.

x The requirements relating to insurance and fidelity bond coverage.

x The appropriate laws, rules and regulations pertaining to programs funded wholly or partially by 

other governmental agencies.

x The requirements pertaining to the use of revenue from taxes on motor vehicle use fuel funds.

x The statutory requirements pertaining to the investment of public funds.

x The requirements pertaining to the awarding of public contracts and the construction of public 

improvements.

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit 

and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our test disclosed no instances of 

noncompliance that are required to be reported under Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon 

Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements��ZH�FRQVLGHUHG�WKH�&LW\¶V�LQWHUQDO�

control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial

VWDWHPHQWV��EXW�QRW�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�H[SUHVVLQJ�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V internal 

control. Accordingly, we do nRW�H[SUHVV�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKH�HQWLW\¶V�ILQDQFial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 

corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 

in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 

attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 

any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and does not provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

HQWLW\¶V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�RU�RQ�FRPSOiance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the 

6HFUHWDU\�RI�6WDWH��LQ�FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�HQWLW\¶V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH��$FFRUGLQJO\��Whis 

communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

James C. Lanzarotta, Partner for

Moss Adams LLP

Eugene, Oregon

December 11, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Bend, Oregon

Bend, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 

governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 

fund information of the City of Bend, Oregon (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, 

and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise WKH�&LW\¶V basic financial 

statements, and have issued our report thereon December 11, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City¶V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�

over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City¶V�LQWHUQDO

control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City¶V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 

corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 

in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 

attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 

any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters 

$V�SDUW�RI�REWDLQLQJ�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�DERXW�ZKHWKHU�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�IUHH�IURP�

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and

material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 

reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

HQWLW\¶V�LQWHUQDO�control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering WKH�HQWLW\¶V internal control and 

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Eugene, Oregon

December 11, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance as Required by the Uniform 

Guidance 

Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Bend, Oregon

Bend, Oregon

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

We have audited WKH�&LW\�RI�%HQG��2UHJRQ¶V��WKH�&LW\� compliance with the types of compliance 

requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 

effect on the City's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2020. The City's major federal 

program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 

findings and questioned costs.

0DQDJHPHQW¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLW\ 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 

conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

$XGLWRU¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLW\ 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City's major federal program based 

on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 

compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 

Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform 

Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 

and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 

basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major 

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year 

ended June 30, 2020.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 

compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 

our audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of 

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine 

the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 

compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 

assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 

requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 

compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such 

that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 

requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 

program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 

the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Eugene, Oregon

December 11, 2020
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&LW\�RI�%HQG��2UHJRQ

6FKHGXOH�RI�([SHQGLWXUHV�RI�)HGHUDO�$ZDUGV

)RU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH���������

)HGHUDO�*UDQW��6WDWH 3DVV�7KURXJK

)HGHUDO�&)'$ 3DVV�7KURXJK 'LUHFW ([SHQGLWXUHV�WR 7RWDO�)HGHUDO

)HGHUDO�*UDQWRU��3DVV�WKURXJK�$JHQF\��3URJUDP�RU�&OXVWHU�7LWOH 1XPEHU 1XPEHU � �6XEUHFLSLHQWV� �
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7RWDO�8�6��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�+HDOWK�DQG�+XPDQ�6HUYLFHV ���������������� ����������������������� �����������������

([HFXWLYH�2IILFH�RI�WKH�3UHVLGHQW

3DVVHG�WKURXJK�

2UHJRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�-XVWLFH�'HVFKXWHV�&RXQW\

+LJK�,QWHQVLW\�'UXJ�7UDIILFNLQJ�$UHD�3URJUDP ������ 1�$ ���������������� ����������������������� �����������������

7RWDO�([HFXWLYH�2IILFH�RI�WKH�3UHVLGHQW ���������������� ����������������������� �����������������

8�6��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�+RPHODQG�6HFXULW\

3DVVHG�WKURXJK�

)HGHUDO�(PHUJHQF\�0DQDJHPHQW�$JHQF\

2UHJRQ�2IILFH�RI�(PHUJHQF\�0DQDJHPHQW

'LVDVWHU�*UDQWV���3XEOLF�$VVLVWDQFH��3UHVLGHQWLDOO\�'HFODUHG�'LVDVWHUV� ������ )(0$�'5������25 ���������������� ����������������������� �����������������

2UHJRQ�0LOLWDU\�'HSDUWPHQW��2IILFH�RI�(PHUJHQF\�0DQDJPHQW

(PHUJHQF\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUIRUPDQFH�*UDQWV��(03*� ������ ������ ���������������� ����������������������� �����������������

7RWDO�8�6��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�+RPHODQG�6HFXULW\ ���������������� ����������������������� �����������������

7RWDO�)HGHUDO�([SHQGLWXUHV ������������� ������������������� ��������������

1RWH�����%DVLV�RI�3UHVHQWDWLRQ

1RWH�����6XPPDU\�RI�6LJQLILFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV

1RWH�����3URJUDP�,QFRPH

)HGHUDO�&)'$

3URJUDP�7LWOH 1XPEHU $PRXQW

$55$���(QHUJ\�(IILFLHQF\�DQG�&RQVHUYDWLRQ�%ORFN�*UDQW�

3URJUDP��((&%*����5HFRYHU\�$FW�)XQGHG� ������ ����������������������������������

&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW�%ORFN�*UDQWV�(QWLWOHPHQW�*UDQWV ������ �����������������������������������
����������������������������������

,Q�DGGLWLRQ��LQ�ILVFDO�\HDU�������WKH�&LW\�UHFHLYHG����������IURP�ORDQ�UHSD\PHQW�RI�IHGHUDOO\�IXQGHG�1HLJKERUKRRG�6WDELOL]DWLRQ

ORDQV�WKDW�KDYH�QRW�\HW�EHHQ�OHQW�EDFN�RXW�DV�RI�-XQH����������

7KH DFFRPSDQ\LQJ 6FKHGXOH RI ([SHQGLWXUHV RI )HGHUDO $ZDUGV �WKH 6FKHGXOH� LQFOXGHV WKH IHGHUDO JUDQW DFWLYLW\ RI WKH &LW\ RI %HQG
XQGHU SURJUDPV RI WKH IHGHUDO JRYHUQPHQW IRU WKH \HDU HQGHG -XQH ��� ����� 7KH LQIRUPDWLRQ LQ WKLV 6FKHGXOH LV SUHVHQWHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH

ZLWK UHTXLUHPHQWV RI 7LWOH � 8�6� &RGH RI )HGHUDO 5HJXODWLRQV 3DUW ���� 8QLIRUP $GPLQLVWUDWLYH 5HTXLUHPHQWV� &RVW 3ULQFLSOHV� DQG $XGLW
5HTXLUHPHQWV IRU )HGHUDO $ZDUGV �8QLIRUP *XLGDQFH�� 7KHUHIRUH� VRPH DPRXQWV SUHVHQWHG LQ WKLV 6FKHGXOH PD\ GLIIHU IURP DPRXQWV

SUHVHQWHG�LQ��RU�XVHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI��WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

([SHQGLWXUHV UHSRUWHG RQ WKH 6FKHGXOH DUH UHSRUWHG RQ WKH PRGLILHG DFFUXDO EDVLV RI DFFRXQWLQJ� 6XFK H[SHQGLWXUHV DUH UHFRJQL]HG
IROORZLQJ�WKH�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�8QLIRUP�*XLGDQFH��ZKHUHLQ�FHUWDLQ�W\SHV�RI�H[SHQGLWXUHV�DUH�QRW�DOORZDEOH�RU�DUH�OLPLWHG�DV�WR�
UHLPEXUVHPHQW��7KH�&LW\�KDV�HOHFWHG�QRW�WR�XVH�WKH����SHUFHQW�GH�PLQLPLV�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWH�DOORZHG�XQGHU�WKH�8QLIRUP�*XLGDQFH�

7KH�&LW\�UHFHLYHG�3URJUDP�,QFRPH�IURP�UHSD\PHQW�RI�IHGHUDOO\�IXQGHG�ORDQV�UHFHLYDEOH�DQG�RU�LQWHUHVW�LQFRPH�RQ�UHSDLG�IXQGV�ZKLFK�
DFFRXQWHG�IRU�D�SRUWLRQ�RI�IHGHUDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV�IRU�WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�)HGHUDO�&)'$�1XPEHU�
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CITY�OF�BEND,�OREGON�
SCHEDULE�OF�FINDINGS�AND�QUESTIONED�COSTS�

FOR�THE�YEAR�ENDED�JUNE�30,�2020 
 

 

Section I - Summary of Auditor�s Results 

 

Financial Statements 

 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial 

statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 

 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

x Material weakness(es) identified?       Yes    No 

x Significant deficiency(ies) identified?       Yes    None reported 

 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?     Yes    No 

 

Federal Awards 

 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

x Material weakness(es) identified?       Yes    No 

x Significant deficiency(ies) identified?       Yes    None reported 

 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported  

in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?       Yes    No 

 

Identification of major federal programs and type of auditor�s report issued on compliance for major 

federal programs: 

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Type of Auditor�s Report 

Issued on Compliance for 

Major Federal Programs  

14.218 

 

CDBG � Entitlement Grants Cluster 

 

Unmodified 

 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type  

B programs:       $     750,000 

 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?       Yes    No 

 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

 

None reported 

 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 

None reported 
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